
CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

ELKO NEW MARKET CITY HALL 
601 MAIN STREET 

ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 55054 
THURSDAY, MAY 14, 2020 

 
BUSINESS MEETING 

6:00 PM 
 

The City Administrator has determined it is not practical or prudent to conduct an in-person City 
Council meeting due to the local state of emergency and social distancing guidelines. Accordingly, City 
Council will participate in this meeting via an electronic meeting and the City Council meeting will be 
conducted under Minnesota Statutes section 13D.021 at the date and time stated above. To the extent 

practical, members of the public may attend the meeting by utilizing this link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85724865433 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
  

3. Adopt/Approve Agenda 
 

4. Presentations, Proclamations and Acknowledgements (PP&A) 
 

5. Public Comment 
Individuals may address the Council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. The Council may limit the time 
allotted to each individual speaker. A maximum of 15 minutes will be allotted for Public Comment. If the full 15 minutes are 
not needed for Public Comment, the City Council will continue with the agenda. The City Council will not normally take any 
official action on items discussed during Public Comment, with the exception of referral to staff or commission for future 
report. 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under consent agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be acted on by one motion in the 
order listed below. There may be an explanation, but no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is desired, that item 
will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 
 

a. Approve April 23, 2020 Minutes of the City Council Meeting 
b. Approve Payment of Claims and Electronic Transfer of Funds 
c. Adopt Resolution 20-28  Amending the Development Contract for Pete's Hill, and Amending 

Resolution 19-51 Granting Approval of Pete's Hill Plat, Approving Development Contract and 
Adopting Special Assessments for Development Costs  

d. Adopt Resolution 20-29  Amending the Development Contract for Christmas Pines, and 
Amending Resolution 19-20 Granting Approval of Christmas Pines Plat, Approving 
Development Contract and Adopting Special Assessments for Development Costs 

e. Adopt Resolution 20-31 Amending Resolution 18-03 Concerning Appointment of Planning 
Commissioners and Parks & Recreation Commissioner 

f. Adopt Resolution 20-32 Appointing Members to the Parks & Recreation Commissioners  
g. Approve Grading Permit - RF Properties  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85724865433


h. Approve Affidavit of Thomas Terry Regarding Paul Street  
i. Adopt Ordinance No. 212 Amending Title 5 Chapter 5 of the City Code Concerning Noise 

Control  
j. Ordinance Amendments Concerning Nuisance Abatement and Code Enforcement  

i. Adopt Ordinance No. 213 Amending City of Elko New Market City Code Title 6, 
Chapter 5 Concerning Public Nuisances 

ii. Adopt Summary Ordinance No. 214  
iii. Adopt Ordinance No. 215 Amending City of Elko New Market City Code Title 11, 

Chapter 3 Concerning Enforcement of Zoning Regulations 
iv. Adopt Summary Ordinance No. 216 

 
7. Public Hearings 

 
8. General Business 

a. Authorize Issuance, Awarding Sale, Prescribing The Form And Details And Providing For The 
Payment Of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 

i. Resolution 20-33 Authorizing Issuance, Awarding Sale, Prescribing The Form And 
Details And Providing For The Payment Of  General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 

 
9. Reports 

a. Administration 
b. Public Works 

i. Monthly Report  - April 2020 
c. Police Department 

i. Monthly Report – April 2020 
d. Fire Department 
e. Engineering 
f. Community Development 

i. Draft Planning Commission Minutes of the April 28, 2020 Meeting 
g. Parks Department 

i. Monthly Parks & Recreation Update – April 2020 
h. Community & Civic Events Committee (CCEC) 
i. Other Committee and Board Reports 

i. Scott County Association for Leadership and Efficiency (SCALE) 
• Executive Committee 
• Service Delivery Committee 
• Unified Transit Plan Steering Committee 

ii. Minnesota Valley Transit Authority (MVTA) 
iii. I35 Solutions Alliance 

iv. Chamber of Commerce 
 

10. Discussion by Council 
 

11. Adjournment 
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City Council Business Meeting MINUTES  
APRIL 23, 2020 
 
The City Council participated in this meeting via an electronic meeting and the City 
Council meeting was conducted under Minnesota Statutes section 13D.021. 
 
1) CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Julius at 6:00 p.m. 
Members Present:  Mayor Julius, Councilmembers:  Timmerman, Berg, Seepersaud and 
Novak 
Members Absent:  None 
Also Present:  City Administrator Terry, Police Chief Juell, City Attorney Poehler, 
Community Development Specialist Christianson, Assistant City Administrator Nagel, City 
Planner Sevening, Deputy Clerk Jirak and City Engineer Revering 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Julius led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3) ADOPT/APPROVE AGENDA 
MOTION by Councilmember Timmerman, second by Councilmember Seepersaud to 
approve the agenda. 
APIF, MOTION CARRIED 
 

4) PRESENTATION, PROCLAMATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS (PP&A) 
 

5) PUBLIC COMMENT 
Scott County Commissioner Tom Wolf updated Council on Scott County events to include: 

• Updated County Road 2 Utilities progress with CDA. 
• Noted that Property Taxes may be delayed until July 15. 
• Advised that intersections of County Roads 91 and 21 will be seeing a new stoplight. 
• Noted that construction on County Road 2 and 91 should be starting up in early May. 

 
Josh Malwitz, President of Chamber of Commerce, gave the Council an update on Chamber 
events and how the Chamber has been providing assistance to local businesses during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 
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6) CONSENT AGENDA 
MOTION by Councilmember Berg, second by Councilmember Timmerman to approve 
Consent Agenda. 
a) Approve April 3, 2020 Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting 
b) Approve April 9, 2020 Minutes of the City Council Meeting 
c) Approve Payment of Claims and Electronic Transfer of Funds 
d) Approve Revised Recreational Specialist Job Description 
e) Authorize Participation in Cooperative Purchasing Connection 
APIF, MOTION CARRIED 
 

7) PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None. 
 

8) GENERAL BUSINESS 
None. 
 

9) REPORTS 
a) Administration 

COVID-19 Update 
• City Hall 

Administrator/Clerk Terry gave a brief update on city operations, including City 
Hall services, remote staffing and impact on service levels. 

• Parks 
Assistant City Administrator Nagel gave a brief update on Parks, noting that 
playgrounds were still closed, trails were being used, disc golf was open and all 
park shelter reservations have been cancelled through May 15. 

• Community Events – Fire Rescue Days 
A discussion between primary event organizers on whether Fire Rescue Days will 
still take place in June will be held the first week of May. 

• Public Safety 
Police Chief Juell gave a brief update on public safety operations. 

• Public Works 
Normal operations have continued with the exception of in home utility readings. 

 
b) Public Works 

None. 
 

c) Police Department 
None. 
 

d) Fire Department 
None. 
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e) Engineering 
None. 
 

f) Community Development 
City Wide Code Enforcement 
Community Development Specialist Christianson gave the Council a brief overview and 
history of code enforcement for Elko New Market.  Council discussion directed Staff to 
move forward with conducting a proactive City wide code enforcement sweep this 
season. 
 

g) Parks Department 
Written Parks and Recreation Minutes included in Council Packet. 
Assistant City Administrator Nagel updated Council on an early start on Capital 
Improvement Projects, building new ball diamond at Rowena Pond Park and using the 
old ball diamond for a hockey rink, drain tile work, adding new playground equipment at 
old City Hall Park and grant agreements. 
 

h) Community & Civic Events Committee (CCEC) 
None. 
 

i) Other Committee and Board Reports 
Scott County Association for Leadership and Efficiency (SCALE) 
Mayor Julius stated the next SCALE meeting will be held May 8th.  The new chair will be 
Mayor Julius. 
 
Executive Committee 
None. 
 
Service Delivery Committee 
None. 
 
Unified Transit Plan Steering Committee 
None. 
 
Minnesota Valley Transit Authority (MVTA) 
Next meeting will be a virtual meeting on Wednesday, April 29, 2020. 
 
I35 Solutions Alliance 
None. 
 
Chamber of Commerce 
None. 

 
10) DISCUSSION BY COUNCIL 

None. 
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11) ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION by Councilmember Berg, second by Councilmember Novak to adjourn the 
meeting at 6:58 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted by 
 
_____________________ 
Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation of Elko New Market Claims and Electronic Transfer of 

Funds 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Stephanie Fredrickson, Administrative Assistant 
REQUESTED ACTION: Approve Payment of Current Claims 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
Each City Council meeting the Administrative Assistant presents for approval the Elko New 
Market Claims and Electronic Transfer of Funds. 
 
A detail listing of work performed is being provided below for invoices by Consultants of City of 
Elko New Market.  The invoices below are included for payment on the attached Check 
Summary Register. 
 
Bolton & Menk, Inc. Amount 

• Wastewater General: $2,272.11 
• Stormwater General $5,889.68 
• Water General $178.46 
• Woodcrest Sanitary Sewer $1,581.60 
• Christmas Pines $309.00 
• Pete’s Hill $4,700.50 
• Ridgeview Estates $3,817.00 
• 2019 Pavement Rehab $184.80 
• Adelmann Properties $732.00 
• Webster Wetland $3,503.80 
• Park I-35 Utility Extensions $675.38 

Total $23,844.33 
 
In addition, please find attached pay request #1 for Laketown Electric in the amount of 
$5,000.00 for the Lift Station Standby Generation project. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Budgeted 
 
Attachments: 

• Pay Request #1 – Laketown Electric 
• Check Summary Register 
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 *Check Summary Register© 
 May 14, 2020 
 Name Check Date Check Amt 
AUTOPAYS 
Paid Chk# 006698E HEALTH EQUITY, INC. 4/16/2020 $1,105.03 HSA PR 8 
Paid Chk# 006699E VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER  4/16/2020 $225.00 ICMA Roth PR8 
Paid Chk# 006700E VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER  4/16/2020 $565.00 ICMA Pre- tax PR8 
Paid Chk# 006701E MN DEPT OF REVENUE 4/19/2020 $83.00 Q1SalesTax20 
Paid Chk# 006702E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC  4/22/2020 $234.00 268X Xerxes Water Tower, Elko 
Paid Chk# 006703E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/13/2020 $134.87 26518 France Avenue 
Paid Chk# 006704E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/13/2020 $27.79 26518 France Avenue 
Paid Chk# 006705E XCEL ENERGY 5/21/2020 $235.11 Storage 
Paid Chk# 006706E XCEL ENERGY 5/22/2020 $174.82 Lift Station / 10010 Ptarmigan 
Paid Chk# 006707E XCEL ENERGY 5/27/2020 $2,971.83 25499 Natchez Ave - Water Trea 
Paid Chk# 006708E XCEL ENERGY 5/22/2020 $839.58 Wellhouse - 26460 France Ave 
Paid Chk# 006709E XCEL ENERGY 5/21/2020 $98.58 26536 France Ave 
Paid Chk# 006710E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC  5/9/2020 $10.74 City of Elko Park, Elko 
Paid Chk# 006711E XCEL ENERGY 5/21/2020 $366.68 Library - 100 J Roberts Way 
Paid Chk# 006712E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC  5/22/2020 $1,439.83 Streetlights, Elko 
Paid Chk# 006713E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC  5/9/2020 $82.73 Glenborough Dr & Chowen 
Paid Chk# 006714E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC  5/22/2020 $34.63 27059 Beard Ave Lift Pump 
Paid Chk# 006715E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/18/2020 $20.08 408 Carter Street 
Paid Chk# 006716E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/15/2020 $19.33 359 James Parkway 
Paid Chk# 006717E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/15/2020 $139.60 110 J Roberts Way - Library 
Paid Chk# 006718E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/26/2020 $22.62 26518 France Avenue 
Paid Chk# 006719E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/13/2020 $308.01 PW Facility - Gas Utilities 
Paid Chk# 006720E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/12/2020 $824.01 25499 Natchez Ave - WTP 
Paid Chk# 006721E MINNESOTA ENERGY  5/19/2020 $636.27 50 Church Street 
Paid Chk# 006722E PSN 5/4/2020 $1,228.74 Credit Card Processing Fees 
Paid Chk# 006723E PERA 5/8/2020 $9,366.91 Payroll Liability 
Paid Chk# 006724E MN DEPT OF REVENUE 5/8/2020 $2,203.99 Payroll Liability 
Paid Chk# 006725E INTERNAL REVENUE  5/8/2020 $11,105.14 Payroll Liability 
Paid Chk# 006726E DELTA DENTAL OF  5/8/2020 $1,257.30 Delta Dental 
Paid Chk# 006727E HEALTH PARTNERS 5/8/2020 $20,078.33 MEDICAL INS 
Paid Chk# 006728E SUN LIFE FINANCIAL 5/8/2020 $1,544.67 SunLife Insurance 
Paid Chk# 006729E HEALTH EQUITY, INC. 5/8/2020 $1,205.03 HSA- Steve Hotaling 
Paid Chk# 006730E HEALTH EQUITY, INC. 5/8/2020 $41.30 HSA Monthly Fees 
Paid Chk# 006731E VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER  5/8/2020 $245.00 ICMA- Steve Hotaling 
Paid Chk# 006732E VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER  5/8/2020 $565.00 ICMA- Kellie Stewart 
TOTAL   $59,440.55 
 

PRE-PAIDS 
Paid Chk# 040936 ANCHOR SOLAR  4/22/2020 $586.60 PW 31.82(17) Solar Panel Lease 
Paid Chk# 040938 PAYROLL 4/30/2020 $69.26 
Paid Chk# 040939 PAYROLL 4/30/2020 $429.25 
Paid Chk# 040940 PAYROLL 4/30/2020 $46.17 
Paid Chk# 040941 PAYROLL 4/30/2020 $69.26 
Paid Chk# 040942 PAYROLL 4/30/2020 $0.00 
TOTAL   $1,200.54 
 

CHECK REGISTER 
Paid Chk# 040943 ACE HARDWARE & PAINT 5/14/2020 $11.70 PW - Operating Supplies 
Paid Chk# 040944 ANCOM COMMUNICATIONS, 5/14/2020 $627.00 FD - Pagers 
Paid Chk# 040945 APPLE FORD LINCOLN 5/14/2020 $233.74 PD - Fleet 
Paid Chk# 040946 BERGAN KDV 5/14/2020 $950.00 Yearly Audit 
Paid Chk# 040947 BOLTON & MENK 5/14/2020 $23,844.33 T15.100718 - Water System Gene 
Paid Chk# 040948 BRAUN INTERTEC  5/14/2020 $3,995.00 Soil Borings - PD Addition 
Paid Chk# 040949 BTR OF MINNESOTA LLC 5/14/2020 $2,190.04 FD - Fleet 
Paid Chk# 040950 CANON FINANCIAL  5/14/2020 $34.40 PD Copier - Rental Agmt 
Paid Chk# 040951 CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 5/14/2020 $34.30 PW UNIFORMS 
Paid Chk# 040952 CORE & MAIN LP 5/14/2020 $597.89 2020 Woodcrest Trail Project 
Paid Chk# 040953 CULLIGAN BOTTLED WATER 5/14/2020 $62.90 Bottled Water 
Paid Chk# 040954 DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 5/14/2020 $50.00 10% Proceeds Forfeiture - 2014 
Paid Chk# 040955 ECOLAB 5/14/2020 $62.10 Pest Control 
Paid Chk# 040956 ENTITLE 5/14/2020 $73.37 Utility Billing Credit Refund  
Paid Chk# 040957 FARMERS MILL &  5/14/2020 $782.68 Parks Chemicals 
Paid Chk# 040958 FORFEITURE ATTORNEY  5/14/2020 $250.00 30% Proceeds Forfeiture - 2016 
Paid Chk# 040959 HAWKINS, INC. 5/14/2020 $30.00 PW - Water Chemicals 



 CITY OF ELKO/NEW MARKET 05/08/20 1:27 PM 
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 *Check Summary Register© 
 May 14, 2020 
 Name Check Date Check Amt 
Paid Chk# 040960 IDENTISYS 5/14/2020 $157.30 City Council ID Badges 
Paid Chk# 040961 INNOVATIVE OFFICE  5/14/2020 $440.58 Office Supplies 
Paid Chk# 040962 IUOE LOCAL #49 5/14/2020 $175.00 Membership Dues - Jason Thomps 
Paid Chk# 040963 KELLEY FUELS, INC. 5/14/2020 $970.71 FD - Fuel 
Paid Chk# 040964 LAKETOWN ELECTRIC  5/14/2020 $5,000.00 Pay Req #1 - Lift Station Stan 
Paid Chk# 040965 LEO A DALY 5/14/2020 $12,376.01 PD Addition Architect Fees - 8 
Paid Chk# 040966 MAMA-METRO AREA MGMT  5/14/2020 $25.00 2-27-20 Luncheon - Tom 
Paid Chk# 040967 MANDERS DIESEL 5/14/2020 $28.00 PW - Fleet Maint & Equip 
Paid Chk# 040968 MN CRITTER GETTERS, INC. 5/14/2020 $1,200.00 Monthly Animal Control 
Paid Chk# 040969 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS,  5/14/2020 $50,915.01 PD - New Radio System 
Paid Chk# 040970 MVTL LABORATORIES 5/14/2020 $95.00 PW - Water Testing 
Paid Chk# 040971 NAPA AUTO PARTS 5/14/2020 $284.89 PW - Small Tools 
Paid Chk# 040972 NOVACARE  5/14/2020 $120.00 Pre-Employ Testing - Brentan C 
Paid Chk# 040973 POMPS TIRE SERVICE, INC. 5/14/2020 $417.00 PW - Fleet Maint & Repairs 
Paid Chk# 040974 QUILL CORPORATION 5/14/2020 $123.96 Operating Supplies 
Paid Chk# 040975 RIGID HITCH  5/14/2020 $71.34 PW - Fleet Maint & Equip 
Paid Chk# 040976 RYDIN 5/14/2020 $230.00 Special Use Vehicle Permit Sti 
Paid Chk# 040977 SCHOENBAUER, JASON 5/14/2020 $225.00 PW Uniforms - Boot Reimburseme 
Paid Chk# 040978 SCOTT COUNTY TREASURER 5/14/2020 $33,700.00 Tax - Special Assessment 2020  
Paid Chk# 040979 SCOTT COUNTY  5/14/2020 $230.00 Fence Recording - F06-20 Fence 
Paid Chk# 040980 SHRED RIGHT 5/14/2020 $15.00 Shredding 
Paid Chk# 040981 SITEONE LANDSCAPE  5/14/2020 $23.90 PW - Streets 
Paid Chk# 040982 SORENSEN CONSULTING 5/14/2020 $175.00 Coaching Session - Steph 
Paid Chk# 040983 STREICHER'S INC 5/14/2020 $1,328.96 PD - Bulletproof Vest/Equip 
Paid Chk# 040984 SUTTON, MIKE 5/14/2020 $52.00 Hat & Glove Sets - Easter Item 
Paid Chk# 040985 TRADEMARK TITLE  5/14/2020 $119.08 Utility Billing Credit Refund  
Paid Chk# 040986 SPLIT ROCK MANAGEMENT  5/14/2020 $550.00 CITY HALL 
Paid Chk# 040987 VERIZON WIRELESS 5/14/2020 $899.40 Cell Phones 
Paid Chk# 040988 VESSCO, INC. 5/14/2020 $67.27 PW - Water Repairs 
Paid Chk# 040989 WERNER IMPLEMENT CO.,  5/14/2020 $145.86 PW - Fleet Main & Equip 
Paid Chk# 040990 WINSUPPLY 5/14/2020 $40.00 Signs 
Paid Chk# 040991 WONG, JAMIE & CRYSTAL 5/14/2020 $139.61 Utility Billing Credit Refund  
Paid Chk# 040992 XEROX CORPORATION 5/14/2020 $396.33 Copier 
Paid Chk# 040993 ZIEGLER INC. 5/14/2020 $440.64 PW - Fleet Maint & Equip 
TOTAL   $145,007.30 
 

DIRECT DEPOSIT 
Paid Chk# 503237E Bi-Weekly ACH 4/30/2020 $37,449.43 
TOTAL   $37,449.43 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Amend Development Contract and Adopt Special Assessments for 

Pete's Hill 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Renee Christianson, Community Development Specialist 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 20-28  Amending the Development Contract for 

Pete's Hill, and Amending Resolution 19-51 Granting Approval of 
Pete's Hill Plat, Approving Development Contract and Adopting 
Special Assessments for Development Costs  

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

 
 



 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2019 the City Council adopted Resolution 19-51 approving the plat and development 
contract for Pete’s Hill.  The development contract and resolution allowed for the development 
fees, which are typically paid in full at the time of final plat approval, to be assessed against 
each lot. 
 
There was some conflicting language between the development contract and the resolution 
adopting the assessments in regards to the timing of the assessments.  Staff and the 
developer have worked out an agreement to amend the repayment schedule for the 
assessments in a manner acceptable to both the developer and staff.  In consideration of the 
potential impacts of COVID-19, the term of repayment has been extended one year and the 
interest rate reduced.   
 
The initial development fees totaled $393,007.05 and were assessed equally to the 45 lots 
within the development.  Due and payable with the payable 2020 taxes, a total of $127,149.75 
was billed and the developer has agreed to pay this amount.  Staff and the developer have 
worked out an agreement to amend the repayment schedule for the remaining $265,857.30.  
Based on the recommended agreement, the remaining assessment balance of $265,857.30 
would be due and payable upon the sale of each lot, or with the payable 2023 property taxes.  
Beginning January 1, 2021 the interest rate would also be reduced to 1% from 3%. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
City staff has used the terms of the proposed amendment, and run the utility fund revenue 
projections through the City’s financial model.  Staff is comfortable with the terms of the 
amendment described above.       
 
CITY ATTORNEY RECOMMENDATION 
The City Attorney has reviewed the matter and has prepared the attached Amendment to 
Development Contract and Draft Resolution 20-28.  The developer has signed the draft 
amendment to the development contract. 
 
REQUETED ACTION 
The City Council is being asked to approve Resolution 20-28 Approving an Amendment to the 
Development Contract for Pete’s Hill and an Amendment of Resolution 19-51 Granting 
Approval of the Preliminary and Final Plat for Pete’s Hill, Approval of Development Contract 
Adopting Special Assessments for Development Costs. 
 
Attachments: 
Draft Resolution 20-28 
First Amendment to Development Contract for Pete’s Hill (signed) 
Resolution 19-51 
(Executed) Development Contract for Pete’s Hill  
Assessment Roll Information  
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CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-28 

 
 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT FOR PETE’S HILL  
AND AN AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION NO. 19-51 GRANTING APPROVAL OF THE FINAL 

PLAT FOR PETE’S HILL, APPROVAL OF DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT  
ADOPTING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR DEVELOPMENT COSTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City and Elko 34, LLC (“Developer”) previously entered into a Development Contract 

dated August 22, 2019 and filed of record on September 27, 2019 with the Scott County Recorder as Document 
No. A1075533 concerning the plat of Pete’s Hill (“Development Contract”)  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved Resolution No 19-51 granting approval of the final plat and 

Development Contract for Pete’s Hill and approving and adopting special assessments for development costs; 
 
WHEREAS, Developer and the City desire to amend the terms of the Development Contract 

concerning the assessments for development costs as provided in the First Amendment to Development Contract 
(“First Amendment”) attached hereto as Exhibit A; 

  
WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the resolution concerning the adoption of special assessments 

for development costs as provided in this amended resolution to be consistent with the (“First Amendment”);  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 
1. The City approves the First Amendment as attached in Exhibit A. 
 
2. Paragraph 4 of Resolution No. 19-51 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 

4. Assessments shall be assessed against the lots (not outlots) in the plat with interest  
calculated at three percent (3%) per annum from the date of adoption of Resolution 19-51 through 
December 31, 2020 and one percent (1%) per annum thereafter until the assessments are paid in full.  
One third of the assessments shall be payable with taxes in 2020.  The unpaid balance of assessments 
for each lot shall be paid upon the earlier of the following:  (1) upon the sale of each lot; or (2) with 
taxes payable in 2023.  
 
3. The City Clerk shall forthwith transmit a certified duplicate of this assessment to the County 

Auditor to be extended on the property tax lists of the County.  Such assessments shall be collected and paid 
over in the same manner as other municipal taxes. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 14th day of May, 2020. 
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       CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Thomas Terry, City Administrator/City Clerk 
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EXHIBIT A 
 
[attached First Amendment] 
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(reserved for recording information) 

 

 
FIRST AMENDMENT 

TO 
DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT 

 

PETE’S HILL 
 
 
 
 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT (“Amendment”) is made 
this ___ day of ____________, 2020, by and between the CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, a 
Minnesota municipal corporation (“City”), and ELKO 34, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability 
company (the “Developer”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 A. The City and Developer previously entered into a Development Contract dated 
August 22, 2019 and filed of record on September 27, 2019 with the Scott County Recorder as 
Document No. A1075533 concerning the plat of Pete’s Hill (“Development Contract”); 
 
 B. The City and Developer have agreed to amend the terms of the assessment of 
various fees as provided in this Amendment. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. EFFECT OF DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT.  The Development Contract shall 
remain in full force and effect except as specifically amended herein. 
 
 2. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 18.  Paragraph 16 of the Development 
Contract is amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

 18. STORM WATER TRUNK FEE.  The Plat is subject to a storm sewer trunk 
fee of $99,939.50.  The area charge is based on the gross area of the final plat (36.42 
acres) less the area of wetlands (7.93acres), and is calculated as follows: 

28.49 acres  x  $3,507.88/acre  =  $99,939.50 
 

The storm sewer area trunk fee is due at the time of final plat approval. The storm sewer 
area trunk fee shall be assessed in accordance with Paragraph 26M of the Agreement. 
 

 3. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 19. Paragraph 19 of the Development Contract 
is amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
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19. SANITARY SEWER TRUNK FEE. The Plat is subject to a sanitary sewer trunk fee 
of $182,520.00.  The charge is based on the number of units within the plat and is 
calculated as follows: 
 

45 lots  x  $4,056.00/lot  =  $182,520.00 
 
The sanitary sewer trunk fee is due at the time of final plat approval. The sanitary sewer 
trunk fee shall be assessed in accordance with Paragraph 26M of the Development 
Contract.  
 

 4. AMENDENT TO PARAGRAPH 20.  Paragraph 20 of the Development Contract is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

20.  WATER TRUNK FEE.  The Plat is subject to a water trunk fee of $162,675.00.  
The charge is based on the number of units within the plat at a rate of $3,615.00 per lot. 
The Developer shall receive a credit to the Water Trunk Fee in the amount of $54,471.00, 
as follows: a credit of $9,147 for oversizing of the water line in 273rd Street, a credit of 
$11,980 for replacement of the existing water line in 273rd Street and necessary street 
reconstruction work related to water line replacement, and a credit of $33,344 for off-site 
watermain extension from Pete’s Hill Trail to Meadow Ridge Lane.  The Water Trunk Fee 
is calculated as follows: 
 
  

         45 lots x  $3,615.00/lot  =       $162,675.00     -     $54,471.00         =       $108,204.00     
       (Gross Water Trunk Fee)                   (Credit)    Total Water Trunk Fee 

 
 
The water trunk fee is due at the time of final plat approval. The water trunk fee shall be 
assessed in accordance with Paragraph 26M of the Development Contract.  
 

 5. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 24B.  Paragraph 24B of the Agreement is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

B. Developer shall provide to the City $2,343.60 in payment of the first year operating 
costs for street lights at the time of final plat approval.  The fee was calculated as follows:  
 

45 lots x $4.34 per month = $195.30 x 12 months = $2,343.60. 
 
The street light operation fee is due at the time of final plat approval.  The street light 
operation fee shall be assessed in accordance with Paragraph 26M of the Development 
Contract. 
 

 6. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 26.  Paragraph 26 of the Development 
Contract is amended by adding a new subparagraph M to read as follows: 
 

 M. The fees and charges identified in Paragraphs 18, 19, 20, and 24B of the 
Development Contract  shall be assessed against the lots (not outlots) in the plat with 
interest on the unpaid balance calculated at three percent (3%) per annum through 
December 31, 2020 and one percent (1%) per annum thereafter until the assessments 
are paid in full. One third of the assessments shall be payable with taxes in 2020.  The 
unpaid balance of assessments for each lot shall be paid upon the earlier of the 
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following: (1) upon the sale of each lot; or (2) with taxes payable in 2023.  The 
assessments may be prepaid at any time.  The Developer waives any and all procedural 
and substantive objections to the assessments including any claim that the assessments 
exceed the benefit to the property.  The Developer waives any appeal rights otherwise 
available pursuant to MSA 429.081.   

 
 
7.  COUNTERPARTS.  This Amendment is executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed this 
_____ day of ___________________, 2020. 
 

[The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank. 
Signature pages follow.] 
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      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      BY: _____________________________________ 
       Joe Julius, Mayor 
 (SEAL) 
 
      AND 
_____________________________________ 
       Thomas Terry, City Administrator/City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF SCOTT  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 
______________, 2020, by Joe Julius and by Thomas Terry the Mayor and City 
Administrator/City Clerk of the City of Elko New Market, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on 
behalf of the corporation and pursuant to the authority granted by its City Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________  
      NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
  



































































  PID #

Stormwater 

Trunk Fee

Sanitary Sewer 

Trunk Fee

Water Trunk 

Fee

Street Light 

Costs Total Per Lot
620‐49490‐37590 602‐49450‐37270 601‐49400‐37170 101‐43160‐37500

230640010 Lot 1 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640020 Lot 2 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640030 Lot 3 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640040 Lot 4 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640050 Lot 5 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640060 Lot 6 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640070 Lot 7 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640080 Lot 8 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640090 Lot 9 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640100 Lot 10 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640110 Lot 11 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640120 Lot 12 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640130 Lot 13 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640140 Lot 14 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640150 Lot 15 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640160 Lot 16 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640170 Lot 17 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640180 Lot 18 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640190 Lot 19 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640200 Lot 20 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640210 Lot 21 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640220 Lot 22 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640230 Lot 23 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640240 Lot 24 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640250 Lot 25 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640260 Lot 26 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640270 Lot 27 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640280 Lot 28 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640290 Lot 29 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640300 Lot 30 Block 1 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640310 Lot 1 Block 2 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640320 Lot 2 Block 2 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640330 Lot 3 Block 2 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640340 Lot 1 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640350 Lot 2 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640360 Lot 3 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640370 Lot 4 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640380 Lot 5 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640390 Lot 6 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640400 Lot 7 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640410 Lot 8 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640420 Lot 9 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640430 Lot 10 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640440 Lot 11 Block 3 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

230640450 Lot 1 Block 4 $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

TOTALS $99,939.50 $182,520.00 $108,204.00 $2,343.60 $393,007.10

Original Assessments

Stormwater 

Trunk Fee

Sanitary Sewer 

Trunk Fee

Water Trunk 

Fee

Street Light 

Costs Total Per Lot

Total Assessment Per Lot $2,220.88 $4,056.00 $2,404.53 $52.08 $8,733.49

Percent of Total Assessment 25.43% 46.44% 27.53% 0.60% 100.00%

Assessments Paid With 2020 Taxes $127,149.95

$32,333.52 $59,050.86 $35,007.34 $758.23 $127,149.95

25.43% 46.44% 27.53% 0.60% 100.00%

Balance After 2020 Taxes Are Paid $265,857.30

$67,606.02 $123,469.21 $73,196.70 $1,585.37 $265,857.30

25.43% 46.44% 27.53% 0.60% 100.00%

Petes Hill ‐ Assessments for Development Fees
Approved by Elko New Market City Council 8/22/19



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Amend Development Contract and Special Assessments for 

Christmas Pines 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Renee Christianson, Community Development Specialist 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 20-29  Amending the Development Contract for 

Christmas Pines, and Amending Resolution 19-20 Granting 
Approval of Christmas Pines Plat, Approving Development Contract 
and Adopting Special Assessments for Development Costs  

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

 
 



 
BACKGROUND 
In 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution 18-18 approving the final plat and development 
contract for Christmas Pines, and approving and adopting special assessments for 
development costs. In 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution 19-20 amending the original 
resolution, to address a change in ownership and assessment dates because the plat did not 
get filed in 2018, as originally intended.  The development contract and resolution allowed for 
the development fees, which are typically paid in full at the time of final plat approval, to be 
assessed against each lot and paid over time. 
 
There was some conflicting language between the development contract and the resolution 
adopting the assessments in regards to the timing of the assessment payments.  Staff and the 
developer have worked out an agreement to amend the repayment schedule for the 
assessments in a manner acceptable to both the Developer and staff. In consideration of the 
unforeseen delays to the project and the potential impact of COVID-19, the term of repayment 
has been extended one year and the interest rate reduced. 
 
The initial development fees totaled $206,353.31 and were assessed equally to the 20 lots 
within the development.  Due and payable with the payable 2020 taxes, a total of $66,761.60 
was billed and the developer has agreed to pay this amount.  Staff and the developer have 
worked out an agreement to amend the repayment schedule for the remaining 
$139,591.71.  Based on the recommended agreement, the remaining assessment balance of 
$139,591.71 would be due and payable upon the sale of each lot, or with the payable 2023 
property taxes.  Beginning January 1, 2021 the interest rate would also be reduced to 1% from 
3%. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
City staff has used the terms of the proposed amendment, and run the utility fund revenue 
projections through the City’s financial model.  Staff is comfortable with the terms of the 
amendment described above.       
 
CITY ATTORNEY RECOMMENDATION 
The City Attorney has reviewed the matter and has prepared the attached Amendment to 
Development Contract and Draft Resolution 20-29.  The developer has signed the draft 
amendment to the development contract. 
 
REQUETED ACTION 
The City Council is being asked to approve Resolution 20-29 Approving an Amendment to the 
Development Contract for Christmas Pines and an Amendment of Resolution 19-20 Granting 
Approval of the Preliminary and Final Plat for Christmas Pines, Approval of Development 
Contract Adopting Special Assessments for Development Costs. 
 
Attachments: 
Draft Resolution 20-29 
First Amendment to Development Contract for Christmas Pines (signed) 
Resolution 18-18 
Resolution 19-20 
(Executed) Development Contract for Christmas Pines  
Assessment Roll Information  
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(reserved for recording information) 

 

 
FIRST AMENDMENT 

TO 
DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT 

 

CHRISTMAS PINES 
 
 
 
 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT (“Amendment”) is made 
this ___ day of ____________, 2020, by and between the CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, a 
Minnesota municipal corporation (“City”), and ARCHER’S POINT DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a 
Minnesota limited liability company (the “Developer”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 A. The City and Developer previously entered into a Development Contract dated 
April 25, 2019 and filed of record on July 9, 2019 with the Scott County Recorder as Document 
No. A1069888 concerning the plat of Christmas Pines (“Development Contract”); 
 
 B. The City and Developer have agreed to amend the terms of the assessment of 
various fees as provided in this Amendment. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. EFFECT OF DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT.  The Development Contract shall 
remain in full force and effect except as specifically amended herein. 
 
 2. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 16.  Paragraph 16 of the Development 
Contract is amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

 16. STORM WATER TRUNK FEE.  The Plat is subject to a storm sewer trunk 
fee of $11,891.71.  The area charge is based on the gross area of the final plat (5.0 acres) 
less the area of the right-of-way dedicated for County Roads 2 and 91 (1.32 acres) and 
less the area of the wetland located on Outlot A (.29 acres), and is calculated as follows: 

3.39 acres  x  $3,507.88/acre  =  $11,891.71 
 

The storm sewer area trunk fee is due at the time of final plat approval. The storm sewer 
area trunk fee shall be assessed in accordance with Paragraph 27G of the Agreement. 
 

 3. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 17. Paragraph 17 of the Development Contract 
is amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
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17. SANITARY SEWER TRUNK FEE. The Plat is subject to a sanitary sewer trunk fee 
of $81,120.00.  The charge is based on the number of units within the plat and is 
calculated as follows: 
 
   20 dwelling units  x  $4,056.00/unit  =  $81,120.00 
 
The sanitary sewer trunk fee is due at the time of final plat approval. The sanitary sewer 
trunk fee shall be assessed in accordance with Paragraph 27G of the Development 
Contract.  
 

 4. AMENDENT TO PARAGRAPH 18.  Paragraph 18 of the Development Contract is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

18.  WATER TRUNK FEE.  The Plat is subject to a water trunk fee of $72,300.00.  
The charge is based on the number of units within the plat and is calculated as follows: 
 

20  units  x  $3,615.00/unit  =  $72,300.00 
 

The water trunk fee is due at the time of final plat approval. The water trunk fee shall be 
assessed in accordance with Paragraph 27G of the Development Contract.  
 

 5. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 20.   Paragraph 20 of the Agreement is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

20. PARK DEDICATION.  The Developer shall pay a cash contribution of $40,000.00 
in satisfaction of the City’s park dedication requirements at the time of final plat approval.  
The charge was calculated as follows:  
 

20 lots x $2,000 per dwelling unit = $40,000.00 
 

The park dedication fee is due at the time of final plat approval.  The park dedication fee 
shall be assessed in accordance with Paragraph 27G of the Development Contract.  
 

 6. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 22B.  Paragraph 22B of the Agreement is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

B. Developer shall provide to the City $1,041.60 in payment of the first year operating 
costs for street lights at the time of final plat approval.  The fee was calculated as follows:  
 

20 lots x $4.34 per month = $86.80 x 12 months = $1,041.60. 
 

The street light operation fee is due at the time of final plat approval.  The street light 
operation fee shall be assessed in accordance with Paragraph 27G of the Development 
Contract. 
 

 7. AMENDMENT TO PARAGRAPH 27.  Paragraph 27 of the Development 
Contract is amended by adding a new subparagraph G to read as follows: 
 

 G. The fees and charges identified in Paragraphs 16, 17, 18, 20, and 22B of 
the Development Contract  shall be assessed against the lots (not outlots) in the plat 
with interest on the unpaid balance calculated at three percent (3%) per annum through 
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December 31, 2020 and one percent (1%) per annum thereafter until the assessments 
are paid in full. One third of the assessments shall be payable with taxes in 2020.  The 
unpaid balance of assessments for each lot shall be paid upon the earlier of the 
following: (1) upon the sale of each lot; or (2) with taxes payable in 2023.  The 
assessments may be prepaid at any time.  The Developer waives any and all procedural 
and substantive objections to the assessments including any claim that the assessments 
exceed the benefit to the property.  The Developer waives any appeal rights otherwise 
available pursuant to MSA 429.081.   

 
 
8.  COUNTERPARTS.  This Amendment is executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed this 
_____ day of ___________________, 2020. 
 

[The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank. 
Signature pages follow.] 
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      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      BY: _____________________________________ 
       Joe Julius, Mayor 
 (SEAL) 
 
      AND 
_____________________________________ 
       Thomas Terry, City Administrator/City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF SCOTT  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 
______________, 2020, by Joe Julius and by Thomas Terry the Mayor and City 
Administrator/City Clerk of the City of Elko New Market, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on 
behalf of the corporation and pursuant to the authority granted by its City Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________  
      NOTARY PUBLIC 
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      DEVELOPER: 
      ARCHER’S POINT DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
       
 
 
      BY: _____________________________________ 
       Its 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF _________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 
______________, 2020, by __________________________________ the 
____________________________________ of Archer’s Point Development, LLC, a Minnesota 
limited liability company, on its behalf. 
 
 
      _________________________________________  
      NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DRAFTED BY: 
CAMPBELL, KNUTSON 
Professional Association 
Grand Oak Office Center I 
860 Blue Gentian Road, Suite 290 
Eagan, MN  55121 
Telephone: 651-452-5000 
AMP/cjh 
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CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-29 

 
 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT FOR CHRISTMAS PINES 
AND AN AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION NO. 19-20 

GRANTING APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT FOR  
CHRISTMAS PINES AND APPROVING AND ADOPTING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR 

DEVELOPMENT COSTS 
 

WHEREAS, the City and Archer’s Point Development, LLC (“Developer”) previously entered into a 
Development Contract dated April 25, 2019 and filed of record on July 9, 2019 with the Scott County Recorder 
as Document No. A1069888 concerning the plat of Christmas Pines (“Development Contract”)  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved Resolution No 18-18 granting approval of the final plat and 

Development Contract for Christmas Pines and approving and adopting special assessments for development 
costs; 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 19-20 amending the Resolution No. 18-18; 
 
WHEREAS, Developer and the City desire to amend the terms of the Development Contract 

concerning the assessments for development costs as provided in the First Amendment to Development Contract 
(“First Amendment”) attached hereto as Exhibit A; 

  
WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the resolution concerning the adoption of special assessments 

for development costs as provided in this amended resolution to be consistent with the (“First Amendment”);  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 
1. The City approves the First Amendment as attached in Exhibit A. 
 
2. Paragraph 1, subparagraph 4 of Resolution No. 19-20 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 

4. Assessments shall be assessed against the lots (not outlots) in the plat with interest  
calculated at three percent (3%) per annum from the date of adoption of Resolution 19-20 through 
December 31, 2020 and one percent (1%) per annum thereafter until the assessments are paid in full.  
One third of the assessments shall be payable with taxes in 2020.  The unpaid balance of assessments 
for each lot shall be paid upon the earlier of the following:  (1) upon the sale of each lot; or (2) with 
taxes payable in 2023.  
 
3. The City Clerk shall forthwith transmit a certified duplicate of this assessment to the County 

Auditor to be extended on the property tax lists of the County.  Such assessments shall be collected and paid 
over in the same manner as other municipal taxes. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 14th  day of May, 2020. 
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       CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Thomas Terry, City Administrator/City Clerk 
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EXHIBIT A 
 
[attached First Amendment] 

























































  PID #

 Stormwater 

Trunk Fee

Sanitary 

Sewer Trunk 

Fee

Water Trunk 

Fee Park Fee

Street Light 

Costs Total Per Lot

230630010 Lot 1 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630020 Lot 2 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630030 Lot 3 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630040 Lot 4 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630050 Lot 5 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630060 Lot 6 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630070 Lot 7 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630080 Lot 8 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630090 Lot 9 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630100 Lot 10 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630110 Lot 11 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630120 Lot 12 $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

230630130 Lot 13 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630140 Lot 14 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630150 Lot 15 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630160 Lot 16 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630170 Lot 17 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630180 Lot 18 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630190 Lot 19 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

230630200 Lot 20 $594.58 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.66

$11,891.71 $81,120.00 $72,300.00 $40,000.00 $1,041.60 $206,353.31
5.76% 39.31% 35.04% 19.38% 0.50% 100.00%

Original Assessments

 Stormwater 

Trunk Fee

Sanitary 

Sewer Trunk 

Fee

Water Trunk 

Fee Park Fee

Street Light 

Costs Total Per Lot

Total Assessment Per Lot $594.59 $4,056.00 $3,615.00 $2,000.00 $52.08 $10,317.67

Percent of Total Assessment 5.76% 39.31% 35.04% 19.38% 0.50% 100.00%

Assessments Paid With 2020 Taxes $66,761.60

$3,847.36 $26,244.79 $23,391.25 $12,941.22 $336.99 $66,761.60

5.76% 39.31% 35.04% 19.38% 0.50% 100.00%

Balance After 2020 Taxes Are Paid $139,591.71

$8,044.44 $54,875.18 $48,908.72 $27,058.77 $704.61 $139,591.71

5.76% 39.31% 35.04% 19.38% 0.50% 100.00%

Christmas Pines ‐ Assessments for Development Fees
Approved by Elko New Market City Council 4/25/19



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Amending Resolution 18-03 Concerning Appointment of Planning 

Commissioners and Parks & Recreation Commissioner 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 
REQUESTED ACTION: Approve Resolution 20-31Amending Resolution 18-03 Concerning 

Appointment of Planning Commissioners and Parks & Recreation 
Commissioner 

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND: 
The Planning and Parks and Recreation Commissioners serve three year staggered terms 
which expire at the end of March.  In 2018, Planning Commissioners Steve Thompson and 
Brad Smith along with Parks and Recreation Commissioner Emily Dornseif were reappointed 
to three year terms which should have expired March 31, 2021.  When Resolution 18-03 and 
Staff Memorandum were presented to the City Council on January 11, 2018, there was an 
error in the date for the terms of these Commissioners. The date of the term expiration for the 
Commissioners was expire March 31, 2020 and should have been March 31, 2021.  
Commissioner Steve Thompson has since resigned his position. Melissa Hanson was 
appointed to fulfill the balance of Commissioner Thompson’s unexpired term and the date was 
corrected to March 31, 2021. However, the terms for Commissioners Smith and Dornseif were 
not corrected.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The City Council is being asked to adopt Resolution 20-31 correcting the terms of Planning 
Commissioner Smith and Parks and Recreation Commissioner Dornsief to expire on March 31, 
2021. 
 
 
Attachments: 

• Resolution 20-31 Amending Resolutions 18-03 concerning appointments of Planning 
Commissioner and Parks & Recreation Commissioner 
 

 
 



 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-31 

 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 18-03 CONCERNING APPOINTMENTS 
OF PLANNING COMMISSIONER AND PARKS AND RECREATION 

COMMISSIONER 
   
 WHEREAS, Resolution 18-03 reappointed planning commissioners and a parks and recreation 
commissioner to new terms on the Planning Commission and Parks and Recreation Commission but 
erroneously provided the extent of those terms;  
 

WHEREAS, the terms of Planning Commissioners Steve Thompson and Brad Smith expired 
March 31, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the term of Parks & Recreation Commissioner Emily Dornseif expired March 31, 
2018; and 

 
WHEREAS, Steve Thompson resigned his possession as a Planning Commissioner effective 

September 25, 2018 and Resolution No. 18-70 correctly identified the term of Steve Thompson in 
appointing Melissa Hanson to fulfill the relevant term; 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Elko New Market is authorized to appoint members 
to the Elko New Market Planning Commission and Parks & Recreation Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the individuals identified in this Resolution desire to be appointed to the positions 

and for the terms identified; 
   
 WHEREAS, this resolution is intended to amend and restate Resolution No. 18-70 to correct the 
references to the new terms; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Elko New 
Market, Minnesota: 
 

1. Brad Smith is hereby reappointed to the Elko New Market Planning Commission for a three year 
term ending March 31, 2021. 

 
2. Emily Dornseif is hereby reappointed to the Elko New Market Parks & Recreation Commission 

for a three year term ending March 31, 2021. 
 



 ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2020 by the City Council of the City of Elko New Market. 
 
        

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 

 
       BY: ___________________________ 
        Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Thomas Terry, City Administrator/City Clerk 



 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-32 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE  
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

   
  WHEREAS, the terms of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Mike Sutton and Eve 
Zahratka expires March 31, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Elko New Market is authorized to appoint 
members to the Elko New Market Parks and Recreation Commission; and 
   
  WHEREAS, a Committee appointed by the Elko New Market City Council interviewed 
candidates for the vacant positions on the  Parks and Recreation Commission and has selected Mike 
Sutton for reappointment and Dawn Vernon for appointment to the Parks & Recreation Commission and 
determined that they are eligible to act as members of the Elko New Market Parks and Recreation 
Commission. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Elko 
New Market, Minnesota: 
 

Mike Sutton is hereby reappointed to the Elko New Market Parks and Recreation Commission for 
a three-year term ending March 31, 2023. 
 
Dawn Vernon is hereby appointed to the Elko New Market Parks and Recreation Commission for 
a three-year term ending March 31, 2023. 

 
  ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2020 by the City Council of the City of Elko New 
Market. 
 
 
        

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 

 
       BY: ___________________________ 
        Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________ 
Tom Terry, City Administrator/Clerk 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Appointment of Parks and Recreation Commission Members 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Mark Nagel, Assistant City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 20-32 Appointing Members to the Parks and 

Recreation Commission 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



 
BACKGROUND: 
The Parks & Recreation Commissioners serve three-year staggered terms which expire at the 
end of March. In 2020, the terms will expire for Parks and Recreation Commissioners Mike 
Sutton and Eve Zahratka.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
In February, Staff requested Council direction on whether to reappoint the current 
Commissioners or post the positions.  Council directed Staff to accept applications for the two 
(2) openings. The Council appointed a Committee consisting of Councilmembers Timmerman 
and Novak, along with Assistant City Administrator Nagel, to interview the three applicants. 
Those interviews were conducted on Friday, April 24th at City Hall.  After further discussion on 
Monday, April 27th, the Committee is recommending that Mike Sutton be reappointed and 
Dawn Vernon be appointed to the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
Council is being asked to adopt Resolution 20-32 reappointing Mike Sutton and appointing 
Dawn Vernon to the Parks and Recreation Commission for a three-year term ending on March 
31, 2023 or until a replacement is appointed. 
 
 
Attachment: 
Resolution 20-32 Appointing Members to the Parks and Recreation Commission 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Grading Permit 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Renee Christianson, Community Development Specialist 
REQUESTED ACTION: Approve R & F Properties Grading Permit 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
R & F Properties (AKA Elko Speedway) submitted an application for grading permit to allow fill 
to be placed in a certain area within their property.  R & F Properties applied for, and was 
granted, the exact same permit in 2019.  The permit was granted for a one year period of time 
but the fill/grading was not completed and the permit expired on April 25, 2020.  The applicant 
is now applying for another grading permit to complete the same work as originally intended.    
 
The area in which they are proposing to fill was formerly known as the motocross track, and is 
currently designated as an overflow parking area.  Elko Speedway operates by way of Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) zoning.  This is a special zoning district that allows uses not typical to 
a traditional zoning district.  Elko Speedway, and the uses that occur on the overall property, 
have continued to change and evolve over the years.  The PUD was completely amended and 
restated on March 23, 2017.  The restated PUD outlines all of the permitted uses on the site 
and well as approved site plans.   
 
The area in which R & F Properties is currently proposing to place fill is designated as an 
overflow parking area (South Lot) on the approved PUD (see attached drawings).  The area is 
used for overflow parking approximately once each year, typically during the Eve of 
Destruction event.  This could change from year to year depending on the events that are 
scheduled at the track.  However, in recent years the area has been used on average once per 
year.  A portion of the area is also utilized for the parking of construction equipment associated 
with Ryan Contracting.  
 
Section 11-3-5 (F) and 11-3-1 of the City Code require that for grading permit applications 
involving 1,000 cubic yards of fill or more, the application must be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission.  On April 28, 2020 the Elko New Market Planning Commission considered the 
application, and has recommended approval of the request with conditions, as follows:   

 
1) Approval is based on the grading plan containing 1 sheet, prepared by Probe 

Engineering, dated 4/10/19 and revised 4/16/19. 
2) Approval is based on the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan containing 10 sheets, 

prepared by Probe Engineering, and dated 4/16/19. 
3) The applicant shall comply with all recommendations of the City Engineer. 
4) The applicant shall enter into a Grading Authorization Permit with the City. 
5) Fill shall be stockpiled until it can be equally spread over the entire overflow parking 

area; the required overflow parking area must be maintained and usable throughout the 
summer months. 

6) All access to the site for purposes of filling and grading shall be via France Avenue 
through the R & F Properties property.  No access to the site shall occur on Whispering 
Hills Lane. 

7) Fill shall be leveled and the site shall be fully stabilized by the end of the construction 
season, 2020. 

8) The permit shall be granted for a period not to exceed one-year in length. 
 

The application has been reviewed by the City Engineer and he has recommended approval in 
his memorandum dated April 22, 2019.   
 
Staff and the Planning Commission have recommended that the site be stabilized by 
November 30, 2020 and that the permit be approved for a one year period of time.  The 



applicant understands the recommendation and accepts the stipulation and term of the 
proposed grading permit. 

 
CITY ATTORNEY RECOMMENDATION: 
The City Attorney has reviewed all information relating to the request, has drafted the attached 
grading permit, and is recommending that the City Council approve the grading permit. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
The City Council is being asked to approve the attached grading permit for R & F Properties. 
 
Attachments: 
(Draft) Grading Permit (201905v3), including grading & erosion control plan and SWPPP plan 
(Draft) Planning Commission Minutes - 4/28/20 
City Engineer Memorandum – 4/22/19 
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GRADING PERMIT 
 
 
 PERMIT dated __________________, issued by the CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, a 
Minnesota political subdivision ("City"), R&F PROPERTIES, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability 
company (“Developer”). 
 
 1. Request for Grading Permit.  The Developer has asked the City to approve a grading 
permit to allow fill to be placed on a portion of the land legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto 
(“Subject Property”). 
 
 2. Conditions of Approval.  The City hereby approves the permit on condition that the 
Developer abide by its terms and furnish the security required by it. 
 
 3. Plans.  The Subject Property shall be graded in accordance with the following plans on 
file with the City: 
 

Plan A -- Grading and Erosion Control Plan, prepared by Probe Engineering Co., Inc., dated 
April 10, 2019  

Plan B – Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan for Overflow Parking Area (Elko Market 
Place), prepared by Probe Engineering Co., Inc., dated April 16, 2019 
 
 4. Time of Performance.  The Developer shall complete the grading and erosion control 
in the Subject Property by May 13, 2021.  The Developer may, however, request an extension of time 
from the City. If an extension is granted, it shall be conditioned upon updating the security posted by 
the Developer to reflect cost increases and the extended completion date. 
 
 5. Erosion Control.  Plan A shall be implemented by the Developer and inspected and 
approved by the City. The City may impose additional erosion control requirements if they would be 
beneficial. All areas disturbed by the excavation and backfilling operations shall be reseeded within 14 
days after the completion of the work in that area.  Except as otherwise provided in the erosion control 
plan, seed shall be rye grass or other fast-growing seed suitable to the existing soil to provide a 
temporary ground cover as rapidly as possible. All seeded areas shall be mulched and disc anchored as 
necessary for seed retention. The parties recognize that time is of the essence in controlling erosion. If 
the Developer does not comply with the erosion control plan and schedule or supplementary 
instructions received from the City, the City may take such action as it deems appropriate to control 
erosion. The City will endeavor to notify the Developer in advance of any proposed action, but failure 
of the City to do so will not affect the Developer's and City's rights or obligations hereunder. If the 
Developer does not reimburse the City for any cost the City incurred for such work within thirty (30) 
days, the City may draw down the financial securities to pay any costs. No development will be 
allowed and no building permits will be issued unless the property is in full compliance with the 
erosion control requirements. 
 
 6. Grading Plan.  The Subject Property shall be graded in accordance with the grading 
plan, Plan A. Well established vegetation over 95% or more of the area shall be required at completion 
of the grading.  Within thirty (30) days after completion of the grading and before the City releases the 
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security, the Developer shall provide the City with an "as constructed" grading plan and a certification 
by a registered land surveyor or engineer that all ponds, swales, and ditches have been constructed on 
public easements or land owned by the City. 
 
 7. Special Conditions.  As a condition to the issuance of this Grading Permit, Developer 
shall comply with the following: 
 

A. Fill shall be stockpiled solely in the area identified in the grading plan which is located 
within a portion of the West Lot of the Overflow Parking Area until the fill can be 
equally spread over the entire West lot of the Overflow Parking Area.  The Overflow 
Parking Area is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
B. The West Lot Overflow Parking Area must be maintained and usable throughout the 

summer months. 
 
C. All access to the West Lot for purposes of filling and grading shall be via France 

Avenue through the Subject Property.  No access to the West Lot for purposes of this 
grading permit shall occur on Whispering Hills Lane. 

 
D. Fill shall be leveled and the site shall be fully stabilized by November 30, 2020. 

 
 8. Clean up.  The Developer shall promptly clean dirt and debris from streets that has 
resulted from construction work by the Developer, its agents or assigns. 
 
 9. Security.  To guarantee compliance with the terms of this permit, the Developer shall 
furnish the City with a cash escrow or irrevocable letter of credit, in the form attached hereto, from a 
bank ("security") for $10,000.00. The bank and form of the letter of credit shall be subject to the 
approval of the City.  
 
 10. Responsibility for Costs. 
 
  A.  Except as otherwise specified herein, the Developer shall pay all costs incurred by it 
or the City in conjunction with the grading and erosion control, including but not limited to legal, 
planning, engineering and inspection expenses incurred in connection with approval and acceptance of 
the permit, the preparation of this permit, and all costs and expenses incurred by the City in monitoring 
and inspecting the grading and erosion control.  The City will make reasonable efforts to notify 
Developer prior to conducting inspections or taking enforcement actions that will be billed to 
Developer, but does not guaranty that such notice will be provided.  The failure to provide such notice 
does not restrict the City from conducting inspections required in connection with the grading permit 
or negate Developer’s responsibility for the costs. 
 
  B.  The Developer shall hold the City and its officers and employees harmless from 
claims made by itself and third parties for damages sustained or costs incurred resulting from permit 
approval and work done in conjunction with it. The Developer shall indemnify the City and its officers 
and employees for all costs, damages, or expenses which the City may pay or incur in consequence of 
such claims, including attorney's fees. 
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  C.  The Developer shall reimburse the City for costs incurred in the enforcement of this 
permit, including engineering and attorney's fees. 
 
  D.  The Developer shall pay in full all bills submitted to it by the City for obligations 
incurred under this permit within thirty (30) days after receipt. If the bills are not paid on time, the City 
may halt all work and construction. 
 
 11. Developer's Default.  In the event of default by the Developer as to any of the work to 
be performed by it hereunder, the City may, at its option, perform the work and the Developer shall 
promptly reimburse the City for any expense incurred by the City, provided the Developer is first 
given notice of the work in default, not less than 48 hours in advance. This permit is a license for the 
City to act, and it shall not be necessary for the City to seek a court order for permission to enter the 
land. When the City does any such work, the City may, in addition to its other remedies, assess the cost 
in whole or in part. 
 
 12. Acknowledgment.  Developer acknowledges that approval of a grading permit for the 
Subject Property does not constitute a guarantee by the City of any future subdivision approvals and 
that Developer grades the Subject Property at its own risk. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

[Signature Pages to Follow] 
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      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      BY: ____________________________________ 
 (SEAL)     Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
      AND ____________________________________ 
       Tom Terry, City Clerk 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ( ss. 
COUNTY OF SCOTT  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______________, 
2020, by Joe Julius and by Tom Terry, respectively the Mayor and Acting City Clerk of the City of Elko 
New Market, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation and pursuant to the 
authority granted by its City Council. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      NOTARY PUBLIC 
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DEVELOPER: 
      R & F PROPERTIES, LLC 
 
      BY: ____________________________________ 
       Its:_______________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ( ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______________, 
2020, by ______________________________, the ______________________________ of R & F 
PROPERTIES, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, on its behalf. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
DRAFTED BY: 
CAMPBELL KNUTSON 
Professional Association 

Grand Oak Office Center I 
860 Blue Gentian Road, Suite 290 
Eagan, Minnesota  55121 
Telephone:  (651) 452-5000 
AMP 
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EXHIBIT A 

TO GRADING PERMIT 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 
 

Lot 1, Block 2, Elko Market Place, Scott County, Minnesota, according to the recorded plat thereof.
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EXHIBIT B 
 

OVERFLOW PARKING AREA 

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT 
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      ___________________ 
      Date: _________________ 
 
TO: City of Elko New Market 
 601 Main St., P.O. Box 99  
 Elko New Market, Minnesota 55020-0099. 

Dear Sir or Madam: 
 
 We hereby issue, for the account of ____(Name of Developer)_______ and in your favor, our Irrevocable 
Letter of Credit in the amount of $______________, available to you by your draft drawn on sight on the 
undersigned bank. 
 
 The draft must: 
 
 a) Bear the clause, "Drawn under Letter of Credit No. __________, dated ________________, 20___, of 
____(Name of Bank)____"; 
 b) Be signed by the Mayor or City Administrator of the City of Elko New Market. 
 c) Be presented for payment at ___(Address of Bank)___, on or before 4:00 p.m. on November 30, 20__. 
 
 This Letter of Credit shall automatically renew for successive one-year terms unless, at least forty-five 
(45) days prior to the next annual renewal date (which shall be November 30 of each year), the Bank delivers 
written notice to the Elko New Market City Administrator that it intends to modify the terms of, or cancel, this 
Letter of Credit. Written notice is effective if sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, and deposited in the U.S. 
Mail, at least forty-five (45) days prior to the next annual renewal date addressed as follows:  Elko New Market 
City Administrator, P.O. Box 99, Elko, MN 55020-0058, and is actually received by the City Administrator at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the renewal date. 
 
 This Letter of Credit sets forth in full our understanding which shall not in any way be modified, amended, 
amplified, or limited by reference to any document, instrument, or agreement, whether or not referred to herein. 
 
 This Letter of Credit is not assignable. This is not a Notation Letter of Credit. More than one draw may be 
made under this Letter of Credit. 
 
 This Letter of Credit shall be governed by the most recent revision of the Uniform Customs and Practice 
for Documentary Credits, International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 600. 
 
 We hereby agree that a draft drawn under and in compliance with this Letter of Credit shall be duly 
honored upon presentation. 
 
 
     BY: ____________________________________ 
      Its ______________________________ 
                Authorized Insurance Representative 
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9. GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider Grading Permit – R & F Properties 
 
Christianson presented the agenda item, which is a request for grading permit for R & F 
properties, noting that the exact same permit had been applied for and issued approximately 
one year ago but the work was never completed.  The owner is now reapplying for the exact 
same permit.  She stated the property is currently home to the Elko Speedway and Ryan 
Contracting and zoned PUD which is a special zoning district that allows for a variety of 
specific uses.  The owner is proposing to bring in fill to level off an area on the property.  
The area proposed for fill is currently designated as an overflow parking area in the 
approved PUD, and guided by the City’s Comprehensive Plan to future residential uses.  A 
site drawing was displayed showing the location of the proposed fill. 
 
It was moved by Kruckman and seconded by Hanson to recommend approval of grading 
permit #G1-2020 to the City Council with the following conditions: 
 
1. Approval is based on the grading plan containing 1 sheet, prepared by Probe 

Engineering, dated 4/10/19 and revised 4/16/19. 
2. Approval is based on the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan containing 10 sheets, 

prepared by Probe Engineering, and dated 4/16/19. 
3. The applicant shall comply with all recommendations of the City Engineer, and 

conditions contained in his review memorandum dated April 22, 2019. 
4. The applicant shall enter into a Grading Authorization Permit with the City. 
5. Fill shall be stockpiled until it can be equally spread over the entire overflow area, so the 

required overflow parking area is maintained. 
6. All access to the site for purposes of filling and grading shall be via France Avenue 

through the R & F Properties property.  No access to the site shall occur on Whispering 
Hills Lane. 

7. Fill shall be leveled and the site shall be fully stabilized by the end of the construction 
season, 2020. 

8. The permit shall be granted for a period not to exceed one-year in length.   
 

And noting the following: 
 

1. The City’s Comprehensive Plan depicts a future extension of Whispering Hills Lane, 
easterly, into the area proposed to be filled to eventually connect with France Avenue / 
Main Street.  Future extension of the roadway will likely require removal or moving of 
some of the proposed fill at applicant / developer’s expense. 

 
Commissioner Schuenke asked what the property has been used for in the past and what the 
future plans are for the property.  Christianson explained that the uses on the site have 
evolved over time; at one time the area was utilized as a motocross track, and it is currently 
used for parking of construction equipment for Ryan Contracting and overflow parking for 
Elko Speedway.  Schuenke expressed concern over the use of the area, as at times the area is 
heavily lit up which causes concern for the residents.  Christianson and Terry explained that 
the overflow parking and construction parking is already permitted by the land use approvals 
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and that bringing in fill on the site will not change that.  Also noted was that the City 
Engineer has recommended approval of the grading plan.    
 
After discussion there was a roll call vote on the motion: 

Commissioner Hanson - Aye 
Commissioner Humphrey – Aye 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith - Aye 

Motion carried: (5-0) 
 

10. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A. Tip of the Month – Meeting Conduct on Video 
 
Christianson stated that Planning Commission meetings going forward will be videotaped 
and posted to the City’s website, so miscellaneous tips regarding meeting conduct on video 
had been provided to the Planning Commission in a memorandum. 

 
B. Roundabout Update 

 
Scott County has awarded the construction contract for the CSAH 2 & 91 roundabout to 
local contractor Ryan Contracting.  The original construction schedule is being moved up 
because of the decrease in overall traffic and elimination of school bus traffic through the 
intersection as a result of the Governor’s stay-at-home orders.  The intersection could close 
as early as May 18th and reopen in late July, all dependent upon weather conditions.  

 
C. Police Department / City Campus Update 
 
The City Council has authorized an addition onto city hall for police department office and 
garage space.  The construction contract has been awarded to Greystone Construction from 
Shakopee.  Information was also provided regarding the City master campus plan, which 
was adopted by the City in 2008 and used as a guiding document of the City.  The plan 
identifies the area around the current city hall / fire station as the ultimate campus for police, 
fire, city offices, and possible community center locations.    

 
D. Community Development Updates & Reports 
 
A memorandum containing updates was included in the Planning Commission packet.   

 
E. Planning Commission Questions and Comments 
 
Commissioner Smith asked for additional information regarding the City cost for the 
roundabout.  Additional detailed cost information will be included in the next Planning 
Commission packet. 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

 

Date: April 22, 2019 

To: Renee Christianson, Community Development Specialist 

From: Rich Revering, PE  

Subject: Elko Marketplace Overflow Parking Grading Permit Review Memo  
 
 
 

A review has been completed of the grading plan dated 04/16/2019 and SWPPP dated 

04/17/2019 prepared by Probe Engineering.  The documents relate to the apparent import 

as material becomes available, grading, stabilization, and interim storage of fill intended to 

be placed on parking areas elsewhere on the property at a future date.   

 

Attention is directed to Chapter 11 in the City’s Zoning Ordinance   

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=898 for background 

regulations against which these plans were reviewed. 

The plans appear to be in keeping with the requirements in the code.  We recommend 

approval subject to the following conditions: 

1. We recommend the applicant be reminded to observe the five-foot separation between 

redundant silt fences required where grading activity occurs within 50 feet of the surrounding 

wetland boundaries.  This dimension scales on the plans, but is not noted. 

2. We recommend the City require an escrow of $10,000 to be held until the site is graded to the 

contours shown and fully stabilized with established vegetation.  This escrow would not be used 

to complete the import or grading – it would only be used, if necessary, to mitigate hazardous 

slopes, maintain or repair silt fence and establish vegetation to stabilize the site should the 

applicant fail to do so in a timely manner. 



M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
TO:  Elko New Market Mayor and City Councilmembers  
 
CC:  Tom Terry, City Administrator 
  
FROM:  Andrea McDowell Poehler 
 
DATE:  May 14, 2020 
 
RE: Affidavit of Thomas Terry Regarding Paul Street  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Bernie Mahowald owns property in the City located at 580 Paul Street. Currently, the property 
has no direct access to city right of way other than a driveway access to Paul Street.  Paul Street 
is not a dedicated right of way, rather it was established through public use pursuant to Minn. 
Stat. 160.05, which provides that any right of way used by the public and maintained by the City 
for 6 years is considered public right of way.   
 
Mr. Mahowald is attempting to develop is property which requires the establishment of access to 
right of way for title purposes.  While Mr. Mahowald has a driveway easement over the abutting 
property that connects with Paul Street, the actual driveway is not within the easement.  He is 
working with the abutting property owners to amend the driveway easement. 
 
To provide evidence of the ability to access Paul Street, Mr. Mahowald’s attorney has also 
requested an affidavit from the City Administrator concerning the facts to support the 
establishment of City right of way for Paul Street pursuant to Minn. Stat. 160.05.  A copy of the 
Affidavit is attached hereto.   
 
Staff has reviewed the assertions in the Affidavit and the City Administrator is comfortable with 
executing the Affidavit. 
 
ACTION 

Motion to approve execution of the Affivadit by Thomas Terry.  

ATTACHMENTS 

Affidavit of Thomas Terry 
  



AFFIDAVIT OF THOMAS TERRY,  
CITY ADMINISTRATOR OF THE CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 

  

Thomas Terry, being first duly sworn on oath, states as follows:  

1.      I am the City Administrator for the City of Elko New Market (the “City”), and I 
have personal knowledge of the facts set forth in this Affidavit.   

2.      I am familiar with the road known as “Paul Street,” which is depicted in the survey 
drawing attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

3.      Paul Street, as depicted on Exhibit A, is the means of access to properties described 
as: 

 
That part of the South Half of the South Half of the Northeast Quarter of the 
Northwest Quarter (S 1/2 of S 1/2 of NE 1/4  of NW 1/4), of Section 28, Township 
113, Range 21, Scott County, Minnesota described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southeast Corner of said South Half of the South Half of the 
Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (S 1/2 of S 1/2 of NE 1/4 of NW 1/4); 
thence West along the South line of said South Half of the South Half of the 
Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (S 1/2 of S 1/2 of NE 1/4 of NW 1/4) a 
distance of 412.00 feet; thence North parallel with the East line of said Northeast 
Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NE 1/4 of NW 1/4), a distance of 330.56 feet to 
the North line of said South Half of the South Half of the Northeast Quarter of the 
Northwest Quarter (S 1/2 of S 1/2 of NE 1/4 of NW 1/4 ); thence East along said 
North line a distance of 412.01 feet to the Northeast corner of said South Half of the 
South Half of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, thence  South along 
the East line of said Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter a distance of 
331.02 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Together with an easement for driveway purposes over the North 33 feet of the West 
140.22 feet of the East 552.23 feet of the South Half of the South Half of the 
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Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (S 1/2 of S 1/2 of NE 1/4 of NW 1/4), 
Section 28, Township 113, Range 21, Scott County, Minnesota.   
 
PID:  23-92800-40 

4.       I know from personal knowledge and from the records of the City that the 
bituminous roadway depicted in Exhibit A, together with the areas beyond the bituminous 
surface necessary for maintenance of Paul Street, was used and kept in repair and worked for at 
least six years continuously by the City.  

5.      I make this affidavit for purposes of confirming that, pursuant to Minn. Stat. 
Section 160.05, Paul Street, as depicted in said Exhibit A, is deemed dedicated to the public to 
the width of the bituminous surface shown on Exhibit A, together with the areas beyond the 
bituminous surface necessary for maintenance of Paul Street.   

6.      I have been authorized by the City to make this affidavit.  

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

 

      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
Its:  City Administrator 

  

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of ________, 2020 by Thomas Terry, the 
City Administrator of the City of Elko New Market. 

 

                                                     __ 
      Notary Public 
 
 
 
DRAFTED BY/RETURN TO: 
 
Beisel & Dunlevy, P.A. (BNB) 
730 Second Avenue South, Suite 282 
Minneapolis, MN  55402 
(612) 436-2222 
File No. 10533 
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EXHIBIT A 

 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Noise Control Ordinance 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Renee Christianson, Community Development Specialist 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Ordinance No. 212 Amending Title 5 Chapter 5 of the City 

Code Concerning Noise Control  
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

 
 
 
 
 



 
BACKGROUND 
Title 5 Chapter 5 of the City Code regulates noise within the City.  Included in the code are 
restrictions regarding permissible hours for certain noise related activities.  City staff are 
suggesting that exemptions be made for hours relating to certain activities, including public 
(road) construction projects, equipment used for snow removal, and emergency public works 
operations.  Staff has drafted the attached Ordinance No. 212 amending Title 5 Section 5 of 
the City Code to reflect the suggested exemptions.    
 
CITY ATTORNEY RECOMMENDATION 
The City Attorney has reviewed the draft ordinance and has no concerns regarding its 
adoption. 
 
REQUETED ACTION 
The City Council is being asked to adopt Ordinance #212 Amending Title 5 Chapter 5 of the 
City Code Concerning Noise Control. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Draft Ordinance No. 212  
 
 
  



 
Title 5 Chapter 5-2 

Elko New Market City Code 
 

 
5-5-2: HOURS RESTRICTED FOR CERTAIN OPERATIONS: 
 

A. Domestic Power Equipment: Except as otherwise provided herein, no person shall operate a 
power lawn mower, power hedge clipper, chain saw, mulcher, garden tiller, edger, drill, or other 
similar domestic power maintenance equipment except between the hours of seven o'clock 
(7:00) A.M. and ten o'clock (10:00) P.M. on any weekday or between the hours of nine o'clock 
(9:00) A.M. and nine o'clock (9:00) P.M. on any weekend or holiday. Snow removal equipment 
is exempt from this provision. Mowing of golf courses may occur between the hours of six 
o'clock (6:00) A.M. and ten o'clock (10:00) P.M. on any weekday or between the hours of six 
o'clock (6:00) A.M. and nine o'clock (9:00) P.M. on any weekend or holiday. (Ord. 147, 1-12-
2017) 

 
B. Refuse Hauling: Except as otherwise limited for licensed hauling under chapter 1, article A of 

this title, no person shall collect or remove garbage or refuse in any residential district except 
between the hours of seven o'clock (7:00) A.M. and ten o'clock (10:00) P.M. on any weekday or 
between the hours of nine o'clock (9:00) A.M. and nine o'clock (9:00) P.M. on any weekend or 
holiday. 

 
C. Construction Activities: No person shall engage in or permit construction activities involving the 

use of any kind of electric, diesel, or gas powered machine or other power equipment except 
between the hours of seven o'clock (7:00) A.M. and ten o'clock (10:00) P.M. on any weekday or 
between the hours of nine o'clock (9:00) A.M. and nine o'clock (9:00) P.M. on any weekend or 
holiday. (2011 Code) 

 
D. Exemptions:  The following activities are specifically exempted from the prohibitions under this 

section:  Public works construction by Federal, State, County, or City authorities or their 
contractors and subcontractors as approved by the City Engineer; equipment used for snow 
removal; emergency public works repair/construction. 

 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 212 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET  

CITY CODE TITLE 5, CHAPTER 5 CONCERNING NOISE CONTROL 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1. Section 5-5-2 of the Elko New Market City Code is hereby amended to add the 
following section: 
 

D. Exemptions:  The following activities are specifically exempted from the prohibitions 
under this section:  Public works construction by Federal, State, County, or City 
authorities or their contractors and subcontractors as approved by the City Engineer; 
equipment used for snow removal; emergency public works repair/construction. 

 
SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and publication. 
 

 ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2020 by the City Council for the City of Elko New 
Market. 
 
       CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
       BY: ________________________________ 
               Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Terry, City Administrator/Clerk 
         
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance Amendments Concerning Nuisance Abatement and 

Code Enforcement 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Haley Sevening, Planner I 
REQUESTED ACTION: 1. Adopt Ordinance No. 213 Amending City of Elko New Market City 

Code Title 6, Chapter 5B Concerning Abatement of Public 
Nuisances 
2. Adopt Summary Ordinance No. 214  
3. Adopt Ordinance No. 215 Amending City of Elko New Market City 
Code Title 11, Chapter 3 Concerning Enforcement of Zoning 
Regulations 
4. Adopt Summary Ordinance No. 216 

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 



 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

 
BACKGROUND 
In preparation for “Code Enforcement Season”, Staff began reviewing ordinances related to 
enforcement of the City Code. Specifically, Section 6-5B-8 concerning nuisance abatement 
procedures and Section 11-3-1 (I) concerning enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance were 
reviewed. Section 6-5B-8 was last amended in 2011 and Section 11-3-1 (I) dates back to 
December 2006, when Elko and New Market merged. Upon review by Staff and consultation 
with the City Attorney, amendments were drafted to both sections to “clean them up” and 
improve readability.  
 
Abatement procedures for public nuisances are contained in Section 6-5B-8 of the City Code. 
The Public Nuisance Ordinance is under the purview of the City Council and is enforced by the 
Police Department. Enforcement procedures for zoning regulations are contained in Section 
11-3-1 (I) of the City Code. The Zoning Ordinance is under the purview of the Planning 
Commission and is enforced by Community Development Staff. The referenced code section 
are attached to this report.  
 
DISCUSSION 
Upon review of the existing ordinances with Staff and consultation with the City Attorney, it is 
Staff’s recommendation that both ordinances be amended. 
 
In regards to the Public Nuisance Ordinance, it is Staff’s recommendation that Section 6-5B-7 
and 6-5B-8 be amended primarily to improve readability and better outline the abatement 
process. Proposed amendments are contained in the attached Draft Ordinance No. 213. 
Notable changes include: 
 

• The addition of a standard 10 day timeframe for the property owner/occupant to abate 
the nuisance (unless otherwise determined by the enforcing officer). 

• The requirement that the property owner/occupant must request a City Council hearing 
to appeal an abatement Order. 

• The ability for the enforcing officer to proceed with abatement without City Council 
approval (unless a hearing is requested). 

 
In regards to the Zoning Ordinance, it is Staff’s recommendation that Section 11-3-1 (I) be 
deleted in its entirety and replaced with simpler, more condense language that outlines 
administration and enforcement procedures. Proposed amendments are contained in the 
attached Draft Ordinance No. 215. Notable changes include: 
 

• Removal of the enforcement procedure language. 
• Removal of the enforcement remedies language. 
• The addition of duties of the Zoning Administrator. 

 
It should be noted that the City Attorney opined that most of the existing language in this 
section could be removed because it outlines internal Staff processes rather than City 
requirements. These processes will continue as they have in the past, despite removal from 
the ordinance. For example, the enforcement remedies contained in the existing ordinance are 
all tools in the City’s toolbox, but are not required enforcement actions.  



 
A public hearing was held before the Planning Commission on April 28, 2020 to receive 
comment on the proposed amendments to Section 11-3-1 (I). No comments were received. 
Based on the information provided to the Planning Commission, the recommendations of City 
Staff, and discussion at the meeting, the Planning Commission has unanimously 
recommended approval of the request to amend Section 11-3-1 (I) of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance as depicted in draft Ordinance No. 215.  
 
At this time, the City Council is being asked to adopt draft Ordinance No. 213, draft Ordinance 
No. 215, and their associated Summary Ordinances No. 214 and No. 216. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The budget impact for this item to date is the cost of City staff time and City Attorney/Assistant 
City Attorney review time. Future budget implications will include the cost to revise the City 
Code. 
 
Attachments: 
Section 6-5B-8 of the City Code 
Section 11-3-1 (I) of the City Code 
Draft Ordinance No. 213 
Draft Summary Ordinance No. 214 
Draft Ordinance No. 215 
Draft Summary Ordinance No. 216 
  



Section 6-5B-8 of the City Code 
 
A. Notices: Written notice of violation; notice of the time, date, place and subject of any hearing 
before the city council; notice of city council order; and notice of motion for summary 
enforcement hearing shall be given as set forth in this subsection. 
 
1. Notice Of Violation: Written notice of violation shall be served by a peace officer on the 
owner of record or occupant of the premises either in person or by certified or registered mail. 
If the premises is not occupied, the owner of record is unknown, or the owner of record or 
occupant refuses to accept notice of violation, notice of violation shall be served by posting it 
on the premises. 
 
2. Notice Of Council Hearing: Written notice of any city council hearing to determine or abate a 
nuisance shall be served on the owner of record and occupant of the premises either in person 
or by certified or registered mail. If the premises is not occupied, the owner of record is 
unknown, or the owner of record or occupant refuses to accept notice of the city council 
hearing, notice of city council hearing shall be served by posting it on the premises. 
 
3. Notice Of Council Order: Except for those cases determined by the city to require summary 
enforcement, written notice of any city council order shall be made as provided in Minnesota 
statutes section 463.17 (hazardous and substandard building act), as it may be amended from 
time to time. 
 
4. Notice Of Motion For Summary Enforcement: Written notice of any motion for summary 
enforcement shall be made as provided in Minnesota statutes section 463.17 (hazardous and 
substandard building act), as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
B. Procedure: Whenever a peace officer determines that a public nuisance is being maintained 
or exists on the premises in the city, the officer shall notify in writing the owner of record or 
occupant of the premises of such fact and order that the nuisance be terminated or abated. 
The notice of violation shall specify the steps to be taken to abate the nuisance and the time 
within which the nuisance is to be abated. If there is not compliance with the notice of violation 
within the time specified, the officer shall report that fact forthwith to the city council. 
Thereafter, the city council may, after notice to the owner or occupant and an opportunity to be 
heard, determine that the condition identified in the notice of violation is a nuisance and further 
order that if the nuisance is not abated within the time prescribed by the city council, the city 
may seek injunctive relief by serving a copy of the city council order and notice of motion for 
summary enforcement. 
 
C. Emergencies; Summary Abatement: In cases of emergency, where delay in abatement 
required to complete the notice and procedure requirements set forth in subsections A and B 
of this section will permit a continuing nuisance to unreasonably endanger public health safety 
or welfare, the city council may order summary enforcement and abate the nuisance. To 
proceed with summary enforcement, the officer shall determine that a public nuisance exists or 
is being maintained on premises in the city and that delay in abatement of the nuisance will 
unreasonably endanger public health, safety or welfare. The officer shall notify in writing the 
occupant or owner of the premises of the nature of the nuisance and of the city's intention to 
seek summary enforcement and the time and place of the city council meeting to consider the 
question of summary enforcement. The city council shall determine whether or not the 



condition identified in the notice to the owner or occupant is a nuisance, whether public health, 
safety or welfare will be unreasonably endangered by delay in abatement required to complete 
the procedure set forth in subsection A of this section, and may order that the nuisance be 
immediately terminated or abated. If the nuisance is not immediately terminated or abated, the 
city council may order summary enforcement and abate the nuisance. 
 
D. Immediate Abatement: Nothing in this section shall prevent the city, without notice or other 
process, from immediately abating any condition which poses an imminent and serious hazard 
to human life or safety. 
 
Enforcement procedures for zoning regulations are contained in Section 11-3-1 (I) of the City 
Code. The Zoning Ordinance is under the purview of the Planning Commission and is enforced 
by Community Development Staff. It states: 
 
I. Enforcement: This title shall be administered and enforced by the zoning administrator. The 
zoning administrator may institute in the name of the city any appropriate actions or 
proceedings against a violator. Whenever a violation of this title occurs, or is alleged to have 
occurred, any person may file a written complaint. Such complaint shall state fully the causes 
and bases thereof and shall be filed with the zoning administrator. That person shall record 
properly such complaint, immediately investigate, and take action thereon as provided by this 
subsection. 
 
1. Enforcement Procedure: For the enforcement of the provisions of this title, the first zoning 
violation notice shall be sent by regular mail, and the second notice will be sent by certified 
mail or return receipt requested to the property owner at which the violation is taking place. A 
copy of the zoning violation notice shall be sent to the city council, planning commission, police 
chief, and city attorney. The zoning violation notice shall contain the following information: 
 
a. A description of the violation which is taking place. 
 
b. A picture (if possible) of the violation which is taking place. 
 
c. Location and/or address of the property at which the violation is taking place. 
 
d. Identification of the section of this title which is being violated. 
 
e. Date the violation was discovered. 
 
f. Steps necessary to correct the violation. 
 
g. Deadline by when the violation must be corrected, which is at the discretion of the zoning 
administrator, but which in no case may be longer than thirty (30) days from the date the first 
notice is mailed. 
 
2. Correction Of Violation: Correction of the violation in the manner stipulated by the zoning 
notice violation, at any point during this enforcement process, shall deem the zoning violation 
notice null and void, and enforcement activity shall cease. 
 



3. Failure To Correct Violation; Enforcement Remedies: Failure to correct the zoning violation 
shall result in the city pursuing enforcement action following notification to the property owner, 
with the city having the authority to carry out the following enforcement remedies: 
 
a. Withhold Permits: The city shall have the authority to withhold any permits or city approvals 
which are necessary until the violation is corrected to the city's satisfaction. 
 
b. Stop Work Order: The city shall have the authority to issue a stop work order on the subject 
violation. 
 
c. Abatement: The city shall have the authority to require that the violation be abated by 
completely removing or stopping the item or use which has been identified in the zoning 
violation notice. 
 
d. Injunctive Relief: The city shall have the authority to seek an injunction in court to stop any 
violation of this title. 
 
e. Civil Remedies: The city shall have the authority to institute appropriate civil action to 
enforce the provisions of this title, and shall recover reasonable court costs and attorney fees 
which are incurred due to the enforcement of the subject violation, at the discretion of the 
court. 
 
f. Assessment: The city shall have the authority to use the provisions of Minnesota statutes 
chapter 429, and assess any charge against the property benefited, and any such assessment 
shall, at the time at which taxes are certified to the county auditor, be certified for collection in 
the manner that other special assessments are so certified. 
 
g. Criminal Remedies: The city shall have the authority to institute appropriate misdemeanor 
criminal action for a violation of this title. 
 
h. Cumulative Remedies: The powers and remedies of this subsection I3 shall not be 
individually limited and are not exclusive. The powers and remedies of this subsection I3 are 
cumulative, and all power and remedies may apply, as well as any other remedies allowed 
under state law. 
  



Section 11-3-1 (I) of the City Code  
 
I. Enforcement: This title shall be administered and enforced by the zoning administrator. The 
zoning administrator may institute in the name of the city any appropriate actions or 
proceedings against a violator. Whenever a violation of this title occurs, or is alleged to have 
occurred, any person may file a written complaint. Such complaint shall state fully the causes 
and bases thereof and shall be filed with the zoning administrator. That person shall record 
properly such complaint, immediately investigate, and take action thereon as provided by this 
subsection. 
 
1. Enforcement Procedure: For the enforcement of the provisions of this title, the first zoning 
violation notice shall be sent by regular mail, and the second notice will be sent by certified 
mail or return receipt requested to the property owner at which the violation is taking place. A 
copy of the zoning violation notice shall be sent to the city council, planning commission, police 
chief, and city attorney. The zoning violation notice shall contain the following information: 
 
a. A description of the violation which is taking place. 
 
b. A picture (if possible) of the violation which is taking place. 
 
c. Location and/or address of the property at which the violation is taking place. 
 
d. Identification of the section of this title which is being violated. 
 
e. Date the violation was discovered. 
 
f. Steps necessary to correct the violation. 
 
g. Deadline by when the violation must be corrected, which is at the discretion of the zoning 
administrator, but which in no case may be longer than thirty (30) days from the date the first 
notice is mailed. 
 
2. Correction Of Violation: Correction of the violation in the manner stipulated by the zoning 
notice violation, at any point during this enforcement process, shall deem the zoning violation 
notice null and void, and enforcement activity shall cease. 
 
3. Failure To Correct Violation; Enforcement Remedies: Failure to correct the zoning violation 
shall result in the city pursuing enforcement action following notification to the property owner, 
with the city having the authority to carry out the following enforcement remedies: 
 
a. Withhold Permits: The city shall have the authority to withhold any permits or city approvals 
which are necessary until the violation is corrected to the city's satisfaction. 
 
b. Stop Work Order: The city shall have the authority to issue a stop work order on the subject 
violation. 
 
c. Abatement: The city shall have the authority to require that the violation be abated by 
completely removing or stopping the item or use which has been identified in the zoning 
violation notice. 



 
d. Injunctive Relief: The city shall have the authority to seek an injunction in court to stop any 
violation of this title. 
 
e. Civil Remedies: The city shall have the authority to institute appropriate civil action to 
enforce the provisions of this title, and shall recover reasonable court costs and attorney fees 
which are incurred due to the enforcement of the subject violation, at the discretion of the 
court. 
 
f. Assessment: The city shall have the authority to use the provisions of Minnesota statutes 
chapter 429, and assess any charge against the property benefited, and any such assessment 
shall, at the time at which taxes are certified to the county auditor, be certified for collection in 
the manner that other special assessments are so certified. 
 
g. Criminal Remedies: The city shall have the authority to institute appropriate misdemeanor 
criminal action for a violation of this title. 
 
h. Cumulative Remedies: The powers and remedies of this subsection I3 shall not be 
individually limited and are not exclusive. The powers and remedies of this subsection I3 are 
cumulative, and all power and remedies may apply, as well as any other remedies allowed 
under state law. 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 213 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF  

ELKO NEW MARKET CITY CODE TITLE 6, CHAPTER 5  
CONCERNING PUBLIC NUISANCES 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
ORDAINS: 
 
 
SECTION 1. Section 6-5B-7 and 6-5B-8 of the Elko New Market City Code are hereby deleted 
in their entirety and amended to read as follows: 
 
6-5B-7: ENFORCEMENT; INSPECTIONS: 
 
The city administrator or authorized designee shall enforce the provisions relating to nuisances. 
In abating or ordering the abatement of nuisances defined in Article B, the city administrator or 
authorized designee shall cause or order the nuisance to be removed. Any enforcement official 
shall have the power to inspect private premises and take all reasonable precautions to prevent 
the commission and maintenance of public nuisances. Except in emergency situations of 
imminent danger to human life and safety, no enforcement officer (i.e. city administrator or 
authorized designee) shall enter private property for the purpose of inspecting or 
preventing public nuisances without the permission of the owner, resident, or other person in 
control of the property, unless the enforcement officer has obtained a warrant or order from a 
court of competent jurisdiction authorizing the entry, or the entry is otherwise authorized by law.  

 
6-5B-8: ABATEMENT PROCEDURES: 
 

A. Notice: The city administrator or authorized designee has the authority to determine that 
a condition on a property constitutes a nuisance. Upon that determination, an owner of 
record or occupant of the premises shall be notified in writing that a public nuisance 
exists and that the nuisance shall be terminated or abated. The city administrator or 
authorized designee shall provide the notice to the owner of record or occupant in person 
or by mail. A failure to receive the notice does not invalidate the service of the notice. 
The notice shall describe the nuisance and provide ten (10) days, or a reasonable 
timeframe as determined by the city administrator, for the nuisance to be abated. If the 
nuisance is not abated within that timeframe, the city administrator or authorized 
designee may issue an Order pursuant to this section. The notice must state that if the 
owner or occupant fails to remedy the nuisance within the time provided in the notice, the 
City will abate the nuisance at the expense of the owner or occupant. 
 



B. An Order shall be given as set forth in this subsection. The Order shall include the 
following: 

 
1. The nuisance shall be abated within ten (10) days of the Order, unless the city 

administrator or authorized designee reasonably determines that additional time is 
required to abate the nuisance. 
 

2. The Order shall identify and describe the nuisance and shall specify the steps that 
may be taken to abate the nuisance.  

 

3. The Order shall state that the City will abate the nuisance and assess the costs against 
the property if the nuisance is not abated within the timeframe specified in the Order. 

 

4. The Order shall be served by the city administrator or authorized designee on the 
owner of record or occupant of the premises in person or by mail. If the premises is 
not occupied, the owner of record is unknown, or the owner of record or occupant 
refuses to accept the Order, the Order shall be served by posting it on the premises. A 
failure to receive the notice does not invalidate the service of the notice. 

 
5. The Order shall include a statement that the Order may be appealed to city council by 

filing a written request with the city clerk before the appeal deadline which shall be 
the abatement deadline designated in the Order. Upon receipt of a timely appeal 
notice, the city clerk shall schedule the hearing at the next regularly scheduled city 
council meeting.  

 
6. If the required actions specified in the Order are not complied with, the city 

administrator or authorized designee may obtain an administrative search warrant to 
enter the property and inspect the nuisance condition, obtain a court order permitting 
the City to abate the nuisance, or take any other lawful action to abate the nuisance 
and assess the costs as prescribed in 6-5B-9.  

 
C. Hearing. The city council shall hold a hearing if requested as outlined in this Section. The 

city council shall give the appellant an opportunity to present evidence and testimony. 
The city council may sustain, overrule, or modify the Order of the enforcement officer. If 
the city council determination requires abatement, the city council shall, in a resolution, 
fix a time within which the nuisance must be abated and may provide that, if the nuisance 
is not eliminated within the time specified, the City may abate the nuisance and assess the 
costs of the abatement to the subject property as a special assessment. 
 

D. Emergencies; Summary Abatement: In cases of emergency, where delay in abatement 
required to complete the notice and procedure requirements set forth in subsections A of 
this section will permit a continuing nuisance to unreasonably endanger public health 
safety or welfare, the city council may order summary enforcement and abate the 



nuisance. To proceed with summary enforcement, the enforcement official shall 
determine that a public nuisance exists or is being maintained on premises in the city and 
that delay in abatement of the nuisance will unreasonably endanger public health, safety 
or welfare. The enforcement official shall notify in writing the occupant or owner of the 
premises of the nature of the nuisance and of the city's intention to seek summary 
enforcement and the time and place of the city council meeting to consider the question 
of summary enforcement. The city council shall determine whether or not the condition 
identified in the notice to the owner or occupant is a nuisance, whether public health, 
safety or welfare will be unreasonably endangered by delay in abatement required to 
complete the procedure set forth in subsection A of this section, and may order that the 
nuisance be immediately terminated or abated. If the nuisance is not immediately 
terminated or abated, the city council may order summary enforcement and abate the 
nuisance. 

E. Immediate Abatement: Nothing in this section shall prevent the city, without notice or 
other process, from immediately abating any condition which poses an imminent and 
serious hazard to human life or safety and assessing the costs of the abatement against the 
property in accordance with 6-5B-9. 

 
 
SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and publication. 
 

 ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2020 by the City Council for the City of Elko New 
Market. 
 
       CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
       BY: ________________________________ 
               Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Terry, City Administrator/Clerk 
         
 
 
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA   

 
SUMMARY ORDINANCE NO. 214 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF  

ELKO NEW MARKET CITY CODE TITLE 6, CHAPTER 5  
CONCERNING PUBLIC NUISANCES 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, on May 14, 2020, Ordinance No. 213 was adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Elko New Market, Minnesota. 
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that, because of the lengthy nature of Ordinance No. 
213, the following summary of the ordinance has been prepared for publication.   
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the ordinance adopted by the Council amends 
Elko New Market City Code Title 6, Chapter 5, Article B, by amending the 
enforcement/inspection of public nuisances and the public nuisance abatement procedures. A 
printed copy of the complete ordinance is available for inspection by any person during the 
City’s regular office hours.   
 
 APPROVED for publication by the City Council of the City of Elko New Market this 
14th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
       

By: ____________________________________ 
       Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
       

By: ____________________________________ 
        Thomas Terry, City Administrator/Clerk 
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 215 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF  

ELKO NEW MARKET CITY CODE TITLE 11, CHAPTER 3  
CONCERNING ENFORCEMENT OF ZONING REGULATIONS 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1. Section 11-3-1 (I) of the Elko New Market City Code is hereby deleted in its 
entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  Title 11, Chapter 3 of the Elko New Market City Code is amended by adding a 
new Section 11-3-10 to read as follows: 
 
11-3-10:  ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT: 

A. Enforcing officer:  This title shall be administered and enforced by the Zoning Administrator 
in accordance with its terms, who shall not permit any construction, use, or change of use 
that does not conform to this Title. The City Administrator shall designate the Zoning 
Administrator.  The Zoning Administrator may designate such additional persons as may be 
necessary or convenient to assist in administering and enforcing this chapter. 

B. Duties of the Zoning Administrator: The Zoning Administrator’s duties shall include the 
following: 

 1. Determine that all building permits comply with the terms of this title; 

 2. Conduct inspections of buildings and uses of land to determine compliance with the 
terms of this title; 

 3. Maintain records of all zoning maps, amendments, conditional uses permits, variances, 
appeals, and other matters regulated by this title; 

 4. Administer all applications under this title; 

 5. Institute appropriate enforcement proceedings and actions against violators; 

 6. Serve as staff advisor to the Planning Commission; 

 7. Prepare reports and information for the Planning Commission and City Council, and may 
attend their meetings and participate in their hearings and discussions, but shall not vote on 
any item before the Planning Commission and City Council; and 



 8.  Perform such other functions as may be necessary to enforce and administer this title. 

C. In case any building, structure or land is, or is proposed to be, erected, constructed, 
reconstructed, altered, converted, maintained or used in violation of this title, the zoning 
administrator, in addition to other remedies, may institute in the name of the city, any 
appropriate action or proceeding to prevent, restrain, correct or abate such building structure 
or land, or to prevent, in or about such premises, any act, conduct, business or use 
constituting a violation.  

 
 
SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and publication. 
 

 ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2020 by the City Council for the City of Elko New 
Market. 
 
       CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
       BY: ________________________________ 
               Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Terry, City Administrator/Clerk 
         
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA   

 
SUMMARY ORDINANCE NO. 216 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF  

ELKO NEW MARKET CITY CODE TITLE 11, CHAPTER 3  
CONCERNING ENFORCEMENT OF ZONING REGULATIONS 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, on May 14, 2020, Ordinance No. 215 was adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Elko New Market, Minnesota. 
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that, because of the lengthy nature of Ordinance No. 
215, the following summary of the ordinance has been prepared for publication.   
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the ordinance adopted by the Council amends 
Elko New Market City Code Title 11, Chapter 3, deleting Section 11-3-1 (I) in its entirety and 
replacing it with new Section 11-3-10 concerning administration and enforcement of the Zoning 
Ordinance. A printed copy of the complete ordinance is available for inspection by any person 
during the City’s regular office hours.   
 
 APPROVED for publication by the City Council of the City of Elko New Market this 
14th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
       

By: ____________________________________ 
       Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
       

By: ____________________________________ 
        Thomas Terry, City Administrator/Clerk 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize Issuance, Awarding Sale, Prescribing The Form And 

Details And Providing For The Payment Of General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2020A 

MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Terry, City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 20-33 Authorizing Issuance, Awarding Sale, 

Prescribing The Form And Details And Providing For The Payment 
Of  General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
Over the last year, the City has authorized several capital projects and purchases. These 
include the 2019 Pavement Rehabilitation Project, the purchase of a Fire Rescue Truck, the 
purchase of two snow plows, the Police Department Addition to City Hall, the CSAH 2/91 
Roundabout Project and the Onsite Generation Project. All of these projects were intended to 
be financed through the issuance of bonds and equipment certificates.  
 
On April 9, 2020 the City Council adopted Resolution 20-27 Authorizing Issuance and Sale of 
$4,965,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A. The Bonds have been structured as five 
discrete purposes based on the use of funds and statutory authority. The purposes are as 
follows: (i) $2,065,000 Capital Improvement Plan Portion, (ii) $1,240,000 Street Reconstruction 
Portion, (iii) $815,000 Equipment Portion, (iv) $600,000 Street Special Assessment Portion 
and (v) $250,000 Utility Portion.  
 
The authorization for the sale allowed three options for the method of sale for both upcoming 
bond sales as long as certain parameters are met (parameter being a maximum interest rate, 
and maximum bond issue size) : 
 

• Competitive sale; 
• Negotiated sale with an underwriter selected through an RFP or other selection option ; 
• Negotiated Private Placement may be used if there is a buyer who is found by an 

underwriter and is willing to negotiate the price (often a bank).  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The sale of bonds is scheduled to occur on Thursday, May 14 via Baker Tilly at 10:00 am. The 
bid tabulation and other relevant data will be provided to the City Council that evening at the 
regularly scheduled Council meeting. The attached agenda will be filled in with the lowest 
bidder results for the Council’s consideration that evening. Also, attached is the credit rating 
report assigned to this issue and all Elko New Market GO Bonds outstanding. The City’s AA+ 
rating was affirmed with a stable outlook.  
 
Terri Heaton of Baker Tilly will be present for the City Council meeting Thursday evening to 
provide the results of the sale.   
 
Attachments: 

• (DRAFT) Resolution 20-33 Authorizing Issuance, Awarding Sale, Prescribing The Form 
And Details And Providing For The Payment Of  General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2020A 

• Preliminary Official Statement - Series 2020A 
• S&P Rating Report 
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CERTIFICATION OF MINUTES RELATING TO 
$[PAR] GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020A 

 
 

Issuer:  City of Elko New Market, Minnesota 

Governing Body:  City Council 

Kind, date, time and place of meeting:  A regular meeting held on May 14, 2020, at 6:00 p.m. in 
the City offices in Elko New Market, Minnesota. 

Members present:  

Members absent:  

Documents Attached: 
Minutes of said meeting (including):   

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE, AWARDING SALE, 
PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF $[PAR] GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020A 

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting recording officer of the public 
corporation issuing the bonds referred to in the title of this certificate, certify that the documents 
attached hereto, as described above, have been carefully compared with the original records of 
said corporation in my legal custody, from which they have been transcribed; that said 
documents are a correct and complete transcript of the minutes of a meeting of the governing 
body of said corporation, and correct and complete copies of all resolutions and other actions 
taken and of all documents approved by the governing body at said meeting, so far as they relate 
to said bonds; and that said meeting was duly held by the governing body at the time and place 
and was attended throughout by the members indicated above, pursuant to call and notice of such 
meeting given as required by law. 

WITNESS my hand officially as such recording officer this ___ day of May, 2020. 

 

  
City Administrator 

 



 

r 
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[It was reported that [____] ([___]) proposals for the purchase of $[PAR] General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A were received prior to 10:00 A.M., Central Time, on Thursday, 

May 14, 2020, pursuant to the Official Statement distributed to potential purchasers of the Bonds 

by Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC, municipal advisor to the City.  The proposals have 

been publicly opened, read and tabulated and were found to be as follows: 

See Attached] 

 



 

r 
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Councilmember ____________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its 
adoption, which motion was seconded by Councilmember ____________________: 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE, AWARDING SALE, 
PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF $[PAR] GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020A 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the “Council”), City of Elko New Market, 

Minnesota (the “City”), as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AUTHORIZATION AND SALE. 

1.01. Authorization.   

Following a public hearing, this Council by resolution adopted March 12, 2020, approved 
the City’s Street Reconstruction Plan (the “Street Reconstruction Plan”) and Capital 
Improvement Plan (the “CIP Plan”) and authorized the issuance and sale of CIP Bonds in an 
amount not to exceed $2,460,000, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.521 (the “CIP 
Bonds”), for the purpose of financing the construction of various capital improvements identified 
in the CIP Plan (the “CIP Projects”), and the issuance of street reconstruction bonds in an 
amount not to exceed $1,600,000 (the “Street Reconstruction Bonds”), under Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapter 475.58, Subdivision 3(b), as amended, in order to finance the costs of street 
reconstruction projects, as described in the Street Reconstruction Plan (the “Street 
Reconstruction Projects”).  A petition requesting a vote on the question of issuing the Street 
Reconstruction Plan Bonds and CIP Bonds, signed by voters equal to five percent of the votes 
cast in the last municipal general election, was not filed with the City within 30 days of the 
public hearing.  Accordingly, the issuance of the Street Reconstruction Plan Bonds and CIP 
Bonds is authorized without an election. 

By resolution adopted on April 9, 2020, this Council hereby determined it to be in the 
best interests of the City to issue its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A (the “Bonds”), 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 412.301, 475.521, and 475.58, Subdivision 3(b), and 
Chapters 429, 444 and 475, for the purpose of (a) financing various improvement projects in the 
City (the “Improvements”), (b) financing various sewer improvements (the “Utility Project”) to 
the City’s sewer utility (the “System”), (c) financing various items of capital equipment (the 
“Equipment”), (d) financing the Street Reconstruction Projects, (e) financing the CIP Projects, 
and (f) funding costs of issuance of the Bonds (collectively, the “Project”). 

The portion of the Bonds ($[________]) that is being issued pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, Chapters 429 and 475 (the “Improvement Bonds”) will be used to finance the 
Improvements.   

The portion of the Bonds ($[______]) that is being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 444.075 and Chapter 475 (the “Utility Bonds”) will be used to finance the Utility 
Project.  
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The portion of the Bonds ($[______]) that is being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 412.301 and Chapter 475 (the “Equipment Bonds”) will be used to finance the 
Equipment.  The amount of the Equipment Bonds does not exceed 0.25 percent ($1,178,806) of 
the estimated market value of taxable property in the City ($471,522,400).   

The portion of the Bonds ($[______]) constituting the Street Reconstruction Bonds will 
be used as described in the first paragraph of this Section to finance the Street Reconstruction 
Projects. 

The portion of the Bonds ($[______]) constituting the CIP Bonds will be used as 
described in the first paragraph of this Section to finance the CIP Projects.   

Maturity schedules for the Improvement Bonds, the Utility Bonds, the Equipment Bonds, 
the Street Reconstruction Bonds, and the CIP Bonds are attached hereto as EXHIBIT A. 

1.02. Sale.   

[Pursuant to the Notice of Sale and the Preliminary Official Statement prepared on behalf 
of the City by Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC, municipal advisor to the City (the 
“Municipal Advisor”), sealed or electronic proposals for the purchase of the Bonds were 
received at or before the time specified for receipt of proposals.  The proposals have been 
opened, publicly read and considered and the purchase price, interest rates and net interest cost 
under the terms of each proposal have been determined.  The most favorable proposal received is 
that of [Purchaser], in [City], [State] (the “Purchaser”), to purchase the Bonds in the principal 
amount of $[PAR], at a price of $[_________] plus accrued interest, if any, on all Bonds to the 
day of delivery and payment, on the further terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.] 

[Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.60, subdivision 2, paragraph (9), the 
requirements as to public sale do not apply to the issuance of the Bonds.  The City has received 
an offer from [___________], in [________], [________] (the “Purchaser”), to purchase the 
Bonds at a price of $[__________], plus accrued interest on all Bonds to the day of delivery and 
payment, on the further terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.] 

1.03.  Award.   

[In accordance with the resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the Bonds, dated 
April 9, 2020, the principal amount of the Bonds does not exceed $5,100,000, and the total 
interest cost does not exceed 4.00%.  The execution by the Mayor and City Administrator of a 
contract with the Purchaser for the sale of the Bonds is hereby ratified.] 

[The sale of the Bonds is hereby awarded to the Purchaser, and the Mayor and City 
Administrator are hereby authorized and directed on behalf of the City to execute a contract for 
the sale of the Bonds with the Purchaser in accordance with the Preliminary Official Statement.  
The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be retained and deposited by the City until the 
Bonds have been delivered, and shall be deducted from the purchase price paid at settlement]. 
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SECTION 2.  BOND TERMS; REGISTRATION; EXECUTION AND DELIVERY. 

2.01.  Issuance of Bonds.  All acts, conditions and things which are required by the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, to exist, to happen and to be 
performed precedent to and in the valid issuance of the Bonds having been done, now existing, 
having happened and having been performed, it is now necessary for the Council to establish the 
form and terms of the Bonds, to provide security therefor and to issue the Bonds forthwith. 

2.02.  Maturities; Interest Rates; Denominations and Payment.  The Bonds shall be 
originally dated as of June 11, 2020, shall be in the denomination of $5,000 each, or any integral 
multiple thereof, of single maturities, shall mature on February 1 in the years and amounts stated 
below, and shall bear interest from date of issue until paid or duly called for redemption, at the 
annual rates set forth opposite such years and amounts, as follows: 

Year  Amount  Rate  Year  Amount  Rate 
           

2021  $   %  2030  $  % 
2022      2031     
2023      2032     
2024      2035     
2025      2036     
2026      2037     
2027      2038     
2028      2039     
2029      2040     

 
[REVISE MATURITY SCHEDULE FOR ANY TERM BONDS] 

The Bonds shall be issuable only in fully registered form.  The interest thereon and, upon 
surrender of each Bond, the principal amount thereof shall be payable by check or draft issued by 
the Registrar described herein, provided that so long as the Bonds are registered in the name of a 
securities depository, or a nominee thereof, in accordance with Section 2.08 hereof, principal and 
interest shall be payable in accordance with the operational arrangements of the securities 
depository.   

2.03.  Dates and Interest Payment Dates.  Upon initial delivery of the Bonds pursuant to 
Section 2.07 and upon any subsequent transfer or exchange pursuant to Section 2.06, the date of 
authentication shall be noted on each Bond so delivered, exchanged or transferred.  Interest on 
the Bonds shall be payable on February 1 and August 1 in each year, commencing 
February 1, 2021, each such date being referred to herein as an Interest Payment Date, to the 
persons in whose names the Bonds are registered on the Bond Register, as hereinafter defined, at 
the Registrar’s close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding such 
Interest Payment Date, whether or not such day is a business day.  Interest shall be computed on 
the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months. 

2.04.  Redemption.  Bonds maturing on February 1, 2030 and in later years shall be 
subject to redemption and prepayment at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in such order 
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of maturity dates as the City may select and, within a maturity, by lot as selected by the Registrar 
(or, if applicable, by the bond depository in accordance with its customary procedures) in 
integral multiples of $5,000, on February 1, 2029, and on any date thereafter, at a price equal to 
the principal amount thereof and accrued interest to the date of redemption.  The City 
Administrator shall cause notice of the call for redemption thereof to be published if and as 
required by law, and at least thirty (30) and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the designated 
redemption date, shall cause notice of call for redemption to be mailed, by first class mail, to the 
Registrar and registered holders of any Bonds to be redeemed at their addresses as they appear 
on the Bond Register described in Section 2.06 hereof, provided that notice shall be given to any 
securities depository in accordance with its operational arrangements.  No defect in or failure to 
give such notice of redemption shall affect the validity of proceedings for the redemption of any 
Bond not affected by such defect or failure.  Official notice of redemption having been given as 
aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, 
become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified and from and after such date 
(unless the City shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of 
Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Upon partial redemption of any Bond, a new Bond or Bonds 
will be delivered to the owner without charge, representing the remaining principal amount 
outstanding. 

[TO BE COMPLETED IF THERE ARE TERM BONDS] 
 

[Bonds maturing on February 1, 20____ and 20____ (the “Term Bonds”) shall be subject 
to mandatory redemption prior to maturity pursuant to the sinking fund requirements of this 
Section 2.04 at a redemption price equal to the stated principal amount thereof plus interest 
accrued thereon to the redemption date, without premium.  The Registrar shall select for 
redemption, by lot or other manner deemed fair, on February 1 in each of the following years the 
following stated principal amounts of such Bonds: 

 
Year Principal Amount 

  
  

*  
 
*Final Maturity 

 

 
Year Principal Amount 

  
  

*  
 
*Final Maturity 

 

 
Notice of redemption shall be given as provided in the preceding paragraph.]   

2.05.  Appointment of Registrar.  The City hereby appoints U.S. Bank National 
Association, in St. Paul, Minnesota, as the initial Bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent 
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(the “Registrar”).  The Mayor and City Administrator are authorized to execute and deliver, on 
behalf of the City, a contract with the Registrar.  Upon merger or consolidation of the Registrar 
with another corporation, if the resulting corporation is a bank or trust company organized under 
the laws of the United States or one of the states of the United States and authorized by law to 
conduct such business, such corporation shall be authorized to act as successor Registrar.  The 
City agrees to pay the reasonable and customary charges of the Registrar for the services 
performed.  The City reserves the right to remove the Registrar, effective upon not less than 
thirty days’ written notice and upon the appointment and acceptance of a successor Registrar, in 
which event the predecessor Registrar shall deliver all cash and Bonds in its possession to the 
successor Registrar and shall deliver the Bond Register to the successor Registrar. 

2.06.  Registration.  The effect of registration and the rights and duties of the City and the 
Registrar with respect thereto shall be as follows: 

(a) Register.  The Registrar shall keep at its principal corporate trust office a 
register (the “Bond Register”) in which the Registrar shall provide for the registration of 
ownership of Bonds and the registration of transfers and exchanges of Bonds entitled to 
be registered, transferred or exchanged.  The term Holder or Bondholder as used herein 
shall mean the person (whether a natural person, corporation, association, partnership, 
trust, governmental unit, or other legal entity) in whose name a Bond is registered in the 
Bond Register. 

(b) Transfer of Bonds.  Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond duly 
endorsed by the Holder thereof or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in 
form satisfactory to the Registrar, duly executed by the Holder thereof or by an attorney 
duly authorized by the Holder in writing, the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in 
the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds of a like 
aggregate principal amount and maturity, as requested by the transferor.  The Registrar 
may, however, close the books for registration of any transfer after the first day of the 
month in which the interest payment date occurs and until such interest payment date. 

(c) Exchange of Bonds.  At the option of the Holder of any Bond in a 
denomination greater than $5,000, such Bond may be exchanged for other Bonds of 
authorized denominations, of the same maturity and a like aggregate principal amount, 
upon surrender of the Bond to be exchanged at the office of the Registrar.  Whenever any 
Bond is so surrendered for exchange the City shall execute and the Registrar shall 
authenticate and deliver the Bonds which the Bondholder making the exchange is entitled 
to receive. 

(d) Cancellation.  All Bonds surrendered for payment, transfer or exchange 
shall be promptly canceled by the Registrar and thereafter disposed of as directed by the 
City. 

(e) Improper or Unauthorized Transfer.  When any Bond is presented to the 
Registrar for transfer, the Registrar may refuse to transfer the same until it is satisfied that 
the endorsement on such Bond or separate instrument of transfer is valid and genuine and 
that the requested transfer is legally authorized.  The Registrar shall incur no liability for 
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the refusal, in good faith, to make transfers which it, in its judgment, deems improper or 
unauthorized. 

(f) Persons Deemed Owners.  The City and the Registrar may treat the person 
in whose name any Bond is at any time registered in the Bond Register as the absolute 
owner of the Bond, whether the Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of 
receiving payment of or on account of, the principal of and interest on the Bond and for 
all other purposes; and all payments made to or upon the order of such Holder shall be 
valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of 
the sum or sums so paid. 

(g) Taxes, Fees and Charges.  For every transfer or exchange of Bonds 
(except for an exchange upon a partial redemption of a Bond), the Registrar may impose 
a charge upon the owner thereof sufficient to reimburse the Registrar for any tax, fee or 
other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. 

(h) Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.  In case any Bond shall 
become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Registrar shall deliver a new Bond 
of like amount, number, maturity date and tenor in exchange and substitution for and 
upon cancellation of any such mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution for any 
Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon the payment of the reasonable expenses and charges 
of the Registrar in connection therewith; and, in the case of a Bond destroyed, stolen or 
lost, upon filing with the Registrar of evidence satisfactory to it that the Bond was 
destroyed, stolen or lost, and of the ownership thereof, and upon furnishing to the 
Registrar of an appropriate bond or indemnity in form, substance and amount satisfactory 
to it, in which both the City and the Registrar shall be named as obligees.  All Bonds so 
surrendered to the Registrar shall be canceled by it and evidence of such cancellation 
shall be given to the City.  If the mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost Bond has already 
matured or been called for redemption in accordance with its terms it shall not be 
necessary to issue a new Bond prior to payment. 

(i) Authenticating Agent.  The Registrar is hereby designated authenticating 
agent for the Bonds, within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.55, 
Subdivision 1, as amended. 

(j) Valid Obligations.  All Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange of 
Bonds shall be the valid obligations of the City, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to 
the same benefits under this Resolution as the Bonds surrendered upon such transfer or 
exchange. 

2.07.  Execution, Authentication and Delivery.  The Bonds shall be prepared under the 
direction of the City Administrator and shall be executed on behalf of the City by the signatures 
of the Mayor and the City Administrator, provided that the signatures may be printed, engraved 
or lithographed facsimiles of the originals.  In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of 
whose signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of 
such Bond, such signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, 
the same as if such officer had remained in office until the date of delivery of such Bond.  
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Notwithstanding such execution, no Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled 
to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless and until a certificate of authentication on 
the Bond, substantially in the form provided in Section 2.09, has been executed by the manual 
signature of an authorized representative of the Registrar.  Certificates of authentication on 
different Bonds need not be signed by the same representative.  The executed certificate of 
authentication on any Bond shall be conclusive evidence that it has been duly authenticated and 
delivered under this Resolution.  When the Bonds have been prepared, executed and 
authenticated, the City Administrator shall deliver them to the Purchaser upon payment of the 
purchase price in accordance with the contract of sale theretofore executed, and the Purchaser 
shall not be obligated to see to the application of the purchase price. 

2.08.  Securities Depository.  (a)  For purposes of this section the following terms shall 
have the following meanings: 

“Beneficial Owner” shall mean, whenever used with respect to a Bond, the person in 
whose name such Bond is recorded as the beneficial owner of such Bond by a Participant on the 
records of such Participant, or such person’s subrogee. 

“Cede & Co.” shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any successor nominee 
of DTC with respect to the Bonds. 

“DTC” shall mean The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York. 

“Participant” shall mean any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which 
DTC holds bonds as securities depository. 

“Representation Letter” shall mean the Representation Letter pursuant to which the City 
agrees to comply with DTC’s Operational Arrangements. 

(b) The Bonds shall be initially issued as separately authenticated fully registered 
bonds, and one Bond shall be issued in the principal amount of each stated maturity of the 
Bonds.  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Bonds shall be registered in the Bond 
Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The Registrar and the City may treat 
DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Bonds registered in its name for the 
purposes of payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds, selecting the Bonds or portions 
thereof to be redeemed, if any, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to registered 
owners of Bonds under this resolution, registering the transfer of Bonds, and for all other 
purposes whatsoever; and neither the Registrar nor the City shall be affected by any notice to the 
contrary.  Neither the Registrar nor the City shall have any responsibility or obligation to any 
Participant, any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds under or through 
DTC or any Participant, or any other person which is not shown on the Bond Register as being a 
registered owner of any Bonds, with respect to the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC 
or any Participant, with respect to the payment by DTC or any Participant of any amount with 
respect to the principal of or interest on the Bonds, with respect to any notice which is permitted 
or required to be given to owners of Bonds under this resolution, with respect to the selection by 
DTC or any Participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of 
the Bonds, or with respect to any consent given or other action taken by DTC as registered owner 
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of the Bonds.  So long as any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 
the Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on such Bond, and shall give all notices with 
respect to such Bond, only to Cede & Co. in accordance with DTC’s Operational Arrangements, 
and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City’s 
obligations with respect to the principal of and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or 
sums so paid.  No person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated Bond for each separate 
stated maturity evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of principal and interest.  
Upon delivery by DTC to the Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to 
substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the Bonds will be transferable to such new 
nominee in accordance with paragraph (e) hereof. 

(c) In the event the City determines that it is in the best interest of the Beneficial 
Owners that they be able to obtain Bonds in the form of physical certificates, the City may notify 
DTC and the Registrar, whereupon DTC shall notify the Participants of the availability through 
DTC of Bonds in the form of certificates.  In such event, the Bonds will be transferable in 
accordance with paragraph (e) hereof.  DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services 
with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the Registrar and 
discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law.  In such event the 
Bonds will be transferable in accordance with paragraph (e) hereof. 

(d) The execution and delivery of the Representation Letter to DTC, if not previously 
filed with DTC, by the Mayor or City Administrator is hereby authorized and directed. 

(e) In the event that any transfer or exchange of Bonds is permitted under 
paragraph (b) or (c) hereof, such transfer or exchange shall be accomplished upon receipt by the 
Registrar of the Bonds to be transferred or exchanged and appropriate instruments of transfer to 
the permitted transferee in accordance with the provisions of this resolution.  In the event Bonds 
in the form of certificates are issued to owners other than Cede & Co., its successor as nominee 
for DTC as owner of all the Bonds, or another securities depository as owner of all the Bonds, 
the provisions of this resolution shall also apply to all matters relating thereto, including, without 
limitation, the printing of such Bonds in the form of physical certificates and the method of 
payment of principal of and interest on such Bonds in the form of physical certificates. 

2.09. Form of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be prepared in substantially the form found at 
EXHIBIT B attached hereto. 
 
Section 3.  USE OF PROCEEDS; PROJECT FUND.   

3.01. Project Fund 

There is hereby created a special bookkeeping fund to be designated as the General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A Project Fund (the “Project Fund”), to be held and administered 
by the City Administrator separate and apart from all other funds of the City.  Within the Project 
Fund are established the following accounts: 

(a) Improvements Account.  The Improvements Account shall be credited 
with $[___], representing the estimated costs of the Improvements ($[___]) and the costs 
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of issuance of the Improvement Bonds ($[___]) from the proceeds from the Improvement 
Bonds.  The City Administrator shall maintain the Improvements Account until payment 
of all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the construction of the 
Improvements have been paid. 

(b) Utility Project Account.  The Utility Project Account shall be credited 
with $[___], representing the estimated costs of the Utility Projects ($[___]) and costs of 
issuance of the Utility Bonds ($[___]) from the proceeds of the Utility Bonds.  The City 
Administrator shall maintain the Utility Project Account until all costs and expenses 
incurred by the City in connection with the construction of the Utility Project have been 
paid. 

(c) Equipment Account.  The Equipment Account shall be credited with 
$[___], representing the estimated cost of the Equipment ($[___]) and costs of issuance 
of the Equipment Bonds ($[___]), from the proceeds of the Equipment Bonds.  The City 
Administrator shall maintain the Equipment Account until all costs and expenses incurred 
by the City in connection with the Equipment have been paid. 

(d) Street Reconstruction Projects Account.  The Street Reconstruction 
Projects Account shall be credited with $[___], representing the estimated cost of the 
Street Reconstruction Projects ($[___]) and costs of issuance of the Street Reconstruction 
Bonds ($[___]), from the proceeds of the Street Reconstruction Bonds.  The City 
Administrator shall maintain the Street Reconstruction Projects Account until all costs 
and expenses incurred by the City in connection with the Street Reconstruction Projects 
have been paid.  

(e) CIP Projects Account.  The CIP Projects Account shall be credited with 
$[___], representing the estimated cost of the CIP Projects ($[___]) and costs of issuance 
of the CIP Bonds ($[___]), from the proceeds of the CIP Bonds.  The City Administrator 
shall maintain the CIP Projects Account until all costs and expenses incurred by the City 
in connection with the CIP Projects have been paid.  

From the Project Fund there shall be paid all costs and expenses related to the 
construction and acquisition of the Project.  After payment of all such costs and expenses, the 
Project Fund shall be terminated.  All funds on hand in the Project Fund when terminated shall 
be credited to the Bond Fund described in Section 4 hereof, unless and except as such proceeds 
may be transferred to some other fund or account as to which the City has received from bond 
counsel an opinion that such other transfer is permitted by applicable laws and does not impair 
the exemption of interest on the Bonds from federal income taxes.  In no event shall funds 
remain in the Project Fund later than June 11, 2025. 

SECTION 4.  GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020A BOND FUND.  The Bonds 
shall be payable from a separate General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A Bond Fund (the “Bond 
Fund”) of the City, which shall be created and maintained on the books of the City as a separate 
debt redemption fund until the Bonds, and all interest thereon, are fully paid.  Within the Debt 
Service Account (described below) within the Bond Fund are established the following 
subaccounts:  
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(a) Improvements Subaccount.  There shall be credited to the Improvements 
subaccount the following: 

 
(i) the amounts specified in Section 3 above, after payment of all costs 

of the Improvements; 

(ii) special assessments levied and collected in accordance with this 
Resolution; 

(iii) taxes levied and collected in accordance with this Resolution and 
allocable to the Improvement Bonds; and  

(iv) any other funds appropriated by this Council for the payment of 
the Improvement Bonds. 

(b) Utility Subaccount.  There shall be credited to the Utility Subaccount the 
following: 

(i) the amounts specified in Section 3 above, after payment of all costs 
of the Utility Project; 

(ii) net revenues of the System, as described in Section 6 hereof; 

(iii) taxes levied and collected in accordance with this Resolution and 
allocable to the Utility Bonds; and  

(iv) any other funds appropriated by the Council for the payment of the 
Utility Bonds. 

(c) Equipment Subaccount.  There shall be credited to the Equipment 
Subaccount the following: 

(i) the amounts specified in Section 3 above, after payment of all costs 
of the Equipment; 

(ii) taxes levied and collected in accordance with this Resolution and 
allocable to the Equipment Bonds; and  

(iii) any other funds appropriated by the Council for the payment of the 
Equipment Bonds. 

(d) Street Reconstruction Subaccount.  There shall be credited to the Street 
Reconstruction subaccount the following: 

 
(i) the amounts specified in Section 3 above, after payment of all costs 

of the Street Reconstruction Projects; 
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(ii) taxes levied and collected in accordance with this Resolution and 
allocable to the Street Reconstruction Bonds; and  

(iii) any other funds appropriated by this Council for the payment of 
the Street Reconstruction Bonds. 

(e) CIP Subaccount.  There shall be credited to the CIP subaccount the 
following: 

 
(i) the amounts specified in Section 3 above, after payment of all costs of 

the CIP Projects; 

(ii) taxes levied and collected in accordance with this Resolution and 
allocable to the CIP Bonds; and  

(iii) any other funds appropriated by this Council for the payment of 
the CIP Bonds. 

The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable from the Bond Fund, and the 
money on hand in the Bond Fund from time to time shall be used only to pay the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds.  On or before each principal and interest payment date for the Bonds, the 
City Administrator is directed to remit to the Registrar from funds on deposit in the Bond Fund 
the amount needed to pay principal and interest on the Bonds on the next succeeding principal 
and interest payment date. 

There are hereby established two accounts in the Bond Fund, designated as the “Debt 
Service Account” and the “Surplus Account.”  There shall initially be deposited into the Debt 
Service Account upon the issuance of the Bonds the amount of $[0].  Thereafter, during each 
bond year (each twelve month period commencing on February 2 and ending on the following 
February 1, a “Bond Year”), as monies are received into the Bond Fund, the City Administrator 
shall first deposit such monies into the applicable subaccount within the Debt Service Account 
until an amount has been appropriated thereto sufficient to pay all principal and interest due on 
the Bonds through the end of the Bond Year.  All subsequent monies received in the Bond Fund 
during the Bond Year shall be appropriated to the Surplus Account.  If at any time the amount on 
hand in the Debt Service Account is insufficient for the payment of principal and interest then 
due, the City Administrator shall transfer to the Debt Service Account amounts on hand in the 
Surplus Account to the extent necessary to cure such deficiency.  Investment earnings (and 
losses) on amounts from time to time held in the Debt Service Account and Surplus Account 
shall be credited or charged to said accounts. 

If the balance in the Bond Fund is at any time insufficient to pay all interest and principal 
then due on all Bonds payable therefrom, the payment shall be made from any fund of the City 
which is available for that purpose, subject to reimbursement from the Surplus Account when the 
balance therein is sufficient, and the City covenants and agrees that it will each year levy a 
sufficient amount of ad valorem taxes to take care of any accumulated or anticipated deficiency, 
which levy is not subject to any constitutional or statutory limitation.   
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SECTION 5.  SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.  The City hereby covenants and agrees that, for the 
payment of the costs of the Improvements, the City has done or will do and perform all acts and 
things necessary for the final and valid levy of special assessments in the principal amount of 
$158,771, which is not less than 20% of the cost of the Improvements.  The principal of and 
interest on such special assessments are estimated to be levied and collected in the years and 
amounts shown on EXHIBIT C attached hereto.  The principal of the assessments shall be made 
payable in annual installments, with interest as established by this Council in accordance with 
law on unpaid installments thereof from time to time remaining unpaid.  In the event any special 
assessment shall at any time be held invalid with respect to any lot or tract of land, due to any 
error, defect or irregularity in any action or proceeding taken or to be taken by the City or by this 
Council or by any of the officers or employees of the City, either in the making of such special 
assessment or in the performance of any condition precedent thereto, the City hereby covenants 
and agrees that it will forthwith do all such further things and take all such further proceedings as 
shall be required by law to make such special assessment a valid and binding lien upon said 
property. 

SECTION 6.  PLEDGE OF NET REVENUES.  It is hereby found, determined and declared that 
the City owns and operates the System as a revenue-producing utility and as a convenience, and 
that the net operating revenues of the System, after deducting from the gross receipts derived 
from charges for the service, use and availability of the System the normal, current and 
reasonable expenses of operation and maintenance thereof, will be sufficient, together with any 
other pledged funds, for the payment when due of the principal of and interest on the Utility 
Bonds and on any other bonds to which such revenues are pledged. 

Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 444.075, the City hereby covenants and agrees 
with the registered owners from time to time of the Bonds that until the Utility Bonds and the 
interest thereon are discharged as provided in Section 8 or paid in full, the City will impose and 
collect reasonable charges in accordance with said Section 444.075 for the service, use and 
availability of its System according to schedules sufficient to produce net revenues sufficient, 
with other funds pledged to payment of the Utility Bonds, to pay the Utility Bonds and any other 
bonds to which said net revenues have been pledged; and the net revenues, to the extent 
necessary, are hereby irrevocably pledged and appropriated to the payment of the Bonds and 
interest thereon when due.  Nothing herein shall preclude the City from hereafter making further 
pledges and appropriations of the net revenues of its System for payment of additional 
obligations of the City hereafter authorized if the Council determines before the authorization of 
such additional obligations that the estimated net revenues of the System will be sufficient, 
together with any other sources pledged to the payment of the outstanding and additional 
obligations, for payment of the outstanding bonds and such additional obligations.  Such further 
pledges and appropriations of net revenues may be made superior or subordinate to or on a parity 
with, the pledge and appropriation herein made. 

SECTION 7.  PLEDGE OF TAXING POWERS.  For the prompt and full payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds as such payments respectively become due, the full faith, 
credit and unlimited taxing powers of the City shall be and are hereby irrevocably pledged.  In 
order to produce aggregate amounts which, together with the collections of other amounts as set 
forth in Section 4, will produce amounts not less than 5% in excess of the amounts needed to 
meet when due the principal and interest payments on the Bonds, ad valorem taxes are hereby 
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levied on all taxable property in the City, the taxes to be levied and collected in the following 
years and amounts: 

 Levy Years Collection Years Amount 

See attached schedules 
 

The taxes shall be irrepealable as long as any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, 
provided that the City reserves the right and power to reduce the tax levies from other legally 
available funds, in accordance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.61. 

SECTION 8.  DEFEASANCE.  When all of the Bonds have been discharged as provided in this 
Section, all pledges, covenants and other rights granted by this Resolution to the Holders of the 
Bonds shall cease.  The City may discharge its obligations with respect to any Bonds which are 
due on any date by depositing with the Registrar on or before that date a sum sufficient for the 
payment thereof in full; or, if any Bond should not be paid when due, it may nevertheless be 
discharged by depositing with the Registrar a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full with 
interest accrued from the due date to the date of such deposit.  The City may also discharge its 
obligations with respect to any prepayable Bonds called for redemption on any date when they 
are prepayable according to their terms by depositing with the Registrar on or before that date an 
amount equal to the principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest then due, provided that 
notice of such redemption has been duly given as provided herein.  The City may also at any 
time discharge its obligations with respect to any Bonds, subject to the provisions of law now or 
hereafter authorizing and regulating such action, by depositing irrevocably in escrow, with the 
Registrar or with a bank or trust company qualified by law to act as an escrow agent for this 
purpose, cash or securities which are authorized by law to be so deposited for such purpose, 
bearing interest payable at such times and at such rates and maturing or callable at the holder’s 
option on such dates as shall be required to pay all principal and interest to become due thereon 
to maturity or, if notice of redemption as herein required has been irrevocably provided for, to an 
earlier designated redemption date.  If such deposit is made more than ninety days before the 
maturity date or specified redemption date of the Bonds to be discharged, the City must have 
received a written opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such deposit does not adversely 
affect the exemption of interest on any Bonds from federal income taxation and a written report 
of an accountant or investment banking firm verifying that the deposit is sufficient to pay when 
due all of the principal and interest on the Bonds to be discharged on and before their maturity 
dates or earlier designated redemption date. 

SECTION 9.  TAX COVENANTS; ARBITRAGE MATTERS AND CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE. 

9.01.  General Tax Covenant.  The City agrees with the registered owners from time to 
time of the Bonds that it will not take, or permit to be taken by any of its officers, employees or 
agents, any action that would cause interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross income 
of the recipient under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and 
applicable Treasury Regulations (the “Regulations”), and agrees to take any and all actions 
within its powers to ensure that the interest on the Bonds will not become includable in gross 
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income of the recipient under the Code and the Regulations.  All proceeds of the Bonds 
deposited in the Project Fund will be expended solely for the payment of the costs of the Project.  
The Project is and will be owned and maintained by the City and available for use by members 
of the general public on a substantially equal basis.  The City shall not enter into any lease, 
management contract, use agreement, capacity agreement or other agreement with any non-
governmental person relating to the use of the Project, or any portion thereof, or security for the 
payment of the Bonds which might cause the Bonds to be considered “private activity bonds” or 
“private loan bonds” pursuant to Section 141 of the Code. 

9.02.  Arbitrage Certification.  The Mayor and City Administrator being the officers of 
the City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds pursuant to this Resolution, are 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Purchaser a certificate in accordance with 
Section 148 of the Code, and applicable Regulations, stating the facts, estimates and 
circumstances in existence on the date of issue and delivery of the Bonds which make it 
reasonable to expect that the proceeds of the Bonds will not be used in a manner that would 
cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of the Code and Regulations. 

9.03.  Arbitrage Rebate.  The City acknowledges that the Bonds are subject to the rebate 
requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The City covenants and agrees to retain such 
records, make such determinations, file such reports and documents and pay such amounts at 
such times as are required under said Section 148(f) and applicable Regulations unless the Bonds 
qualify for an exception from the rebate requirement pursuant to one of the spending exceptions 
set forth in Section 1.148-7 of the Regulations and no “gross proceeds” of the Bonds (other than 
amounts constituting a “bona fide debt service fund”) arise during or after the expenditure of the 
original proceeds thereof. 

9.04.  Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The City Council hereby designates the Bonds 
as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating to 
the disallowance of interest expense for financial institutions, and hereby finds that the 
reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (within the meaning of 
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code) which will be issued by the City and all subordinate entities 
during calendar year 2020 does not exceed $10,000,000. 

9.05.  Reimbursement.  The City certifies that the proceeds of the Bonds will not be used 
by the City to reimburse itself for any expenditure with respect to the Project which the City paid 
or will have paid more than 60 days prior to the issuance of the Bonds unless, with respect to 
such prior expenditures, the City shall have made a declaration of official intent which complies 
with the provisions of Section 1.150-2 of the Regulations, provided that this certification shall 
not apply (i) with respect to certain de minimis expenditures, if any, with respect to the Project 
meeting the requirements of Section 1.150-2(f)(1) of the Regulations, or (ii) with respect to 
“preliminary expenditures” for the Project as defined in Section 1.150-2(f)(2) of the Regulations, 
including engineering or architectural expenses and similar preparatory expenses, which in the 
aggregate do not exceed 20% of the “issue price” of the Bonds. 

9.06.  Continuing Disclosure.  (a)  Purpose and Beneficiaries.  To provide for the public 
availability of certain information relating to the Bonds and the security therefor and to permit 
the Purchaser and other participating underwriters in the primary offering of the Bonds to 
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comply with amendments to Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12), relating to continuing disclosure (as in effect 
and interpreted from time to time, the Rule), which will enhance the marketability of the Bonds, 
the City hereby makes the following covenants and agreements for the benefit of the Owners (as 
hereinafter defined) from time to time of the outstanding Bonds.  The City is the only obligated 
person in respect of the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule for purposes of identifying the 
entities in respect of which continuing disclosure must be made.  If the City fails to comply with 
any provisions of this section, any person aggrieved thereby, including the Owners of any 
outstanding Bonds, may take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or 
appropriate to enforce performance and observance of any agreement or covenant contained in 
this section, including an action for a writ of mandamus or specific performance.  Direct, 
indirect, consequential and punitive damages shall not be recoverable for any default hereunder 
to the extent permitted by law.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in no 
event shall a default under this section constitute a default under the Bonds or under any other 
provision of this resolution.  As used in this section, Owner or Bondowner means, in respect of a 
Bond, the registered owner or owners thereof appearing in the bond register maintained by the 
Registrar or any Beneficial Owner (as hereinafter defined) thereof, if such Beneficial Owner 
provides to the Registrar evidence of such beneficial ownership in form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to the Registrar.  As used herein, Beneficial Owner means, in respect of a 
Bond, any person or entity which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with 
respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, such Bond (including persons or entities holding Bonds 
through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of the 
Bond for federal income tax purposes.   
 
(b) Information To Be Disclosed.  The City will provide, in the manner set forth in 
subsection (c) hereof, either directly or indirectly through an agent designated by the City, the 
following information at the following times: 
 

(1) on or before twelve (12) months after the end of each fiscal year of the City, 
commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, the following 
financial information and operating data in respect of the City (the Disclosure 
Information): 

 
(A) the audited financial statements of the City for such fiscal year, prepared 

in accordance with the governmental accounting standards promulgated by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board or as otherwise provided 
under Minnesota law, as in effect from time to time, or, if and to the extent 
such financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with such 
generally accepted accounting principles for reasons beyond the 
reasonable control of the City, noting the discrepancies therefrom and the 
effect thereof, and certified as to accuracy and completeness in all material 
respects by the fiscal officer of the City; and 

 
(B) to the extent not included in the financial statements referred to in 

paragraph (A) hereof, the information for such fiscal year or for the period 
most recently available of the type contained in the Official Statement 
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under the headings:  “City Property Values,” “City Indebtedness,” and  
“City Tax Rates, Levies, and Collections,” which information may be 
unaudited.    

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, if the audited financial statements are not available by 
the date specified, the City shall provide on or before such date unaudited financial statements 
and, within 10 days after the receipt thereof, the City shall provide the audited financial 
statements.  Any or all of the Disclosure Information may be incorporated by reference, if it is 
updated as required hereby, from other documents, including official statements, which have 
been submitted to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the MSRB) through its 
Electronic Municipal Market Access System (EMMA) or the SEC.  The City shall clearly 
identify in the Disclosure Information each document so incorporated by reference.  If any part 
of the Disclosure Information can no longer be generated because the operations of the City have 
materially changed or been discontinued, such Disclosure Information need no longer be 
provided if the City includes in the Disclosure Information a statement to such effect; provided, 
however, if such operations have been replaced by other City operations in respect of which data 
is not included in the Disclosure Information and the City determines that certain specified data 
regarding such replacement operations would be a Material Fact (as defined in paragraph (2) 
hereof), then, from and after such determination, the Disclosure Information shall include such 
additional specified data regarding the replacement operations.  If the Disclosure Information is 
changed or this section is amended as permitted by this paragraph (b)(1) or subsection (d), then 
the City shall include in the next Disclosure Information to be delivered hereunder, to the extent 
necessary, an explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the effect of any change in the 
type of financial information or operating data provided. 
 

(2) In a timely manner, not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the 
event, to the MSRB through EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the 
following events (each a “Material Fact,” as hereinafter defined): 

 
(A) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
(B) non-payment related defaults, if material; 
(C) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
(D) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
(E) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
(F) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue 
(IRS Form 5701-TEB), or other material notices or determinations with 
respect to the tax status of the Bonds or other material events affecting the 
tax status of the Bonds; 

(G) modifications to rights of Bond holders, if material; 
(H) Bond calls, if material and tender offers; 
(I) defeasances; 
(J) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds 

if material;  
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(K) rating changes; 
(L) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the obligated 

person; 
(M) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an 

obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the 
obligated person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry 
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination 
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant 
to its terms, if material; and 

(N) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 
a trustee, if material. 

(O) Incurrence of a financial obligation of the obligated person, if material, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or 
other similar terms of a financial obligation of the obligated person, any of 
which affect security holders, if material; and 

(P) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the 
obligated person, any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

 
For purposes of the events identified in paragraphs (O) and (P) above, the term “financial 
obligation” means (i) a debt obligation; (ii) a derivative instrument entered into in connection 
with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or 
(iii) a guarantee of (i) or (ii).  The term “financial obligation” shall not include municipal 
securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with 
the Rule. 

As used herein, for those events that must be reported if material, an event is material if a 
substantial likelihood exists that a reasonably prudent investor would attach importance thereto 
in deciding to buy, hold or sell a Bond or, if not disclosed, would significantly alter the total 
information otherwise available to an investor from the Official Statement, information disclosed 
hereunder or information generally available to the public.  Notwithstanding the foregoing 
sentence, an event is also material if it would be deemed material for purposes of the purchase, 
holding or sale of a Bond within the meaning of applicable federal securities laws, as interpreted 
at the time of discovery of the occurrence of the event. 
 
For the purposes of the event identified in (L) hereinabove, the event is considered to occur when 
any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an 
obligated person in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding 
under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such jurisdiction has 
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but 
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an 
order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental 
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the 
obligated person. 
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(3) In a timely manner, to the MSRB through EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any 
of the following events or conditions: 

 
(A) the failure of the City to provide the Disclosure Information required 

under paragraph (b)(1) at the time specified thereunder; 
(B) the amendment or supplementing of this section pursuant to 

subsection (d), together with a copy of such amendment or supplement 
and any explanation provided by the City under subsection (d)(2); 

(C) the termination of the obligations of the City under this section pursuant to 
subsection (d); 

(D) any change in the accounting principles pursuant to which the financial 
statements constituting a portion of the Disclosure Information are 
prepared; and 

(E) any change in the fiscal year of the City. 
 
(c) Manner of Disclosure.   
 

(1) The City agrees to make available to the MSRB through EMMA, in an electronic 
format as prescribed by the MSRB, the information described in subsection (b).   

 
(2) All documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this subsection (c) shall be 

accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB from time to 
time. 

 
(d) Term; Amendments; Interpretation.   
 

(1) The covenants of the City in this section shall remain in effect so long as any 
Bonds are outstanding.  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, however, the 
obligations of the City under this section shall terminate and be without further 
effect as of any date on which the City delivers to the Registrar an opinion of 
Bond Counsel to the effect that, because of legislative action or final judicial or 
administrative actions or proceedings, the failure of the City to comply with the 
requirements of this section will not cause participating underwriters in the 
primary offering of the Bonds to be in violation of the Rule or other applicable 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any statutes 
or laws successory thereto or amendatory thereof. 

 
(2) This section (and the form and requirements of the Disclosure Information) may 

be amended or supplemented by the City from time to time, without notice to 
(except as provided in paragraph (c)(2) hereof) or the consent of the Owners of 
any Bonds, by a resolution of this Council filed in the office of the recording 
officer of the City accompanied by an opinion of Bond Counsel, who may rely on 
certificates of the City and others and the opinion may be subject to customary 
qualifications, to the effect that: (i) such amendment or supplement (a) is made in 
connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in law or 
regulation or a change in the identity, nature or status of the City or the type of 
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operations conducted by the City, or (b) is required by, or better complies with, 
the provisions of paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule; (ii) this section as so amended or 
supplemented would have complied with the requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of 
the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds, giving effect to any 
change in circumstances applicable under clause (i)(a) and assuming that the Rule 
as in effect and interpreted at the time of the amendment or supplement was in 
effect at the time of the primary offering; and (iii) such amendment or supplement 
does not materially impair the interests of the Bondowners under the Rule.  

 
If the Disclosure Information is so amended, the City agrees to provide, 
contemporaneously with the effectiveness of such amendment, an explanation of 
the reasons for the amendment and the effect, if any, of the change in the type of 
financial information or operating data being provided hereunder.   

 
(3) This section is entered into to comply with the continuing disclosure provisions of 

the Rule and should be construed so as to satisfy the requirements of paragraph 
(b)(5) of the Rule. 

 
SECTION 10.  CERTIFICATION OF PROCEEDINGS. 

10.01.  Registration of Bonds.  The City Administrator is hereby authorized and directed 
to file a certified copy of this resolution with the County Auditor of Scott County, together with 
such additional information as is required, and to obtain a certificate that the Bonds and the taxes 
levied pursuant hereto have been duly entered upon the County Auditor’s Bond register. 

10.02.  Authentication of Transcript.  The officers of the City and the County Auditor are 
hereby authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the Purchaser and to Dorsey & Whitney 
LLP, Bond Counsel, certified copies of all proceedings and records relating to the Bonds and 
such other affidavits, certificates and information as may be required to show the facts relating to 
the legality and marketability of the Bonds, as the same appear from the books and records in 
their custody and control or as otherwise known to them, and all such certified copies, affidavits 
and certificates, including any heretofore furnished, shall be deemed representations of the City 
as to the correctness of all statements contained therein. 

10.03.  Official Statement.  The Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds, 
prepared and distributed by the Municipal Advisor, is hereby approved.  The Municipal Advisor 
is hereby authorized on behalf of the City to prepare and distribute to the Purchaser within seven 
business days from the date hereof, a Final Official Statement listing the offering price, the 
interest rates, selling compensation, delivery date, the underwriters and such other information 
relating to the Bonds required to be included in the Official Statement by Rule l5c2-12 adopted 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  The 
officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed to execute such certificates as may be 
appropriate concerning the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of the Official Statement. 

10.04.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage. 
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Upon vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 
 
and the following voted against the same: 
 
 
 
whereupon the Resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 
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EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Maturity Schedules 

 

Year Improvement 
Bonds Utility Bonds Equipment 

Bonds 

Street 
Reconstruction 

Bonds 
CIP Bonds Total 

2021       
2022       
2023       
2024       
2025       
2026       
2027       
2028       
2029       
2030       
2031       
2032       
2035       

       
TOTAL       
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EXHIBIT B 
 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF SCOTT 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 
SERIES 2020A 

R-___ $_________ 
 
 

Interest Rate  Maturity Date  Date of Original Issue  CUSIP No. 
       
__%  February 1, 20__  June 11, 2020   

 
 
REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: THOUSAND DOLLARS 
 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, State of Minnesota (the “City”) acknowledges itself to be 
indebted and for value received hereby promises to pay to the registered owner specified above, or 
registered assigns, the principal amount specified above on the maturity date specified above and 
promises to pay interest thereon from the date of original issue specified above or from the most recent 
Interest Payment Date (as hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, at the 
annual interest rate specified above, payable on February 1 and August 1 in each year, commencing 
February 1, 2021 (each such date, an “Interest Payment Date”), all subject to the provisions referred to 
herein with respect to the redemption of the principal of this Bond before maturity.  The interest so 
payable on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at 
the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month preceding 
such Interest Payment Date.  Interest hereon shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year composed 
of twelve 30-day months.  The interest hereon and, upon presentation and surrender hereof at the principal 
office of the agent of the Registrar described below, the principal hereof are payable in lawful money of 
the United States of America by check or draft drawn on U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, 
Minnesota, as Bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent, or its successor designated under the 
Resolution described herein (the “Registrar”) or other agreed-upon means of payment by the Registrar or 
its designated successor.  For the prompt and full payment of such principal and interest as the same 
respectively come due, the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the City have been and are hereby 
irrevocably pledged. 

This Bond is one of an issue (the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $[PAR] issued 
pursuant to a resolution adopted by the City Council on May 14, 2020 (the “Resolution”), to finance 
various street and sewer improvements in the City, various items of capital equipment, various street 
reconstruction projects, various capital improvement projects, and to fund the costs of issuance of the 
Bonds.  This Bond issued by authority of and in strict accordance with the provisions of the Constitution 
and laws of the State of Minnesota thereunto enabling, including Minnesota Statutes, Sections 412.301, 
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475.521, and 475.58, Subdivision 3(b), and Chapters 429, 444 and 475.  For the full and prompt payment 
of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due, the full faith, credit and taxing 
power of the City have been and are hereby irrevocably pledged.  The Bonds are issuable only in fully 
registered form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, of single maturities. 

Bonds maturing on February 1, 2030 and later years shall be subject to redemption and 
prepayment at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in such order of maturity dates as the City may 
select and, within a maturity, by lot as selected by the Registrar (or, if applicable, by the Bond depository 
in accordance with its customary procedures) in multiples of $5,000, on February 1, 2029, and on any 
date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof and accrued interest to the date of 
redemption.  The City shall cause notice of the call for redemption thereof to be published if and to the 
extent required by law, and at least thirty (30) and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the designated 
redemption date, shall cause notice of call for redemption to be mailed, by first class mail (or, if 
applicable, provided in accordance with the operational arrangements of the securities depository), to the 
registered holders of any Bonds, at the holders’ addresses as they appear on the Bond register maintained 
by the Bond Registrar, but no defect in or failure to give such mailed notice of redemption shall affect the 
validity of proceedings for the redemption of any Bond not affected by such defect or failure.  Official 
notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed 
shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified and from 
and after such date (unless the City shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or 
portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Upon partial redemption of any Bond, a new Bond or 
Bonds will be delivered to the owner without charge, representing the remaining principal amount 
outstanding. 

[TO BE COMPLETED IF THERE ARE TERM BONDS] 
 

[Bonds maturing on February 1, 20____ and 20____ (the “Term Bonds”) shall be subject to 
mandatory redemption prior to maturity pursuant to the sinking fund requirements of this Section 2.04 at 
a redemption price equal to the stated principal amount thereof plus interest accrued thereon to the 
redemption date, without premium.  The Registrar shall select for redemption, by lot or other manner 
deemed fair, on February 1 in each of the following years the following stated principal amounts of such 
Bonds: 

 
Year Principal Amount 

  
  

*  
 
*Final Maturity 

 

 
Year Principal Amount 

  
  

*  
 
*Final Maturity 

 

 
Notice of redemption shall be given as provided in the preceding paragraph.]. 
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As provided in the Resolution and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, this Bond is 
transferable upon the books of the City at the principal office of the Registrar, by the registered owner 
hereof in person or by the owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender hereof together 
with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner 
or the owner’s attorney, and may also be surrendered in exchange for Bonds of other authorized 
denominations.  Upon such transfer or exchange the City will cause a new Bond or Bonds to be issued in 
the name of the designated transferee or registered owner, of the same aggregate principal amount, 
bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date; subject to reimbursement for any tax, fee 
or governmental charge required to be paid with respect to any such transfer or exchange. 

The Bonds have been designated by the City as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” pursuant to 
Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

The City and the Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered 
as the absolute owner hereof, whether this Bond is overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment 
as herein provided and for all other purposes, and neither the City nor the Registrar shall be affected by 
any notice to the contrary. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Bond, so long as this Bond is registered in the name 
of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, or in the name of any other nominee of 
The Depository Trust Company or other securities depository, the Registrar shall pay all principal of and 
interest on this Bond, and shall give all notices with respect to this Bond, only to Cede & Co. or other 
nominee in accordance with the operational arrangements of The Depository Trust Company or other 
securities depository as agreed to by the City. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED, COVENANTED AND AGREED that all acts, 
conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, to exist, 
to happen and to be performed preliminary to and in the issuance of this Bond in order to make it a valid 
and binding general obligation of the City in accordance with its terms, have been done, do exist, have 
happened and have been performed as so required; that, prior to the issuance hereof, the City Council has 
by the Resolution covenanted and agreed to collect and apply to payment of the bonds ad valorem taxes 
levied on all taxable property in the City, certain net revenues of its municipal sewer system, and special 
assessments upon property specially benefited by the local improvements financed with the Bonds, which 
taxes, revenues, and assessments are estimated to be collectible in years and amounts sufficient to 
produce sums not less than 5% in excess of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due, and has 
appropriated such assessments, revenues and taxes to its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A Bond 
Fund for the payment of such principal and interest; that if necessary for the payment of such principal 
and interest, additional ad valorem taxes are required to be levied upon all taxable property in the City, 
without limitation as to rate or amount; that all proceedings relative to the projects financed by this Bond 
have been or will be taken according to law and that the issuance of this Bond, together with all other 
indebtedness of the City outstanding on the date hereof and on the date of its actual issuance and delivery, 
does not cause the indebtedness of the City to exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation of 
indebtedness. 

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security 
or benefit under the Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have been executed by 
the Registrar by manual signature of one of its authorized representatives. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be executed on its behalf by the 
facsimile signatures of its Mayor and City Administrator and has caused this Bond to be dated as of the 
date set forth below. 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
 
 
 
 

    
(facsimile signature – City Administrator) (facsimile signature – Mayor) 
 
 

__________ 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This is one of the Bonds delivered pursuant to the Resolution mentioned within. 

Date of Authentication: __________________ 
 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Registrar 
 
 
 
By   

Authorized Representative 
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The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall be 
construed as though they were written out in full according to the applicable laws or regulations: 

TEN COM --as tenants in common  UTMA …………. as Custodian for ………….. 
 (Cust)  (Minor) 
TEN ENT --as tenants by the entireties under Uniform Transfers to Minors Act ....…….. 
 (State) 
JT TEN --as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common 
 

Additional abbreviations may also be used. 
 
 

__________ 
 
 

ASSIGNMENT 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________ the within Bond 
and all rights thereunder, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 
______________________________________________________________________ attorney to 
transfer the said Bond on the books kept for registration of the within Bond, with full power of 
substitution in the premises. 

Dated:      
NOTICE:  The assignor’s signature to this assignment must 
correspond with the name as it appears upon the face of the 
within Bond in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 
Signature Guaranteed: 
 
  
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an “eligible guarantor institution” meeting the requirements of the 
Registrar, which requirements include membership or participation in STAMP or such other “signature 
guaranty program” as may be determined by the Registrar in addition to or in substitution for STAMP, all 
in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 
 
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR 
OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF 
ASSIGNEE: 
 
 
  
 

 



 

r 
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EXHIBIT C 
 

Special Assessments and Tax Levies 
 
 

[See Attached] 
 



 

4821-2491-1799\6 

SCOTT COUNTY AUDITOR’S  
CERTIFICATE AS TO REGISTRATION AND TAX LEVY 

 
 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting County Auditor of Scott County, 

Minnesota, hereby certifies that there has been filed in my office a certified copy of a resolution 

duly adopted on May 14, 2020, by the City Council of Elko New Market, Minnesota, setting 

forth the form and details of an issue of $[PAR] General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A dated 

the date of issuance thereof. 

I further certify that the issue has been entered on my bond register and the taxes required 

by law have been levied as required by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 475.61 to 475.63. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal on the _____ day of ____________, 2020. 

 
 
 

  
Scott County Auditor 

(SEAL) 
 



 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED MAY 1, 2020 
 
NEW ISSUE S&P Rating:  Requested 
BANK QUALIFIED 
 
In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Bond Counsel, based on existing law and assuming the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest 
on the Bonds (i) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), (ii) is not an item of tax 
preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Code, (iii) is excluded from taxable net income of individuals, estates, and trusts for 
Minnesota income tax purposes, and (iv) is not an item of tax preference for Minnesota alternative minimum tax purposes. The City will designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt 
obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal 
income tax purposes a portion of the interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.  See “TAX CONSIDERATIONS” herein. 
 

$4,965,000* 
 

City of Elko New Market, Minnesota 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 
 

 (Book Entry Only)  
Dated Date:  Date of Delivery Interest Due:  Each February 1 and August 1, 

  commencing February 1, 2021  
The Bonds will mature February 1 in the years and amounts* as follows:   
 

2021 $315,000 

2022 $280,000 

2023 $285,000 

2024 $295,000 

2025 $300,000 

2026 $300,000 

2027 $305,000 

2028 $310,000 

2029 $310,000 

2030 $325,000 

2031 $180,000 

2032 $180,000 

2033 $190,000 

2034 $195,000 

2035 $200,000 

2036 $185,000 

2037 $190,000 

2038 $200,000 

2039 $205,000 

2040 $215,000 

Proposals for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for a combination of serial bonds and term bonds.  All term 

bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption 

scheduled to conform to the maturity schedule set forth above. 
 
The City may elect on February 1, 2029, and on any day thereafter, to redeem Bonds due on or after February 1, 2030 at a price 
of par plus accrued interest.   
 
The Bonds are general obligations of the City for which the City pledges its full faith and credit and power to levy direct general 

ad valorem taxes.  In addition, the City will pledge special assessments against benefited properties and net revenues of the City’s 

water, sewer, and storm sewer systems for repayment of a portion of the Bonds.  The proceeds of the Bonds will be used to 

finance (i) construction of various capital improvements identified in the City’s 2019-2023 Capital Improvement and Street 

Reconstruction Plan adopted March 12, 2020; (ii) street reconstruction projects identified in the City’s 2019-2023 Capital 

Improvement and Street Reconstruction Plan adopted March 12, 2020; (iii) the acquisition of various items of equipment; (iv) 

various street improvement projects; and (v) sewer improvements. 
 
Proposals shall be for not less than $4,890,525 plus accrued interest, if any, on the total principal amount of the Bonds.  Proposals 

shall specify rates in integral multiples of 1/100 or 1/8 of 1%.  The initial price to the public for each maturity as stated on the 

proposal must be 98.0% or greater.  Following receipt of proposals, a good faith deposit will be required to be delivered to the 

City by the lowest bidder as described in the “Terms of Proposal” herein.  Award of the Bonds will be made on the basis of True 

Interest Cost (TIC). 
 
The City will designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
The Bonds will be issued as fully registered obligations without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of 

Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”).  DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  

Individual purchases may be made in book entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.  

Investors will not receive physical certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased.  (See “Book Entry System” 

herein.)  U.S. Bank National Association, Saint Paul, Minnesota will serve as registrar (the “Registrar”) for the Bonds.  The 

Bonds will be available for delivery at DTC on or about June 11, 2020.  
 PROPOSALS RECEIVED: Thursday, May 14, 2020 until 10:00 A.M., Central Time  
 CONSIDERATION OF AWARD: Council meeting commencing at 6:00 P.M., Central Time on  

Thursday, May 14, 2020  
   
   
  Further information may be obtained from Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, 

LLC, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101-2887 
(651) 223-3000. 



 

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC is a registered municipal advisor and wholly-owned subsidiary of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, an accounting 
firm.  Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of 

which are separate and independent legal entities.  © 2020 Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC. 
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For purposes of compliance with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this document, 
as the same may be supplemented or corrected by the City from time to time, may be treated as a Preliminary 
Official Statement with respect to the Bonds described herein that is deemed final as of the date hereof (or 
of any such supplement or correction) by the City. 
 
By awarding the Bonds to any underwriter or underwriting syndicate submitting a Proposal therefor, the 
City agrees that, no more than seven business days after the date of such award, it shall provide without 
cost to the senior managing underwriter of the syndicate to which the Bonds are awarded copies of the Final 
Official Statement in the amount specified in the Terms of Proposal. 
 
No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to 
make any representations with respect to the Bonds, other than as contained in the Preliminary Official 
Statement or the Final Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representations 
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the City.   
 
Certain information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Final Official Statement may 
have been obtained from sources other than records of the City and, while believed to be reliable, is not 
guaranteed as to completeness or accuracy.  THE INFORMATION AND EXPRESSIONS OF OPINION 
IN THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE, AND NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT NOR THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY SALE MADE UNDER EITHER 
SUCH DOCUMENT SHALL CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE 
IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE CITY SINCE THE RESPECTIVE DATE THEREOF. 
 
References herein to laws, rules, regulations, resolutions, agreements, reports and other documents do not 
purport to be comprehensive or definitive.  All references to such documents are qualified in their entirety 
by reference to the particular document, the full text of which may contain qualifications of and exceptions 
to statements made herein.  Where full texts have not been included as appendices to the Preliminary 
Official Statement or the Final Official Statement, they will be furnished upon request. 
 
Any CUSIP numbers for the Bonds included in the Final Official Statement are provided for convenience 
of the owners and prospective investors.  The CUSIP numbers for the Bonds are assigned by an organization 
unaffiliated with the City.  The City is not responsible for the selection of the CUSIP numbers and makes 
no representation as to the accuracy thereof as printed on the Bonds or as set forth in the Final Official 
Statement.  No assurance can be given by the City that the CUSIP numbers for the Bonds will remain the 
same after the delivery of the Final Official Statement or the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds. 
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THE CITY HAS AUTHORIZED BAKER TILLY MUNICIPAL ADVISORS, LLC TO 
NEGOTIATE THIS ISSUE ON ITS BEHALF.  PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED ON THE 
FOLLOWING BASIS: 
 
 

TERMS OF PROPOSAL 
 

$4,965,000* 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020A 
 

 (BOOK ENTRY ONLY) 
 
 
Proposals for the above-referenced obligations (the “Bonds”) will be received by the City of Elko New 
Market, Minnesota (the “City”) on Thursday, May 14, 2020 (the “Sale Date”) until 10:00 A.M., Central 
Time (the “Sale Time”) at the offices of Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC (“Baker Tilly MA”), 
380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, Saint Paul, Minnesota, 55101, after which time proposals will be opened and 
tabulated.  Consideration for award of the Bonds will be by the City Council at its meeting commencing at 
6:00 P.M., Central Time, of the same day.   
 

SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS 
 
Baker Tilly MA will assume no liability for the inability of a bidder or its proposal to reach Baker Tilly 
MA prior to the Sale Time, and neither the City nor Baker Tilly MA shall be responsible for any failure, 
misdirection or error in the means of transmission selected by any bidder.  All bidders are advised that each 
proposal shall be deemed to constitute a contract between the bidder and the City to purchase the Bonds 
regardless of the manner in which the proposal is submitted. 
 
(a)  Sealed Bidding.  Completed, signed proposals may be submitted to Baker Tilly MA by email to 
bondservice@bakertilly.com or by fax (651) 223-3046, and must be received prior to the Sale Time. 
 
OR 
 
(b)  Electronic Bidding. Proposals may also be received via PARITY®.  For purposes of the electronic 
bidding process, the time as maintained by PARITY® shall constitute the official time with respect to all 
proposals submitted to PARITY®.  Each bidder shall be solely responsible for making necessary 
arrangements to access PARITY® for purposes of submitting its electronic proposal in a timely manner and 
in compliance with the requirements of the Terms of Proposal.  Neither the City, its agents, nor PARITY® 
shall have any duty or obligation to undertake registration to bid for any prospective bidder or to provide 
or ensure electronic access to any qualified prospective bidder, and neither the City, its agents, nor 
PARITY® shall be responsible for a bidder’s failure to register to bid or for any failure in the proper 
operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of or any damages caused by the services 
of PARITY®.  The City is using the services of PARITY® solely as a communication mechanism to conduct 
the electronic bidding for the Bonds, and PARITY® is not an agent of the City. 
 
If any provisions of this Terms of Proposal conflict with information provided by PARITY®, this Terms of 
Proposal shall control.  Further information about PARITY®, including any fee charged, may be obtained 
from: 
 

PARITY®, 1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10018 
Customer Support:  (212) 849-5000 

 

mailto:bondservice@bakertilly.com
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DETAILS OF THE BONDS 
 
The Bonds will be dated June 11, 2020 and will bear interest payable on February 1 and August 1 of each 
year, commencing February 1, 2021.  Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 
 
The Bonds will mature February 1 in the years and amounts* as follows: 
 
2021 $315,000 

2022 $280,000 

2023 $285,000 

2024 $295,000 

2025 $300,000 

2026 $300,000 

2027 $305,000 

2028 $310,000 

2029 $310,000 

2030 $325,000 

2031 $180,000 

2032 $180,000 

2033 $190,000 

2034 $195,000 

2035 $200,000 

2036 $185,000 

2037 $190,000 

2038 $200,000 

2039 $205,000 

2040 $215,000 

 
* The City reserves the right, after proposals are opened and prior to award, to increase or reduce the principal 

amount of the Bonds or the amount of any maturity or maturities in multiples of $5,000.  In the event the amount 
of any maturity is modified, the aggregate purchase price will be adjusted to result in the same gross spread per 
$1,000 of Bonds as that of the original proposal.  Gross spread for this purpose is the differential between the 
price paid to the City for the new issue and the prices at which the proposal indicates the securities will be initially 
offered to the investing public. 

 
Proposals for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for a combination of serial bonds and 
term bonds.  All term bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at a price of par plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption scheduled to conform to the maturity schedule set forth above.  
In order to designate term bonds, the proposal must specify “Years of Term Maturities” in the spaces 
provided on the proposal form. 
 

BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM 
 
The Bonds will be issued by means of a book entry system with no physical distribution of Bonds made to 
the public.  The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form and one Bond, representing the aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds maturing in each year, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as 
nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, which will act as securities 
depository for the Bonds.  Individual purchases of the Bonds may be made in the principal amount of $5,000 
or any multiple thereof of a single maturity through book entries made on the books and records of DTC 
and its participants.  Principal and interest are payable by the registrar to DTC or its nominee as registered 
owner of the Bonds.  Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of DTC will be the 
responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by participants will 
be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial owners.  The lowest bidder (the 
“Purchaser”), as a condition of delivery of the Bonds, will be required to deposit the Bonds with DTC.   
 

REGISTRAR 
 
The City will name the registrar which shall be subject to applicable regulations of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  The City will pay for the services of the registrar. 
 

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION 
 
The City may elect on February 1, 2029, and on any day thereafter, to redeem Bonds due on or after 
February 1, 2030.  Redemption may be in whole or in part and if in part at the option of the City and in 
such manner as the City shall determine.  If less than all Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption, the 
City will notify DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed.  DTC will determine by lot 
the amount of each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then 
select by lot the beneficial ownership interests in such maturity to be redeemed.  All redemptions shall be 
at a price of par plus accrued interest.   
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SECURITY AND PURPOSE 
 

The Bonds will be general obligations of the City for which the City will pledge its full faith and credit and 

power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes.  In addition, the City will pledge special assessments against 

benefited properties and net revenues of the City’s water, sewer, and storm sewer systems for repayment 

of a portion of the Bonds.   The proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance (i) construction of various 

capital improvements identified in the City’s 2019-2023 Capital Improvement and Street Reconstruction 

Plan adopted March 12, 2020; (ii) street reconstruction projects identified in the City’s 2019-2023 Capital 

Improvement and Street Reconstruction Plan adopted March 12, 2020; (iii) the acquisition of various items 

of equipment); (iv) various street improvement projects; and (v) sewer improvements. 
 

BANK QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS 
 
The City will designate the Bonds as qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 

BIDDING PARAMETERS  
 
Proposals shall be for not less than $4,890,525 plus accrued interest, if any, on the total principal amount 
of the Bonds.  No proposal can be withdrawn or amended after the time set for receiving proposals on the 
Sale Date unless the meeting of the City scheduled for award of the Bonds is adjourned, recessed, or 
continued to another date without award of the Bonds having been made.  Rates shall be in integral multiples 
of 1/100 or 1/8 of 1%.  The initial price to the public for each maturity as stated on the proposal must be 
98.0% or greater. Bonds of the same maturity shall bear a single rate from the date of the Bonds to the date 
of maturity.  No conditional proposals will be accepted. 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE  
 
In order to establish the issue price of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes, the City requires bidders 
to agree to the following, and by submitting a proposal, each bidder agrees to the following.   
 
If a proposal is submitted by a potential underwriter, the bidder confirms that (i) the underwriters have 
offered or reasonably expect to offer the Bonds to the public on or before the date of the award at the 
offering price (the “initial offering price”) for each maturity as set forth in the proposal and (ii) the bidder, 
if it is the winning bidder, shall require any agreement among underwriters, selling group agreement, 
third-party distribution agreement or other agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public 
to which it is a party to include provisions requiring compliance by all parties to such agreements with the 
provisions contained herein.  For purposes hereof, Bonds with a separate CUSIP number constitute a 
separate “maturity,” and “the public” does not include underwriters of the Bonds (including members of a 
selling group or retail distribution group) or persons related to underwriters of the Bonds. 
 
If, however, a proposal is submitted for the bidder’s own account in a capacity other than as an underwriter 
of the Bonds, and the bidder has no current intention to sell, reoffer, or otherwise dispose of the Bonds, the 
bidder shall notify the District to that effect at the time it submits its proposal and shall provide a certificate 
to that effect in place of the certificate otherwise required below. 
 
If the winning bidder intends to act as an underwriter, the City shall advise the winning bidder at or prior 
to the time of award whether (i) the competitive sale rule or (ii) the “hold-the-offering price” rule applies. 
 
If the City advises the Purchaser that the requirements for a competitive sale have been satisfied and that 
the competitive sale rule applies, the Purchaser will be required to deliver to the City at or prior to closing 
a certification, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, as to the reasonably expected initial 
offering price as of the award date.  
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If the City advises the Purchaser that the requirements for a competitive sale have not been satisfied, the 
hold-the-offering price rule will apply.  The Purchaser shall (1) upon the request of the City confirm that 
the underwriters did not offer or sell any maturity of the Bonds to any person at a price higher than the 
initial offering price of that maturity during the period starting on the award date and ending on the earlier 
of (a) the close of the fifth business day after the sale date or (b) the date on which the underwriters have 
sold at least 10% of that maturity to the public at or below the initial offering price; and (2) at or prior to 
closing, deliver to the City a certification substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, together 
with a copy of the pricing wire. 
 
Any action to be taken or documentation to be received by the City pursuant hereto may be taken or received 
on behalf of the City by Baker Tilly MA. 
 
Bidders should prepare their proposals on the assumption that the Bonds will be subject to the “hold-
the-offering-price” rule.  Any proposal submitted pursuant to the Terms of Proposal shall be 
considered a firm offer for the purchase of the Bonds, and proposals submitted will not be subject to 
cancellation or withdrawal. 
 

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT 
 
To have its proposal considered for award, the Purchaser is required to submit a good faith deposit via wire 
transfer to the City in the amount of $49,650 (the “Deposit”) no later than 1:00 P.M., Central Time on the 
Sale Date.  The Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the timely delivery of its Deposit, and neither the 
City nor Baker Tilly MA have any liability for delays in the receipt of the Deposit.  If the Deposit is not 
received by the specified time, the City may, at its sole discretion, reject the proposal of the lowest bidder, 
direct the second lowest bidder to submit a Deposit, and thereafter award the sale to such bidder. 
 
A Deposit will be considered timely delivered to the City upon submission of a federal wire reference 
number by the specified time.  Wire transfer instructions will be available from Baker Tilly MA following 
the receipt and tabulation of proposals.  The successful bidder must send an e-mail including the following 
information: (i) the federal reference number and time released; (ii) the amount of the wire transfer; and 
(iii) the issue to which it applies.  
 
Once an award has been made, the Deposit received from the Purchaser will be retained by the City and no 
interest will accrue to the Purchaser.  The amount of the Deposit will be deducted at settlement from the 
purchase price.  In the event the Purchaser fails to comply with the accepted proposal, said amount will be 
retained by the City. 
 

AWARD 
 
The Bonds will be awarded on the basis of the lowest interest rate to be determined on a true interest cost 
(TIC) basis calculated on the proposal prior to any adjustment made by the City.  The City's computation 
of the interest rate of each proposal, in accordance with customary practice, will be controlling. 
 
The City will reserve the right to:  (i) waive non-substantive informalities of any proposal or of matters 
relating to the receipt of proposals and award of the Bonds, (ii) reject all proposals without cause, and 
(iii) reject any proposal that the City determines to have failed to comply with the terms herein. 
 

BOND INSURANCE AT PURCHASER'S OPTION 
 
The City has not applied for or pre-approved a commitment for any policy of municipal bond insurance 
with respect to the Bonds.  If the Bonds qualify for municipal bond insurance and a bidder desires to 
purchase a policy, such indication, the maturities to be insured, and the name of the desired insurer must be 
set forth on the bidder’s proposal.  The City specifically reserves the right to reject any proposal specifying 
municipal bond insurance, even though such proposal may result in the lowest TIC to the City.  All costs 
associated with the issuance and administration of such policy and associated ratings and expenses (other 
than any independent rating requested by the City) shall be paid by the successful bidder.  Failure of the 
municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the award of the Bonds shall not constitute cause for failure 
or refusal by the successful bidder to accept delivery of the Bonds.  
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CUSIP NUMBERS 
 
If the Bonds qualify for the assignment of CUSIP numbers such numbers will be printed on the Bonds; 
however, neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto will 
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds.  Baker Tilly MA 
will apply for CUSIP numbers pursuant to Rule G-34 implemented by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board.  The CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of CUSIP identification numbers shall be 
paid by the Purchaser. 
 

SETTLEMENT 
 
On or about June 11, 2020, the Bonds will be delivered without cost to the Purchaser through DTC in New 
York, New York.  Delivery will be subject to receipt by the Purchaser of an approving legal opinion of 
Dorsey & Whitney LLP of Minneapolis, Minnesota, and of customary closing papers, including a no-
litigation certificate.  On the date of settlement, payment for the Bonds shall be made in federal, or 
equivalent, funds that shall be received at the offices of the City or its designee not later than 12:00 Noon, 
Central Time.  Unless compliance with the terms of payment for the Bonds has been made impossible by 
action of the City, or its agents, the Purchaser shall be liable to the City for any loss suffered by the City by 
reason of the Purchaser's non-compliance with said terms for payment. 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
 
In accordance with SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5), the City will undertake, pursuant to the resolution awarding 
sale of the Bonds, to provide annual reports and notices of certain events.  A description of this undertaking 
is set forth in the Official Statement.  The Purchaser's obligation to purchase the Bonds will be conditioned 
upon receiving evidence of this undertaking at or prior to delivery of the Bonds. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
The City has authorized the preparation of a Preliminary Official Statement containing pertinent 
information relative to the Bonds, and said Preliminary Official Statement has been deemed final by the 
City as of the date thereof within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission.  
For an electronic copy of the Preliminary Official Statement or for any additional information prior to sale, 
any prospective purchaser is referred to the Municipal Advisor to the City, Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, 
LLC, by telephone (651) 223-3000, or by email bondservice@bakertilly.com.  The Preliminary Official 
Statement will also be made available at https://go.bakertilly.com/bond-sales-calendar.  
 
A Final Official Statement (as that term is defined in Rule 15c2-12) will be prepared, specifying the maturity 
dates, principal amounts, and interest rates of the Bonds, together with any other information required by 
law.  By awarding the Bonds to the Purchaser, the City agrees that, no more than seven business days after 
the date of such award, it shall provide to the Purchaser an electronic copy of the Final Official Statement.  
The City designates the Purchaser as its agent for purposes of distributing the Final Official Statement to 
each syndicate member, if applicable.  The Purchaser agrees that if its proposal is accepted by the City, 
(i) it shall accept designation and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with its syndicate members 
for purposes of assuring the receipt of the Final Official Statement by each such syndicate member. 
 
Dated April 9, 2020 BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

/s/ Mr. Thomas Terry 
City Administrator 

mailto:bondservice@bakertilly.com
https://go.bakertilly.com/bond-sales-calendar
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EXHIBIT A 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE – COMPETITIVE SALES WITH AT LEAST THREE BIDS 

FROM ESTABLISHED UNDERWRITERS 

 

$[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT] 

[BOND CAPTION] 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

 The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF UNDERWRITER] (“[SHORT NAME OF 

UNDERWRITER]”), hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale of the obligations named 

above (the “Bonds”).   

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.   

(a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the Bonds to the 

Public by [SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER] are the prices listed in Schedule A (the “Expected 

Offering Prices”).  The Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Maturities of the Bonds used by 

[SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER] in formulating its bid to purchase the Bonds.  Attached as Schedule 

B is a true and correct copy of the bid provided by [SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER] to purchase the 

Bonds. 

(b) [SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER] was not given the opportunity to review other bids 

prior to submitting its bid. 

(c) The bid submitted by [SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER] constituted a firm offer to 

purchase the Bonds. 

2. Defined Terms.  For purposes of this Issue Price Certificate: 

(a) Issuer means [DESCRIBE ISSUER]. 

(b) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms.  Any Bonds with different 

maturity dates, or with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate 

Maturities. 

(c) Member of the Distribution Group means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 

contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in 

the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract 

directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale 

of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement 

participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public). 

(d) Public means any person (i.e., an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, 

company, or corporation) other than a Member of the Distribution Group or a related party to a Member of 

the Distribution Group.  A person is a “related party” to a Member of the Distribution Group if the Member 

of the Distribution Group and that person are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common 

ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including 

direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital 

interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership 

of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the 

corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a 
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corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or 

interests by one entity of the other). 

(e) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of 

the respective Maturity.  The Sale Date of each Maturity was [DATE].  

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.  Nothing in this 

certificate represents [SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER]’s interpretation of any laws, including 

specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury 

Regulations thereunder.  The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon 

by the Issuer[ and BORROWER (the “Borrower”)] with respect to certain of the representations set forth 

in the [Tax Certificate][Tax Exemption Agreement] and with respect to compliance with the federal income 

tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by [BOND COUNSEL] in connection with rendering its opinion that the 

interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the 

Internal Revenue Service Form 8038[-G][-GC][-TC], and other federal income tax advice that it may give 

to the Issuer[ and the Borrower] from time to time relating to the Bonds. 

[UNDERWRITER] 

 

By:______________________________________

_ 

Name:___________________________________

__ 

Dated:  [ISSUE DATE] 
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SCHEDULE A 

EXPECTED OFFERING PRICES 

(Attached) 
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SCHEDULE B 

COPY OF UNDERWRITER’S BID 

(Attached) 
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EXHIBIT B 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE – COMPETITIVE SALES WITH FEWER THAN THREE 

BIDS FROM ESTABLISHED UNDERWRITERS 

 

$[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT] 

[BOND CAPTION] 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

 The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF UNDERWRITER/REPRESENTATIVE] ( [“[SHORT 

NAME OF UNDERWRITER]”)][the “Representative”)][, on behalf of itself and [NAMES OF OTHER 

UNDERWRITERS] (together, the “Underwriting Group”),] hereby certifies as set forth below with respect 

to the sale of the obligations named above (the “Bonds”). 

 1. Initial Offering Price of the Bonds.  [SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER][The 

Underwriting Group] offered the Bonds to the Public for purchase at the specified initial offering prices 

listed in Schedule A (the “Initial Offering Prices”) on or before the Sale Date.  A copy of the pricing wire 

for the Bonds is attached to this certificate as Schedule B. 

 

 2.  First Price at which Sold to the Public.  On the Sale Date, at least 10% of each Maturity 

[listed in Schedule C] was first sold to the Public at the respective Initial Offering Price [or price specified 

[therein][in Schedule C], if different]. 

 

3.  Hold the Offering Price Rule.  [SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER][Each member of 

the Underwriting Group] has agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity less than 10% of which was first 

sold to the Public at a single price as of the Sale Date, it would neither offer nor sell any of the Bonds of 

such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during 

the Holding Period for such Maturity (the “Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule”), and (ii) any agreement among 

underwriters, selling group agreement, or third-party distribution agreement contains the agreement of each 

underwriter, dealer, or broker-dealer who is a party to such agreement to comply with the Hold-the-

Offering-Price Rule.  Based on the [Representative][SHORT NAME OF UNDERWRITER]’s own 

knowledge and, in the case of sales by other Members of the Distribution Group, representations obtained 

from the other Members of the Distribution Group, no Member of the Distribution Group has offered or 

sold any such Maturity at a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price during the respective 

Holding Period. 

 

 4. Defined Terms.  For purposes of this Issue Price Certificate: 

(a) Holding Period means the period starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) 

the close of the fifth business day after the Sale Date ([DATE]), or (ii) the date on which Members of the 

Distribution Group have sold at least 10% of such Maturity to the Public at one or more prices, none of 

which is higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity. 

(b) Issuer means [DESCRIBE ISSUER]. 

(c) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms.  Any Bonds with different 

maturity dates, or with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate 

Maturities. 
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(d) Member of the Distribution Group means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 

contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in 

the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract 

directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale 

of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement 

participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public). 

(e) Public means any person (i.e., an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, 

company, or corporation) other than a Member of the Distribution Group or a related party to a Member of 

the Distribution Group.  A person is a “related party” to a Member of the Distribution Group if the Member 

of the Distribution Group and that person are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common 

ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including 

direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital 

interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership 

of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the 

corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a 

corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or 

interests by one entity of the other). 

(f) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of 

the respective Maturity.  The Sale Date of each Maturity was [DATE]. 

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.  Nothing in this 

certificate represents [NAME OF UNDEWRITING FIRM][the Representative’s] interpretation of any 

laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and 

the Treasury Regulations thereunder.  The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be 

relied upon by the Issuer[ and BORROWER (the “Borrower”)] with respect to certain of the representations 

set forth in the [Tax Certificate][Tax Exemption Agreement] and with respect to compliance with the 

federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by [BOND COUNSEL] in connection with rendering its 

opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the 

preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038[-G][-GC][-TC], and other federal income tax advice 

that it may give to the Issuer[ and the Borrower] from time to time relating to the Bonds. 

[UNDERWRITER][REPRESENTATIVE] 

 

By:______________________________________

_ 

Name:___________________________________

__ 

Dated:  [ISSUE DATE] 
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SCHEDULE A 

INITIAL OFFERING PRICES OF THE BONDS 

(Attached)  
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SCHEDULE B 

PRICING WIRE 

(Attached) 
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SCHEDULE C 

SALES OF AT LEAST 10% OF MATURITY TO THE PUBLIC ON THE SALE DATE 

AT THE INITIAL OFFERING PRICE 

(Attached) 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
 

$4,965,000* 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2020A 
 

 (BOOK ENTRY ONLY) 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 
 
 
General 
 
This Official Statement contains certain information relating to the City of Elko New Market, Minnesota (the 
“City”) and its issuance of $4,965,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds 
are general obligations of the City for which it pledges its full faith and credit and power to levy direct general 
ad valorem taxes.  In addition, the City will pledge special assessments against benefited properties and net 
revenues of the City’s water, sewer, and storm sewer systems for repayment of a portion of the Bonds.   
 
Inquiries may be directed to Mr. Thomas Terry, City Administrator, City of Elko New Market, 601 Main 
Street, Elko New Market, Minnesota 55054, by telephoning (952) 461-2777, or by emailing 
tterry@ci.enm.mn.us.  Inquiries may also be made to Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC, 380 Jackson 
Street, Suite 300, Saint Paul, Minnesota  55101-2887, by telephoning (651) 223-3000, or by e-mailing 
bondservice@bakertilly.com.   
 
 
Potential Impacts Resulting from Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization proclaimed the Coronavirus (COVID-19) to be a 
pandemic.  In an effort to lessen the risk of transmission of COVID-19, the United States government, state 
governments, local governments and private industries have taken measures to limit social interactions in an 
effort to limit the spread of COVID-19, affecting business activities and impacting global, state and local 
commerce and financial markets.  The emergence of COVID-19 and the spread thereof is an emerging and 
evolving issue.  As the federal, state, and local governments, including the City, continue efforts to contain 
and limit the spread COVID-19 disease, future tax and other revenue collections may deviate from historical 
or anticipated collections and may have an adverse impact on the financial position and operations of the City 
and its ability to fund debt obligations, including the Bonds in accordance with its terms.  The City is not able 
to predict and makes no representations as to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the City or 
its financial position. 
 
 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
 

 
In order to permit bidders for the Bonds and other participating underwriters in the primary offering of the 
Bonds to comply with paragraph h (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”), the City will covenant and 
agree, for the benefit of the registered holders or beneficial owners from time to time of the outstanding Bonds, 
in the City Resolution, to provide annual reports of specified information and notice of the occurrence of 
certain events, if material, as hereinafter described (the “Disclosure Covenants”).  The information to be 
provided on an annual basis, the events as to which notice is to be given, if material, and a summary of other 
provisions of the Disclosure Covenants, including termination, amendment and remedies, are set forth in 
Appendix II to this Official Statement.  
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The City believes it has complied for the past five years in accordance with the terms of its previous continuing 
disclosure undertakings entered into pursuant to the Rule. 
 
A failure by the City to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds 
(although holders will have any available remedy at law or in equity).  Nevertheless, such a failure must be 
reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities 
dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Consequently, such 
a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 

 

 

 
THE BONDS 

 
 
General Description 
 
The Bonds are dated as of the date of delivery and will mature annually on February 1 as set forth on the front 
cover of this Official Statement.  The Bonds are issued in book entry form.  Interest on the Bonds is payable 
on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2021.  Interest will be payable to the holder 
(initially Cede & Co.) registered on the books of the Registrar as of the fifteenth day of the calendar month 
next preceding such interest payment date.  Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months.  Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be paid as described in the section herein entitled 
“Book Entry System.”  U.S. Bank National Association, Saint Paul, Minnesota will serve as Registrar for the 
Bonds, and the City will pay for registrar services. 
 
 
Redemption Provisions 
 
Thirty days’ written notice of redemption shall be given to the registered owner(s) of the Bonds.  Failure to 
give such written notice to any registered owner of the Bonds or any defect therein shall not affect the validity 
of any proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds.  All Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption will 
cease to bear interest after the specified redemption date, provided funds for their redemption are on deposit 
at the place of payment.  
 
Optional Redemption 
 
The City may elect on February 1, 2029, and on any day thereafter, to redeem Bonds due on or after 
February 1, 2030.  Redemption may be in whole or in part and if in part at the option of the City and in such 
manner as the City shall determine.  If less than all the Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption, the City 
will notify DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed.  DTC will determine by lot the 
amount of each participant’s interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by 
lot the beneficial ownership interests in such maturity to be redeemed.  All redemptions shall be at a price of 
par plus accrued interest. 
 
 
Book Entry System 
 
The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One 
fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount 
of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.     

 
DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking 
organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a 
“clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing 
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agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC 
holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate 
and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants 
(“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct 
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized 
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical 
movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company 
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation all of which are 
registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC 
system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct 
Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants 
are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at 
www.dtcc.com. 
 
Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive 
a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond 
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial 
Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, 
expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements 
of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the 
transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books 
of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive 
certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry 
system for the Bonds is discontinued. 
 
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the 
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or 
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the 
actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to 
whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and 
Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 
 
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to 
them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and 
proposed amendments to the Bond documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to 
ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to 
Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to 
the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 
 
Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being redeemed, 
DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to 
be redeemed. 
 
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds 
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI procedures.  Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus 
Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the 
Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

  

http://www.dtcc.com/
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Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co. or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct 
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or its 
agent on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments 
by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is 
the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and 
will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and 
dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative 
of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or its agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will 
be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the 
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 
 
DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving 
reasonable notice to City or its agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is 
not obtained, certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 
 
The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor 
securities depository).  In that event, certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 
 
The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources 
that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
 
 
 

AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 
 
 
The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 429, 444, 475, Sections 412.301, 
475.521, and 475.58 (subd. 3b), and the City’s 2019-2023 Capital Improvement and Street Reconstruction 
Plan adopted March 12, 2020. 

 

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance (i) construction of various capital improvements identified 

in the City’s 2019-2023 Capital Improvement and Street Reconstruction Plan adopted March 12, 2020 (the 

“CIP Portion”); (ii) street reconstruction projects identified in the City’s 2019-2023 Capital Improvement and 

Street Reconstruction Plan adopted March 12, 2020 (the “Street Reconstruction Portion”); (iii) the acquisition 

of various items of equipment (the “Equipment Portion”); (iv) various street improvement projects (the 

“Improvement Portion”); and (v) sewer improvements (the “Utility Portion”). 
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 SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 
 
 

The composition of the Bonds is estimated to be as follows: 
 
                Street 
 CIP Reconstruction Equipment Improvement Utility 

 Portion Portion Portion Portion Portion  Total 

 

Sources of Funds: 

  Principal Amount $2,065,000 $1,240,000 $815,000 $595,000 $250,000 $4,965,000 

  Prepaid Special Assessments 0 0 0 16,000 0 16,000 

 Water Funds         0         0       0     7,644       0     7,644 

  

 Total Sources of Funds $2,065,000 $1,240,000 $815,000 $618,644 $250,000 $4,988,644 

 

Uses of Funds: 

  Deposit to Project Fund $2,000,000 $1,205,000 $790,000 $600,000 $242,700 $4,837,700 

  Costs of Issuance 34,025 16,400 12,775 9,719 3,550 76,469 

  Allowance for Discount  

    Bidding     30,975     18,600   12,225    8,925    3,750     74,475 

 

 Total Uses of Funds $2,065,000 $1,240,000 $815,000 $618,644 $250,000 $4,988,644 

 
 
 

SECURITY AND FINANCING 
 
 
The Bonds will be general obligations of the City for which the City will pledge its full faith and credit and 
power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes.  Additional sources of security for the Bonds are described 
below. 

 

 
CIP Portion 
 
The City will make its first levy for the CIP Portion of the Bonds in 2020 for collection in 2021.  The City 
expects to use available City funds to pay the principal and interest payment due February 1, 2021 on the CIP 
Portion of the Bonds.  Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes, if collected in full, will be sufficient to pay 
105% of the interest payment due August 1 of the collection year and the principal and interest payment due 
February 1 of the following year.   
 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.521, limits the maximum amount of principal and interest to become due in 
any year on all outstanding capital improvement plan bonds to be not more than 0.16% of the estimated market 
value of property for taxes payable in the year in which the bonds are issued or sold.  The statutory maximum 
allowable for annual debt service on the City’s capital improvement plan bonds is $754,435, based on the 
City’s 2019/20 estimated market value of $471,522,400.  The maximum annual debt service for the City’s 
outstanding capital improvement plan bond issues, including an estimate for the CIP Portion of the Bonds, is 
approximately $310,073, which is within the statutory limit. 
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Street Reconstruction Portion  
 
The City will make its first levy for the Street Reconstruction Portion of the Bonds in 2020 for collection in 
2021.  The City expects to use available City funds to pay the principal and interest payment due February 1, 
2021 on the Street Reconstruction Portion of the Bonds.  Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes, if collected 
in full, will be sufficient to pay 105% of the interest payment due August 1 of the collection year and the 
principal and interest payment due February 1 of the following year. 
 
 
Equipment Portion 
 
The City will make its first levy for the Equipment Portion of the Bonds in 2020 for collection in 2021.  The 
City expects to use available City funds to pay the principal and interest payment due February 1, 2021 on the 
Equipment Portion of the Bonds.  Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes, if collected in full, will be 
sufficient to pay 105% of the interest payment due August 1 of the collection year and the principal and interest 
payment due February 1 of the following year. 
 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 412.301, as amended, specifies that the City may issue certificates of indebtedness 
to purchase capital equipment without referendum and without being subject to a petition for a referendum if 
the total amount of the issue does not exceed ¼ of 1% of the estimated market value of the City.  Based on the 
City’s 2019/20 estimated market value of $471,522,400, this represents a maximum issue size of 
approximately $1,178,806.  The principal amount of the Equipment Portion of the Bonds in the amount of 
$815,000 is within that limitation and is therefore not subject to petition. 
 
 
Improvement Portion 
 
The City pledges special assessments against benefited properties for repayment of the Improvement Portion 
of the Bonds.  Special assessments in the principal amount of approximately $158,771 were filed in 2019 for 
collection in 2020.  The City received prepayments of approximately $16,000.  Assessments were filed over a 
term of 10 years with equal annual payments of principal and interest.  Interest on the unpaid balance is charged 
at an interest rate of 3.0%.   
 
The City will also levy taxes for repayment of the Improvement Portion of the Bonds and will make its first 
levy in 2020 for collection in 2021.  The City expects to use available City funds and special assessments to 
pay the principal and interest payment due February 1, 2021 on the Improvement Portion of the Bonds.  
Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes and special assessments, if collected in full, will be sufficient to pay 
105% of the interest payment due August 1 of the collection year and the principal and interest payment due 
February 1 of the following year. 
 
 
Utility Portion 
 
Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 444, and the resolution awarding the sale of the Bonds, the City will 
covenant to maintain rates for the service, use, availability and connection to the City’s Water, Sewer, and 
Storm Sewer systems to produce net revenues in amounts sufficient to support the operation of the City’s 
Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer systems and to pay 105% of the debt service due on obligations to which it 
has pledged its Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer revenues, including the Utility Portion of the Bonds.  The City 
is required to annually review the budget of the City’s Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer systems to determine 
whether current rates and charges are sufficient and to adjust such rates and charges as necessary. The City 
does not anticipate the need to levy taxes for repayment of the Utility Portion of the Bonds.   
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FUTURE FINANCING 
 
 
The City does not anticipate issuing any additional long-term general obligation debt within the next 90 days. 
 
 
 

LITIGATION 
 
 
The City is not aware of any threatened or pending litigation affecting the validity of the Bonds or the City's 
ability to meet its financial obligations. 
 

 

 
LEGALITY 

 
 
The Bonds are subject to approval as to certain matters by Dorsey & Whitney, LLP, of Minneapolis, 
Minnesota, as Bond Counsel.  Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Official Statement 
and will not pass upon its accuracy, completeness, or sufficiency.  Bond Counsel has not examined nor 
attempted to examine or verify any of the financial or statistical statements or data contained in this Official 
Statement and will express no opinion with respect thereto.  A legal opinion in substantially the form set out 
in Appendix I herein will be delivered at closing. 

 
 
 

TAX CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 
The following is a summary of certain U.S. federal and Minnesota income tax considerations relating to the 
purchase, ownership, and disposition of the Bonds. This summary is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986 (the “Code”) and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial decisions, and published 
rulings and administrative pronouncements of the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”), all as of the date 
hereof and all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect.  Any such change could 
adversely affect the matters discussed below, including the tax exemption of interest on the Bonds.  The City 
has not sought and will not seek any rulings from the IRS regarding the matters discussed below, and there 
can be no assurance the IRS or a court will not take a contrary position regarding these matters.  
 
Prospective purchasers of Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to applicable 
federal, state, and local tax rules, and any pending or proposed legislation or regulatory or 
administrative actions, relating to the Bonds based on their own particular circumstances. 
 
This summary is for general information only and is not intended to constitute a complete analysis of all tax 
considerations relating to the purchase, ownership, and disposition of Bonds.  It does not address the U.S. 
federal estate and gift tax or any state, local, or non-U.S. tax consequences except with respect to Minnesota 
income tax to the extent expressly specified herein.  This summary is limited to consequences to U.S. holders 
that purchase the Bonds for cash at original issue and hold the Bonds as “capital assets” (generally, property 
held for investment).   
 
This discussion does not address all aspects of U.S. federal income or state taxation that may be relevant to 
particular holders of Bonds in light of their specific circumstances or the tax considerations applicable to 
holders that may be subject to special income tax rules, such as: holders subject to special tax accounting rules 
under Section 451(b) of the Code; insurance companies; brokers, dealers, or traders in stocks, securities, or 
currencies or notional principal contracts; foreign corporations subject to the branch profits tax; holders 
receiving payments in respect of the Bonds through foreign entities; and S corporations, partnerships, or other 
pass-through entities or investors therein.  
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For purposes of this discussion, the “issue price” of a maturity of Bonds is the first price at which a substantial 
amount of Bonds of that maturity is sold for cash to persons other than bond houses, brokers, or similar persons 
or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers. 
 
 
Tax-Exempt Interest 
 
In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, (“Bond Counsel”), based on existing law and assuming the accuracy 
of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds (i) is excluded from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes (ii) is not an item of tax preference for federal alternative 
minimum tax purposes; (iii) is excluded from taxable net income of individuals, estates, and trusts for 
Minnesota income tax purposes, and (iv) is not an item of tax preference for federal or Minnesota alternative 
minimum tax purposes.  Interest on the Bonds is included, however, in net income for purposes of the 
Minnesota franchise tax imposed on corporations and financial institutions. 
 
The Code establishes certain requirements that must be met after the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest 
on the Bonds be excluded from federal gross income and from Minnesota taxable net income of individuals, 
estates, and trusts. These requirements include, but are not limited to, provisions regarding the use of Bond 
proceeds and the facilities financed or refinanced with such proceeds and restrictions on the investment of 
Bond proceeds and other amounts.  The City has made certain representations and has covenanted to comply 
with certain restrictions, conditions, and requirements designed to ensure interest on the Bonds will not be 
included in federal gross income.  Inaccuracy of these representations or noncompliance with these covenants 
may cause interest on the Bonds to be included in federal gross income or in Minnesota taxable net income 
retroactively to their date of issue.  Bond Counsel has not independently verified the accuracy of these 
representations and will not verify the continuing compliance with these covenants.  No provision has been 
made for redemption of or for an increase in the interest rate on the Bonds in the event that interest on the 
Bonds is included in federal gross income or in Minnesota taxable net income. 
 
 
Original Issue Discount 
 
Bonds may be issued at a discount from their principal amount (any such Bonds being “Discount Bonds”). 
The excess of the principal amount payable on Bonds of a given maturity over their issue price constitutes 
“original issue discount” (“OID”).  OID that accrues to a holder of a Discount Bond is excluded from federal 
gross income and from Minnesota taxable net income of individuals, estates, and trusts to the same extent that 
stated interest on such Discount Bond would be so excluded.  The amount of OID that accrues on a Discount 
Bond is added to the holder’s federal and Minnesota tax basis.  OID is taxable under the Minnesota franchise 
tax on corporations and financial institutions. 
 
OID on a Discount Bond generally accrues pursuant to a constant-yield method that reflects semiannual 
compounding on dates that are determined by reference to the maturity date of the Discount Bond. The amount 
of OID that accrues for any particular semiannual accrual period generally is equal to the excess of (1) the 
product of (a) one-half of the yield on such Discount Bonds (adjusted as necessary for an initial short period) 
and (b) the adjusted issue price of such Discount Bonds, over (2) the amount of stated interest actually payable. 
For this purpose, the adjusted issue price is determined by adding to the issue price for such Discount Bonds 
the OID that is treated as having accrued during all prior accrual periods. If a Discount Bond is sold or 
otherwise disposed of between compounding dates, then the original issue discount that would have accrued 
for that accrual period for federal income tax purposes is allocated ratably to the days in that accrual period. 
 
If a Discount Bond is purchased for a cost that exceeds the sum of the issue price plus accrued interest and 
accrued OID, the amount of OID that is deemed to accrue thereafter to the purchaser is reduced by an amount 
that reflects amortization of such excess over the remaining term of the Discount Bond.  If the excess is greater 
than the amount of remaining OID, the basis reduction rules for amortizable bond premium may result 
in taxable gain upon sale or other disposition of the Bonds, even if the Bonds are sold, redeemed, or retired for 
an amount equal to or less than their cost. 
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It is possible under certain state and local income tax laws that original issue discount on a Discount Bond 
may be taxable in the year of accrual and may be deemed to accrue differently than under federal law. 
 
 
Market Discount 
 
If a Bond is purchased for a cost that is less than the Bond’s issue price (plus accrued original issue discount), 
the purchaser will be treated as having purchased the Bond with market discount (unless a statutory de minimis 
rule applies).  Market discount is treated as ordinary income and generally is recognized on the maturity or 
earlier disposition of the Bond (to the extent that the gain realized does not exceed the accrued market discount 
on the Bond). 
 
 
Bond Premium 
 
A holder that acquires a Bond for an amount in excess of its principal amount generally must, from time to 
time, reduce the holder’s federal and Minnesota tax bases for the Bond.  Premium generally is amortized for 
federal income tax purposes and Minnesota income and franchise tax purposes on the basis of a bondholder’s 
constant yield to maturity or to certain call dates with semiannual compounding.  Accordingly, holders who 
acquire Bonds at a premium might recognize taxable gain upon sale of the Bonds, even if such Bonds are sold 
for an amount equal to or less than their original cost.  Amortized premium is not deductible for federal income 
tax purposes or for purposes of the Minnesota income tax applicable to individuals, estates, and trusts.  
 
 
Related Tax Considerations 
 
Section 86 of the Code and corresponding provisions of Minnesota law require recipients of certain social 
security and railroad retirement benefits to take interest on the Bonds into account in determining the taxability 
of such benefits. 
 
Section 265(a) of the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase 
or carry the Bonds, and Minnesota law similarly denies a deduction for such interest in the case of individuals, 
estates, and trusts.  In the case of a financial institution, generally, no deduction is allowed under section 265(b) 
the Code for that portion of the holder’s interest expense that is allocable to interest on tax-exempt obligations, 
such as the Bonds, unless the obligations are “qualified tax-exempt obligations.”  Indebtedness may be 
allocated to the Bonds for this purpose even though not directly traceable to the purchase of the Bonds.  
 
The Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.   Accordingly, 
although interest expense allocable to the Bonds is not subject to the disallowance under Section 265(b) of the 
Code, the deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Bonds may be 
subject to reduction under Section 291 of the Code. 
 
The ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the Bonds may 
affect a holder’s federal, state, or local tax liability in some additional circumstances.  The nature and extent 
of these other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status of the holder and the holder’s other 
items of income or deduction. 
 
 
Sale or Other Disposition 
 
A holder will generally recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement, or other 
disposition of a Bond equal to the difference between (i) the amount realized less amounts attributable to any 
accrued but unpaid stated interest and (ii) the holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Bond.  The amount realized 
includes the cash and the fair market value of any property received by the holder in exchange for the Bond.  
A holder’s adjusted tax basis in a Bond generally will be equal to the amount that the holder paid for the Bond, 
increased by any accrued OID with respect to the Bond and reduced by the amount of any amortized bond 
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premium on the Bond.  Except to the extent attributable to market discount (which will be taxable as ordinary 
income to the extent not previously included in income), any gain or loss will be capital gain or loss and will 
be long-term capital gain or loss if the holder held the Bond for more than one year.  Long-term capital gains 
recognized by certain non-corporate persons, including individuals, generally are taxable at a reduced rate.  
The deductibility of capital losses is subject to significant limitations. 
 
 
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding 
 
Payments of interest on the Bonds (including any allocable bond premium or accrued OID) and proceeds from 
the sale or other disposition of the Bonds are expected to be reported to the IRS as required under applicable 
Treasury Regulations.  Backup withholding will apply to these payments if the holder fails to provide an 
accurate taxpayer identification number and certification that it is not subject to backup withholding (generally 
on an IRS Form W-9) or otherwise fails to comply with the applicable backup withholding requirements. 
Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may 
be allowed as a refund or a credit against the holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided that the 
required information is timely furnished to the IRS. Certain holders are exempt from information reporting. 
Potential holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding qualification for an exemption and the 
procedures for obtaining such an exemption. 
 
THE FOREGOING IS NOT INTENDED TO BE AN EXHAUSTIVE DISCUSSION OF COLLATERAL 

TAX CONSEQUENCES ARISING FROM OWNERSHIP OR DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS OR 

RECEIPT OF INTEREST ON THE BONDS.  PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS ARE ADVISED TO 

CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF, OR TAX 

CONSIDERATIONS FOR, PURCHASING OR HOLDING THE BONDS. 

 

 
 

BANK-QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS 
 
 
The City will designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of 
the Code, relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, 
interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations. 
 
 
 

RATING 
 
 
Application for a rating of the Bonds has been made to S&P Global Ratings (“S&P”), 55 Water Street, New 
York, New York.  If a rating is assigned, it will reflect only the opinion of S&P.  Any explanation of the 
significance of the rating may be obtained only from S&P. 
 
There is no assurance that a rating, if assigned, will continue for any given period of time, or that such rating 
will not be revised, suspended or withdrawn, if, in the judgment of S&P, circumstances so warrant.  A revision, 
suspension or withdrawal of a rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 
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MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 
 
 
The City has retained Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC, of Saint Paul, Minnesota as municipal advisor in 
connection with certain aspects of the issuance of the Bonds.  In preparing this Official Statement, Baker Tilly 
Municipal Advisors, LLC has relied upon governmental officials, and other sources, who have access to 
relevant data to provide accurate information for this Official Statement.  Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, 
LLC has not been engaged, nor has it undertaken, to independently verify the accuracy of such information.  
Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC is an independent advisory firm, registered as a municipal advisor, and 
is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or other public 
securities. 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
The City has authorized the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement for use in connection with the 
initial sale of the Bonds and a Final Official Statement following award of the Bonds.  The Purchaser will be 
furnished with a certificate signed by the appropriate officers of the City stating that the City examined each 
document and that, as of the respective date of each document and the date of such certificate, each document 
did not and does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary, in 
order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The Balance of This Page Has Been Intentionally Left Blank) 
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CITY PROPERTY VALUES 
  
Trend of Values(a) 
 

Assessment/ Assessor’s   Market Value  Adjusted 

Collection Estimated Sales Economic Homestead Taxable Taxable Net 

Year Market Value Ratio(b) Market Value(c) Exclusion Market Value Tax Capacity 
 
2019/20 $471,522,400 N/A N/A $14,137,408 $449,427,000 $5,380,209 

2018/19 422,117,200 93.1% $474,938,129 15,886,843 418,858,900 5,003,934 

2017/18 410,718,400 91.2 450,150,291 17,338,500 387,893,300 4,681,589 

2016/17 379,157,900 94.1 402,958,617 19,083,300 355,102,700 4,285,675 

2015/16 362,344,400 97.4 371,836,805 19,901,000 337,942,000 4,034,401 
 
(a) For a description of the Minnesota property tax system, see Appendix III. 
 
(b) Sales Ratio Study for the year of assessment as posted by the Minnesota Department of Revenue, 

https://www.revenue.state.mn.us/economic-market-values. 
 
(c) Economic market values for the year of assessment as posted by the Minnesota Department of Revenue,  

https://www.revenue.state.mn.us/economic-market-values. 
 
Source: Scott County, Minnesota, March 2020, except as otherwise noted. 
  
2019/20 Adjusted Taxable Net Tax Capacity: $5,380,209  
 

Real Estate: 
 Residential Homestead $4,303,559 92.6% 
 Commercial/Industrial, Railroad, 
    and Public Utility 239,961 5.2 
 Agricultural 35,346 0.8 
 Other 19,700 0.4 
Personal Property    48,961   1.1 

 
2019/20 Net Tax Capacity $4,647,527 100.0% 
Less: Contribution to Fiscal Disparities (108,013) 
Plus: Distribution from Fiscal Disparities   840,695 

 
2019/20 Adjusted Taxable Net Tax Capacity $5,380,209   

 
Ten of the Largest Taxpayers in the City  
  2019/20 Net 
Taxpayer Type of Property Tax Capacity 
 
R&F Properties LLC Commercial $  57,842 
KJ Walk Inc. Commercial 34,619 
Copperhead Development, Inc. Golf Course 23,961 
MN Energy Resources, Inc. Utility 23,706 
ENM Venture LLC Commercial 20,014 
TDF Investments Commercial/Residential 16,632 
IH2 Property Illinois LP Residential 14,741 
Northfield Hospital Commercial 13,812 
Old Town Partners LLC Commercial 13,584 
The Farm Development Co. LLC Real Estate   13,257  
Total  $232,168* 
 
* Represents 4.3% of the City's 2019/20 adjusted taxable net tax capacity.  

https://www.revenue.state.mn.us/economic-market-values
https://www.revenue.state.mn.us/economic-market-values
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CITY INDEBTEDNESS 
 
 
Legal Debt Limit and Debt Margin*  
 

Legal Debt Limit (3% of 2019/20 Estimated Market Value) $14,145,672 
Less:  Outstanding Debt Subject to Limit   (6,367,000) 
 
Legal Debt Margin as of June 11, 2020 $7,778,672 
 

* The legal debt margin is referred to statutorily as the “Net Debt Limit” and may be increased by debt service funds 
and current revenues which are applicable to the payment of debt in the current fiscal year.   
 

NOTE: Certain types of debt are not subject to the legal debt limit.  See Appendix III – Debt Limitations. 
 
 
General Obligation Debt Supported Solely by Taxes* 
     Est. Principal 
 Date Original  Final Outstanding 
 of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6-11-20 
 
 12-14-10 450,000 Library Facilities 2-1-2032 $    342,000 
 11-5-12 115,000 Street Reconstruction Refunding 2-1-2024 40,000 
 12-15-13 1,570,000 Capital Improvement Plan 2-1-2029 1,030,000 
 8-20-15 130,000 Capital Improvement Plan 2-1-2026 90,000 
 8-20-15 130,000 Street Reconstruction 2-1-2026 90,000 
 8-20-15 1,125,000 Equipment 2-1-2025      655,000 
 6-11-20 2,065,000 Capital Improvement Plan (the Capital  
     Improvement Plan Portion of the Bonds) 2-1-2040 2,065,000 
 6-11-20 1,240,000 Street Reconstruction (the Street  
      Reconstruction Portion of the Bonds) 2-1-2040   1,240,000 
 6-11-20 815,000 Equipment Portion (the Equipment  
     Portion of the Bonds) 2-1-2030        815,000 
 
 Total     $6,367,000 
 
* These issues are subject to the legal debt limit.  
 
 
General Obligation Special Assessment Debt 
 
     Est. Principal 
 Date Original  Final Outstanding 
 of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6-11-20 
 
 7-1-11 $1,380,000 Refunding 2-1-2026 $    725,000 
 8-20-15 340,000 Refunding 2-1-2024 190,000 
 6-11-20 595,000 Street Improvements (the Improvement 
     Portion of the Bonds) 2-1-2030      595,000 
 
 Total     $1,510,000 
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General Obligation Utility Revenue Debt 
 
     Est. Principal 
 Date Original  Final Outstanding 
 of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6-11-20 
 
 11-5-12 $1,175,000 Refunding 2-1-2025 $    560,000 
 10-29-14 2,073,254 Water Treatment Facility (PFA Loan) 8-20-2034   8,254,000 
 8-20-15 625,000 Utility Refunding  2-1-2024 355,000 
 6-11-20 250,000 Utility (the Utility Portion of the Bonds) 2-1-2035      250,000 
 
 Total      $9,419,000 
 
 
General Obligation Tax Abatement Debt 
 
     Est. Principal 
 Date Original  Final Outstanding 
 of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6-11-20 
 
 12-15-13 $530,000 Tax Abatement 2-1-2024 $230,000 
 
 
Estimated Calendar Year Debt Service Payments Including the Bonds  
 
  G.O. Debt Supported   G.O. Special 
  Solely by Taxes   Assessment Debt  
  Principal   Principal 
Year Principal & Interest(a) Principal & Interest(b) 
 
2020 (at 6-11) (Paid) $       30,898 (Paid) $     14,558 
2021 $    529,000 703,380 $    215,000 254,323 
2022 510,000 659,253 215,000 247,398 
2023 515,000 653,473  230,000 256,513 
2024 531,000 658,192 230,000 250,193 
2025 532,000 647,458 185,000 199,213 
2026 398,000 502,776 195,000 203,381 
2027 379,000 474,365 60,000 64,725 
2028 390,000 475,612  60,000 63,510 
2029 396,000 471,043  60,000 62,190 
2030 282,000 347,974 60,000 60,750 
2031 192,000 251,930  
2032 193,000 247,677  
2033 170,000 219,215 
2034 175,000 218,736 
2035 180,000 217,878 
2036 185,000 216,718 
2037 190,000 215,295 
2038 200,000 218,518 
2039 205,000 216,379 
2040       215,000       218,870                           
 
Total $6,367,000(c) $7,865,640  $1,510,000  $1,676,754 
 
(a) Includes the CIP Portion, the Street Reconstruction Portion, and Equipment Portion of the Bonds at assumed average 

annual interest rates of 3.06%, 3.06%, and 2.05%, respectively.    
(b) Includes the Improvement Portion of Bonds at an assumed average annual interest rate of 2.04%.    
(c)  70.1% of this debt will be retired within ten years.  



 

- 15 - 

Estimated Calendar Year Debt Service Payments Including the Bonds 
(continued) 
     G.O. Tax 
  G.O. Utility Revenue Debt   Abatement Debt  
  Principal   Principal 
Year Principal & Interest(a) Principal & Interest 
 
2020(at 6-11) $    513,000 $    563,733 (Paid) $      3,450 
2021 728,000 829,094 $    55,000 61,075 
2022 743,000 833,999 55,000 59,425 
2023 753,000 834,218 60,000 62,700 
2024 769,000 839,985 60,000 60,900 
2025 639,000 701,002     
2026 559,000 614,457     
2027 565,000 614,735     
2028 570,000 613,932     
2029 576,000 614,052     
2030 581,000 613,081     
2031 592,000 617,992     
2032 598,000 617,740     
2033 604,000 617,360     
2034 609,000 615,885 
2035       20,000        20,335                               
  
Total $9,419,000(b) $10,161,600  $230,000  $247,550 
 
(a) Includes the Utility Portion of the Bonds at an assumed average annual interest rate of 2.66%.    
(b) 68.1% of this debt will be retired within ten years.   
 

 
Other Debt Obligations 
 
Loans Payable 
 
A loan from the Metropolitan Council was issued during 2010 for the sum of $239,000 to cover the cost of 
City trunk sewer connections. Payments due each year total $17,695, which includes interest charged at a rate 
of 4.07%.  The final payment is due in 2031. 
 
A Reserve Capacity Loan from the Metropolitan Council was issued during 2012 for the sum of $197,568 to 
cover the increment cost of City trunk sewer connections. Interest on financing is charged at a rate of 3.6% 
and is based on the prior year-end balance. Principal and interest is payable on the loan annually, but can 
fluctuate based on the difference between forecasted and actual sewer access charges. 
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Overlapping Debt 
 
 2019/20  Debt Applicable to 
 Adjusted Taxable Est. G.O. Debt  Tax Capacity in City  
Taxing Unit(a) Net Tax Capacity   As of  6-11-20(b) Percent Amount    
Scott County $  216,706,081 $112,490,000 2.5% $ 2,812,250 
I.S.D. No. 194 (Lakeville) 93,295,151 98,770,000 3.1 3,061,870 
I.S.D. No. 721 (New Prague) 27,774,817 83,975,000 8.9 7,473,775 
Metropolitan Council 4,281,620,797(c) 3,635,000(d) 0.1      3,635 
 
Total    $13,351,530  
(a) Only those units with outstanding general obligation debt are shown here.  
(b) Excludes general obligation tax and aid anticipation certificates and revenue-supported debt.  
(c) Represents the 2018/19 Adjusted Taxable Net Tax Capacity; the 2019/2020 value is not yet available.  
(d) Excludes general obligation debt supported by wastewater revenues and housing rental payments.  Includes 

certificates of participation.  
 
 
Debt Ratios* 
 
 G.O. G.O. Direct & 
 Direct Debt Overlapping Debt 
 
To 2019/20 Estimated Market Value ($471,522,400) 1.72% 4.55% 
Per Capita - (4,769- 2018 State Demographer Estimate)  $1,700 $4,500 
 
* Excludes general obligation utility revenue debt and other debt obligations. 
 
 
 

CITY TAX RATES, LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
 
 
Tax Capacity Rates for a Resident in ISD No. 721 (New Prague) 
 
 
     2019/20  
      For      
 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total Debt Only 
 
Scott County 36.175% 35.896% 35.114% 33.841% 32.718% 3.081% 
City of Elko New Market 48.577 47.817 46.032 46.070 44.912 4.443 
I.S.D. No.721 
   (New Prague)(a) 38.450 37.153 38.474 35.040 34.471 28.819 
Special Districts(b)    3.035    4.230    4.196     3.893     3.768       -0- 
  
Total 126.237% 125.096% 123.816% 118.884% 115.869% 36.343%  
 
 (a) In addition, Independent School District No. 721 (New Prague) has a 2019/20 market value tax rate of 0.18809% 

spread across the market value of property in support of an excess operating levy. 
 
(b) Special districts include Scott County Community Development Agency, Metropolitan Council, Metropolitan 

Mosquito Control, and Scott County Watershed Management Organization 
 
NOTE: This table includes only net tax capacity-based rates.  Certain other tax rates are based on market value.  See 

Appendix III. 
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Tax Levies and Collections 
 
    Collected During  Collected and/or Abated 

  Net  Collection Year   as of 12-31-19   
Levy/Collect Levy* Amount Percent Amount Percent 
 

2019/20 $2,425,672  (In Process of Collection)  
2018/19 2,304,599  $2,289,704  99.4% $2,294,994  99.6% 
2017/18 2,168,562  2,160,145  99.6 2,166,035  99.9 
2016/17 2,054,301  2,041,977  99.4 2,052,902  99.9 
2015/16 1,947,127  1,939,474  99.6 1,945,809  99.9 
 

* The net levy excludes state aid for property tax relief and fiscal disparities, if applicable.  The net levy is the basis 
for computing tax capacity rates. See Appendix III. 

 

 

 
FUNDS ON HAND 

As of February 29, 2020 
 

 

 

Total Cash and Investments $2,378,562 
 
 
 

INVESTMENTS 
 
 

The City does not have a formal investment policy. The City follows Minnesota statutes which authorize the 
following types of securities available to the City for investment: 
 

1. Securities which are direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its 
agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress; 

 
2. Mutual funds through shares of registered investment companies investing only in federal obligations, 

tax exempt general obligations rated A or better, and repurchase agreements with certain restricted 
counterparties; 

 
3. General obligations of the State of Minnesota and its municipalities; and in certain state agency and 

local obligations of Minnesota and other states provided such obligations have certain specified bond 
ratings by a national bond rating service; 

 
4. Bankers' acceptance of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System; 

 
5. Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries that is of the 

highest quality and matures in 270 days or less; and 
 

6. Guaranteed investment contracts (GICs) issued or guaranteed by United States commercial banks or 
domestic branches of foreign banks or United States insurance companies if similar debt obligations 
of the issuer or the collateral pledged by the issuer is in the top two rating categories, or the top three 
rating categories for long-term GIC's issued by Minnesota banks. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE CITY 
 
 
The City is located 30 miles south of the Minneapolis-Saint Paul metropolitan area on Interstate 35W.  The 
City is located in Scott County and incorporates 4.1 square miles (2,623 acres).   
 

 
Population 
 
The City’s population trend is shown below. 
 
   Percent 
  Population Change 
 
 2018 State Demographer Estimate 4,769 16.3% 
 2010 U.S. Census 4,100 -- 
 
Sources: Minnesota State Demographic Center, mn.gov/admin/demography and 
 United States Census Bureau, http://www.census.gov/.  
 
The City’s estimated population by age group for the past two years is as follows: 
 
Data Year/ 
Report Year 0-17 18-34 35-64 65 and Over 
 
2019/20 1,632 993 2,119 360 
2018/19 1,572 966 2,094 339 
 
Sources: Environics Analytics, Claritas, Inc. and The Nielsen Company. 
 

 
Transportation 
 
The City is served by Interstate 35, and Scott County Road 2.  The City is approximately 30 miles south of the 
Minneapolis-Saint Paul International Airport.   
 
 
Major Employers 
 

The City is currently primarily a residential community with limited commercial establishments. The majority 

of residents commute to jobs throughout the Minneapolis-Saint Paul metropolitan area.   

 

 

  

http://www.census.gov/
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Labor Force Data 
 
  Annual Average  February 
 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
Labor Force: 
   Scott County 80,937 82,142 82,820 83,765 84,396 
   Minneapolis – Saint Paul 
      Seven County Area 1,675,478 1,699,266 1,711,198 1,731,543 1,735,513 
    Minneapolis – Saint Paul 
      MSA 1,916,011 1,938,642 1,979,780 2,016,208 2,023,566 
    State of Minnesota 3,035,241 3,057,358 3,071,433 3,109,647 3,103,816 
Unemployment Rate: 
    Scott County 3.2% 2.9% 2.5% 2.8% 2.9% 
   Minneapolis – Saint Paul 
      Seven County Area 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.9 2.8 
    Minneapolis – Saint Paul 
      MSA 3.6 3.3 2.7 3.0 3.1 
    State of Minnesota 3.9 3.4 2.9 3.2 3.6 
 
Source: Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development, 

   https://apps.deed.state.mn.us/lmi/laus.  2020 data is preliminary. 
 
 
Retail Sales and Effective Buying Income (EBI) 
 
City of Elko New Market 
 
 Data Year/ Total Retail Total Median 
 Report Year Sales ($000) EBI ($000) Household EBI 
 
 2019/20 $42,785 $178,726 $97,134 
 2018/19 38,551 164,722 90,420 
 
Scott County 
 
 Data Year/ Total Retail Total Median 
 Report Year Sales ($000) EBI ($000) Household EBI 
 
 2019/20 $2,002,497 $5,345,146 $81,317 
 2018/19 1,845,671 5,010,000 77,498 
 2017/18 1,650,618 4,731,908 75,314 
 2016/17 1,677,899 4,650,265 75,335 
 2015/16 2,065,957 4,166,720 69,381 
 
The 2019/20 Median Household EBI for the State of Minnesota was $60,916.  The 2019/20 Median Household 
EBI for the United States was $54,686. 
 
Sources: Environics Analytics, Claritas, Inc. and The Nielsen Company. 
 

 

  

https://apps.deed.state.mn.us/lmi/laus
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Permits Issued by the City 
 
  New Single  New   Total Value(a) 
  Family Residential   Commercial/Industrial   (All Permits)  
Year Number Value      Number Value      
 
2020 (to 2-29) 1  $   368,609  0 $             0 $     575,874 
2019  6  2,000,516  1 1,100,000 10,144,977(b) 
2018 18  4,874,497  2 150,000  7,570,496 
2017 10  2,898,567  1 1,200,000 5,482,096 
2016 22  6,185,240  0 0 7,384,602 
2015 13  3,212,047  1 14,519 5,445,002 
 
(a) In addition to building permits, the total value includes all other permits issued by the City (i.e. heating, lighting, 

plumbing, roof replacement, etc.).  
(b) This value was impacted by a higher number of re-roofing permits due to a hailstorm that caused significant damage 

in the City.  
 
Source: City of Elko New Market. 
 

 
Financial Institutions 
 
City residents are served by New Market Bank, which had total deposits of $105,066,000 as of December 31, 
2019 (most recent information available). 
 
* This does not purport to be a comprehensive list. 
 
Source: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,  https://research2.fdic.gov/bankfind/. 
 
 

Health Care Services 
 
There are two hospitals licensed for a total of 142 beds, and four nursing homes licensed for a total of 366 beds 
located in Scott County.  Additionally, the Minneapolis-Saint Paul metropolitan area is home to a variety of 
clinics, hospitals, nursing homes and assisted living facilities. 
 
Source: Minnesota Department of Health, http://www.health.state.mn.us/. 
 

 
Education 
 
Public Education 
 
The following districts serve the residents of the City: 
 

     2019/20 
School Location Grades Enrollment 
 
I.S.D. No. 194 City of Lakeville K-12  11,444 
I.S.D. No. 721 City of New Prague K-12  4,316 
 
Source: Minnesota Department of Education, www.education.state.mn.us 
 

  

http://www2.fdic.gov/idasp/main.asp
http://www.health.state.mn.us/
http://www.education.state.mn.us/
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Post-Secondary Education 
 
City residents have access to a number of post-secondary programs and institutions, many of which provide 
customized training programs for local companies. Inver Hills Community College and Dakota County 
Technical College are located near the City, while the Minneapolis-Saint Paul metropolitan area offers a 
variety of colleges, universities and vocational schools. 

 
 

 
GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION AND SERVICES 

 
 
Organization  
 

On March 21, 2006 the City of Elko and the City of New Market (together, the “Cities”) passed a referendum 

to merge into one city, based on a Cooperation and Combination Plan (the “Plan”) of the Cities.  The merger 

took effect on January 1, 2007, establishing the City of Elko New Market. 

 

The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government.  The City Council consists of four members 

elected at large to four-year terms.  The Mayor is elected to a two-year term.  The incumbent Mayor and 

Council members are: 

 
The following individuals comprise the current City Council: 
 
 Expiration of Term 
 
Joe Julius Mayor 12/31/2020 
Josh Berg Council Member 12/31/2022 
Amanda Novak Council Member 12/31/2020 
Dawn Seepersaud Council Member 12/31/2020 
Kate Timmerman Council Member 12/31/2022 
 
The City Administrator is Mr. Thomas M. Terry, who is appointed by the Council and has been with the City 

since 2004.  Mr. Terry is responsible for directing staff on the implementation of Council policies, coordinating 

day-to-day services, preparation of the City budget, and the overseeing of all department heads.   

 

 
Municipal Services  

 

The City employs seventeen full-time and four part-time staff members. 

 

The Administration Department consists of one part-time and six full-time staff members. The department 

handles general administration, finance, licenses and permits, code enforcement, utility billing, human 

resources, records, elections, parks & recreation services and customer service.  

 

The Public Works Department consists of one part-time and six full-time staff members. The Public Works 

Department is responsible for planning, constructing and maintaining the City’s infrastructure assets, including 

streets, parks, facilities, water supply, sanitary sewer and storm water systems. The water system has four 

wells, two elevated water towers, 20.7 miles of water main with 500 hydrants, and pumps an average of 

300,000 gallons of water a day. The sanitary sewer system consist of seven lift stations, 24 miles of sewer 

gravity lines and 500 man holes. The City’s sanitary sewer system is connected to the Metropolitan Council’s 

Interceptor Sewer Line. The storm water system includes 63 storm water ponds, 12 miles of storm water lines, 

and 750 catch basins. The Public Works Department maintains 26 lane miles of roads, approximately six miles 

of trails, nearly five miles of sidewalks, and nearly 52 acres of parks and the facilities therein. 
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The Police Department consists of one full-time Police Chief, five full-time and two part-time Police Officers. 

The Scott County Sheriff's Department also provides dispatch services and police protection for City residents 

as needed. 

 

The Fire Department consists of twenty eight paid on-call firefighters serving an area of 56 square miles, 

including the City, New Market Township and a portion of Cedar Lake Township. The City maintains a fire 

insurance rating of 4-8B. 
 
Within the past few years, the City has established an Economic Development Authority. The City established 

and funded an Economic Development Fund in order to coordinate and administer economic development and 

redevelopment plans and programs of the City.  
 
The City has also established and funded a Capital Projects Fund for the purpose of planning, design, 

construction, expansion, remodels, and facilities acquisition for land for future facilities. 

 

 
Labor Contracts 
 
The status of labor contracts in the City is as follows: 
 
  Expiration Date 

Bargaining Unit No. of Employees of Current Contract 
 

IUOE Local 49 5 December 31, 2020 
 

Subtotal 5 
Non-unionized employees 0 

 
Total employees 5 

 

 
Employee Pensions 
 
All full-time employees and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by defined benefit pension 
plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA).  PERA 
administers the General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF), and the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund 
(PEPFF), which are cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement plans.  GERF members belong to either the 
Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan.  Coordinated members are covered by Social Security and Basic members 
are not.  All new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan.  All police officers, fire fighters and peace 
officers who qualify for membership by statute are covered by PEPFF.   
 
The City’s contributions to GERF and PEPFF are equal to the contractually required contributions for each 
year as set by State Statute, and are as follows for the past five years:  
 
 GERF PEPFF  
 

2018 $55,232 $55,577  
2017 43,041 51,223  
2016 40,907 41,339  
2015 41,511 36,157  
2014 36,326 34,160  
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City Fire Fighter’s Relief Association 
 
Volunteer firefighters of the City are members of the Elko New Market Fire Fighter's Relief Association. Full 
retirement benefits are payable to members who have reached age 50 and have completed 10 years of service 
for a lump sum service pension. Partial benefits are payable to members who have reached 50 and have 
completed 10 years of service. Disability benefits and widow and children's survivor benefits are also payable 
to members or their beneficiaries based upon requirements set forth in the bylaws. These benefit provisions 
and all other requirements are consistent with enabling state statutes. 
 
The City’s contributions to the Firefighter’s Association for the past four years are as follows: 

 
 Firefighter’s 
 Association 
 

 2018 $118,447 
 2017 112,521 
 2016 107,833 
 2015 103,144 

 
For more information regarding the liability of the City with respect to its employees, please reference “Note 9, 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans – State-wide” and “Required Supplementary Information” of the City’s Audited 
Financial Statements for fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, an excerpt of which is included as Appendix IV 
of this Official Statement. (The City’s Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2019 are not yet available.) 
 
GASB 68  
 
The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68) and related GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment to GASB 68, which revised existing standards for 
measuring and reporting pension liabilities for pension plans provided to City employees and require 
recognition of a liability equal to the City’s proportionate share of net pension liability, which is measured as 
the total pension liability less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position.   
 
The City’s proportionate shares of the pension costs and the City’s net pension liability for GERF and PEPFF 
for the past four years are as follows: 
 
         GERF                  PEPFF          
  Proportionate Net Proportionate Net 
  Share of Pension Share of Pension 
  Pension Costs Liability Pension Costs Liability 
 

2018 0.0103% $   571,402 0.0313% $    330,809 
2017 0.0096 612,858 0.0290 388,925 
2016 0.0092 746,994 0.0250 1,001,044 
2015 0.0091 471,609 0.0250 284,059 

 
For more information regarding GASB 68 with respect to the City, please reference “Note 9, Pension Plans” 
and “Required Supplementary Information” of the City’s Audited Financial Statements for fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2018, an excerpt of which is included as Appendix IV of this Official Statement.  (The City’s 
Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 are not yet available.) 
 
Additional and detailed information about GERF’s net position is available in a separately-issued PERA 
financial report, which may be obtained at www.mnpera.org; by writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive #200, 
Saint Paul, Minnesota, 55103-2088; or by calling 1-800-652-9026.   
 
Sources: City’s Audited Financial Statements.  

http://www.mnpera.org/
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Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits.  Other Than Pensions, effective for the City’s fiscal 
year 2018. Statement No. 75 requires accrual-based measurement, recognition and disclosure of other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB) expense, such as retiree medical and dental costs, over the employees’ years 
of service, along with the related liability, net of any plan assets  The City’s only OPEB is for health insurance.  
Retirees and disabilitants are eligible to remain on the City’s group health plan, but the City does not assist 
with premium payments.  The only cost to the City comes from the implicit rate subsidy.  Management has 
determined that any liability related to postemployment benefits is immaterial to the City’s Audited Financial 
Statements. 
 
 
General Fund and the City Portion of the Fire Department Budget Summary 
 
 2019 Budget 2019 Estimated 2020 Budget 
 
Revenues: 
 
Property Taxes $ 1,960,525 $1,899,580 $2,070,555 
Special Assessments 0 6,081 0 
Licenses and Permits 105,760 135,878 107,780 
Intergovernmental 325,550 364,805 344,490 
Charges for Service 317,055 311,232 386,677 
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0 0 
Investment Income 1,000 897 1,000 
Contributions and Donations 25,000 2,300 25,000 
Other     5,000    30,717    4,000 
 
Total Revenues $2,739,890 $2,751,490 $2,939,502 
 
Expenditures: 
 
General Government $  766,374 $  651,987 $  716,857 
Public Safety 1,139,742 1,211,608 1,256,300 
Public Works 262,390 252,975 269,334 
Parks and Recreation 198,366 179,739 204,845 
Transfers to Other Funds  224,399 566,545* 254,790 
Debt Service 98,365 98,381 208,376 
Budgeted reserves     50,254          0    29,000 
 
Total Expenditures $2,739,890 $2,961,235 $2,939,502 
 
*  Additional transfers to debt service were made based on estimated positive results. The City’s general fund reserve 

policy of 50% of expenditures was met after these transfers. 
 
Source:  The City. 
 
 
Major General Fund Revenue Sources   
 
Revenue 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
 
Property Taxes $1,458,817 $1,485,017 $1,506,766 $1,569,230 $1,660,044 
Intergovernmental 227,897 226,980 274,254 279,073 300,329 
Licenses and Permits 131,974 117,951 129,390 107,704 141,308 
Charges for Services 129,263 149,588 134,060 133,362 125,487 
Fines and Forfeitures 16,293 18,073 18,845 18,039 16,914 
 
Sources:  City’s Audited Financial Statements. 
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PROPOSED FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 
 
 

City of Elko New Market 

Elko New Market, Minnesota 

 

 

[Purchaser] 

[City, State] 

 

 

Re: $[PAR] General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 

City of Elko New Market, Scott County, Minnesota 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

As Bond Counsel in connection with the authorization, issuance, and sale by the City of Elko New 

Market, Scott County, Minnesota (the “City”), of its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A dated, as 

originally issued, as of June [__], 2020, in the total principal amount of $[PAR] (the “Bonds”), we have 

examined certified copies of certain proceedings taken, and certain affidavits and certificates furnished, by 

the City in the authorization, sale and issuance of the Bonds, including the form of the Bonds.  As to 

questions of fact material to our opinion we have assumed the authenticity of and relied upon the 

proceedings, affidavits and certificates furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by 

independent investigation.  From our examination of such proceedings, affidavits and certificates, and based 

upon laws, regulations, rulings and decisions in effect on the date hereof, it is our opinion that: 

1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the City enforceable in accordance 

with their terms. 

2. The principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable primarily from the collection of ad 

valorem taxes, special assessments to be levied on property specially benefited by the improvements 

financed by the Bonds, and net revenues of the municipal sewer systems, which taxes, assessments, and 

revenues are expected to produce amounts sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds when 

due; but, if necessary for the payment of such principal and interest, additional ad valorem taxes are required 

by law to be levied on all taxable property in the City without limitation as to rate or amount. 

3. Interest on the Bonds (a) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes 

under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and (b) is not an item of tax 

preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Code. 

4. Interest on the Bonds (a) is excludable from taxable net income of individuals, estates, and 

trusts for Minnesota income tax purposes and (b) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the 

Minnesota alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals, estates, and trusts. 

5. The Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) 

of the Code. 

The opinions expressed in paragraphs 1 and 2 above are subject, as to enforceability, to the effect 

of any state or federal laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or creditors’ 

rights and the application of equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity. 

The opinions expressed in paragraphs 3, 4, and 5 above are subject to the compliance by the City 

with certain requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds.  

Noncompliance with these requirements could result in the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross 

income for federal income tax purposes and taxable net income of individuals, estates, and trusts for 
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Minnesota income tax purposes or the Bonds failing to be qualified tax-exempt obligations, retroactive to 

the date of issuance of the Bonds. 

Except as stated herein, we express no opinion regarding federal, state, or other tax consequences 

to the owner of the Bonds.  We note, however, that notwithstanding the opinion expressed in paragraph 4 

above, interest on the Bonds is included in net income of corporations and financial institutions for purposes 

of the Minnesota franchise tax. 

In providing this opinion, we have relied upon representations of the City and its officers as to 

(i) the intended application of the proceeds of the Bonds, (ii) the nature, use, cost, and economic life of the 

facilities financed by the Bonds, and (iii) other matters relating to the exemption of the interest on the Bonds 

from federal income taxation. 

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement 

this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention or any changes 

in law that may occur after the date hereof and which may be retroactive. 

Dated:  June [__], 2020. 

Very truly yours, 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE COVENANTS 
 

 
Continuing Disclosure.  (a)  Purpose and Beneficiaries.  To provide for the public availability of 

certain information relating to the Bonds and the security therefor and to permit the Purchaser and other 
participating underwriters in the primary offering of the Bonds to comply with amendments to Rule 15c2-
12 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12), relating 
to continuing disclosure (as in effect and interpreted from time to time, the Rule), which will enhance the 
marketability of the Bonds, the City hereby makes the following covenants and agreements for the benefit 
of the Owners (as hereinafter defined) from time to time of the outstanding Bonds.  The City is the only 
obligated person in respect of the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule for purposes of identifying the 
entities in respect of which continuing disclosure must be made.  If the City fails to comply with any 
provisions of this section, any person aggrieved thereby, including the Owners of any outstanding Bonds, 
may take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or appropriate to enforce performance 
and observance of any agreement or covenant contained in this section, including an action for a writ of 
mandamus or specific performance.  Direct, indirect, consequential and punitive damages shall not be 
recoverable for any default hereunder to the extent permitted by law.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained herein, in no event shall a default under this section constitute a default under the Bonds 
or under any other provision of this resolution.  As used in this section, Owner or Bondowner means, in 
respect of a Bond, the registered owner or owners thereof appearing in the bond register maintained by the 
Registrar or any Beneficial Owner (as hereinafter defined) thereof, if such Beneficial Owner provides to 
the Registrar evidence of such beneficial ownership in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the 
Registrar.  As used herein, Beneficial Owner means, in respect of a Bond, any person or entity which (a) 
has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, such 
Bond (including persons or entities holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), 
or (b) is treated as the owner of the Bond for federal income tax purposes.   
 
(b) Information To Be Disclosed.  The City will provide, in the manner set forth in subsection (c) 
hereof, either directly or indirectly through an agent designated by the City, the following information at 
the following times: 
 

(1) on or before twelve (12) months after the end of each fiscal year of the City, commencing with 

the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, the following financial information and 

operating data in respect of the City (the Disclosure Information): 
 

(A) the audited financial statements of the City for such fiscal year, prepared in 
accordance with the governmental accounting standards promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board or as otherwise provided under 
Minnesota law, as in effect from time to time, or, if and to the extent such financial 
statements have not been prepared in accordance with such generally accepted 
accounting principles for reasons beyond the reasonable control of the City, noting 
the discrepancies therefrom and the effect thereof, and certified as to accuracy and 
completeness in all material respects by the fiscal officer of the City; and 

 
(B) to the extent not included in the financial statements referred to in paragraph (A) 

hereof, the information for such fiscal year or for the period most recently available 
of the type contained in the Official Statement under the headings:  “City Property 
Values,” “City Indebtedness,” and  “City Tax Rates, Levies, and Collections,” 
which information may be unaudited.    

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, if the audited financial statements are not available by the date 
specified, the City shall provide on or before such date unaudited financial statements and, within 10 days 
after the receipt thereof, the City shall provide the audited financial statements.  Any or all of the Disclosure 
Information may be incorporated by reference, if it is updated as required hereby, from other documents, 
including official statements, which have been submitted to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(the MSRB) through its Electronic Municipal Market Access System (EMMA) or the SEC.  The City shall 
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clearly identify in the Disclosure Information each document so incorporated by reference.  If any part of 
the Disclosure Information can no longer be generated because the operations of the City have materially 
changed or been discontinued, such Disclosure Information need no longer be provided if the City includes 
in the Disclosure Information a statement to such effect; provided, however, if such operations have been 
replaced by other City operations in respect of which data is not included in the Disclosure Information and 
the City determines that certain specified data regarding such replacement operations would be a Material 
Fact (as defined in paragraph (2) hereof), then, from and after such determination, the Disclosure 
Information shall include such additional specified data regarding the replacement operations.  If the 
Disclosure Information is changed or this section is amended as permitted by this paragraph (b)(1) or 
subsection (d), then the City shall include in the next Disclosure Information to be delivered hereunder, to 
the extent necessary, an explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the effect of any change in the 
type of financial information or operating data provided. 
 

(2) In a timely manner, not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the event, to 
the MSRB through EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events (each 
a “Material Fact,” as hereinafter defined): 

 
(A) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
(B) non-payment related defaults, if material; 
(C) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
(D) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
(E) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
(F) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of 
the Bonds or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(G) modifications to rights of Bond holders, if material; 
(H) Bond calls, if material and tender offers; 
(I) defeasances; 
(J) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds if 

material;  
(K) rating changes; 
(L) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the obligated person; 
(M) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated 

person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, 
other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement 
to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to 
any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(N) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 
if material. 

(O) Incurrence of a financial obligation of the obligated person, if material, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar 
terms of a financial obligation of the obligated person, any of which affect security 
holders, if material; and 

(P) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 
similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the obligated person, any 
of which reflect financial difficulties. 

 
For purposes of the events identified in paragraphs (O) and (P) above, the term “financial obligation” means 
(i) a debt obligation; (ii) a derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or 
a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) a guarantee of (i) or (ii).  The term 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been 
provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 
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As used herein, for those events that must be reported if material, an event is material if a substantial 
likelihood exists that a reasonably prudent investor would attach importance thereto in deciding to buy, 
hold or sell a Bond or, if not disclosed, would significantly alter the total information otherwise available 
to an investor from the Official Statement, information disclosed hereunder or information generally 
available to the public.  Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, an event is also material if it would be 
deemed material for purposes of the purchase, holding or sale of a Bond within the meaning of applicable 
federal securities laws, as interpreted at the time of discovery of the occurrence of the event. 
 
For the purposes of the event identified in (L) hereinabove, the event is considered to occur when any of 
the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an obligated person 
in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in 
which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the obligated person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing 
body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or 
governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or 
liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of 
the assets or business of the obligated person. 
 

(3) In a timely manner, to the MSRB through EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the 
following events or conditions: 

 
(A) the failure of the City to provide the Disclosure Information required under 

paragraph (b)(1) at the time specified thereunder; 
(B) the amendment or supplementing of this section pursuant to subsection (d), 

together with a copy of such amendment or supplement and any explanation 
provided by the City under subsection (d)(2); 

(C) the termination of the obligations of the City under this section pursuant to 
subsection (d); 

(D) any change in the accounting principles pursuant to which the financial statements 
constituting a portion of the Disclosure Information are prepared; and 

(E) any change in the fiscal year of the City. 
 
(c) Manner of Disclosure.   
 

(1) The City agrees to make available to the MSRB through EMMA, in an electronic format 
as prescribed by the MSRB, the information described in subsection (b).   

 
(2) All documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this subsection (c) shall be accompanied 

by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB from time to time. 
 
(d) Term; Amendments; Interpretation.   
 

(1) The covenants of the City in this section shall remain in effect so long as any Bonds are 
outstanding.  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, however, the obligations of the City 
under this section shall terminate and be without further effect as of any date on which the 
City delivers to the Registrar an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that, because of 
legislative action or final judicial or administrative actions or proceedings, the failure of 
the City to comply with the requirements of this section will not cause participating 
underwriters in the primary offering of the Bonds to be in violation of the Rule or other 
applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any 
statutes or laws successory thereto or amendatory thereof. 

 
(2) This section (and the form and requirements of the Disclosure Information) may be 

amended or supplemented by the City from time to time, without notice to (except as 
provided in paragraph (c)(2) hereof) or the consent of the Owners of any Bonds, by a 
resolution of this Council filed in the office of the recording officer of the City 
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accompanied by an opinion of Bond Counsel, who may rely on certificates of the City and 
others and the opinion may be subject to customary qualifications, to the effect that: (i) 
such amendment or supplement (a) is made in connection with a change in circumstances 
that arises from a change in law or regulation or a change in the identity, nature or status 
of the City or the type of operations conducted by the City, or (b) is required by, or better 
complies with, the provisions of paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule; (ii) this section as so 
amended or supplemented would have complied with the requirements of paragraph (b)(5) 
of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds, giving effect to any change in 
circumstances applicable under clause (i)(a) and assuming that the Rule as in effect and 
interpreted at the time of the amendment or supplement was in effect at the time of the 
primary offering; and (iii) such amendment or supplement does not materially impair the 
interests of the Bondowners under the Rule.  

 
If the Disclosure Information is so amended, the City agrees to provide, 
contemporaneously with the effectiveness of such amendment, an explanation of the 
reasons for the amendment and the effect, if any, of the change in the type of financial 
information or operating data being provided hereunder.   

 
(3) This section is entered into to comply with the continuing disclosure provisions of the Rule 

and should be construed so as to satisfy the requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule. 
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SUMMARY OF TAX LEVIES, PAYMENT PROVISIONS, AND 
MINNESOTA REAL PROPERTY VALUATION 

 
 
Following is a summary of certain statutory provisions relative to tax levy procedures, tax payment and 
credit procedures, and the mechanics of real property valuation.  The summary does not purport to be 
inclusive of all such provisions or of the specific provisions discussed, and is qualified by reference to the 
complete text of applicable statutes, rules and regulations of the State of Minnesota. 
 
 
Property Valuations (Chapter 273, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
Assessor's Estimated Market Value.  Each parcel of real property subject to taxation must, by statute, be 
appraised at least once every five years as of January 2 of the year of appraisal.  With certain exceptions, 
all property is valued at its market value, which is the value the assessor determines to be the price the 
property to be fairly worth, and which is referred to as the “Estimated Market Value.”  The 2013 Minnesota 
Legislature established the Estimated Market Value as the value used to calculate a municipality’s legal 
debt limit. 
 
Economic Market Value.  The Economic Market Value is the value of locally assessed real property 
(Assessor’s Estimated Market Value) divided by the sales ratio as provided by the State of Minnesota 
Department of Revenue plus the estimated market value of personal property, utilities, railroad, and 
minerals. 
 
Taxable Market Value.  The Taxable Market Value is the value that Net Tax Capacity is based on, after all 
reductions, limitations, exemptions and deferrals. 
 
Net Tax Capacity.  The Net Tax Capacity is the value upon which net taxes are levied, extended and 
collected.  The Net Tax Capacity is computed by applying the class rate percentages specific to each type 
of property classification against the Taxable Market Value.  Class rate percentages vary depending on the 
type of property as shown on the last page of this Appendix.  The formulas and class rates for converting 
Taxable Market Value to Net Tax Capacity represent a basic element of the State's property tax relief system 
and are subject to annual revisions by the State Legislature.  Property taxes are the sum of the amounts 
determined by (i) multiplying the Net Tax Capacity by the tax capacity rate, and (ii) multiplying the 
referendum market value by the market value rate. 
 
Market Value Homestead Exclusion.  In 2011, the Market Value Homestead Exclusion Program (MVHE) 
was implemented to offset the elimination of the Market Value Homestead Credit Program that provided 
relief to certain homesteads.  The MVHE reduces the taxable market value of a homestead with an 
Assessor’s Estimated Market Value up to $413,800 in an attempt to result in a property tax similar to the 
effective property tax prior to the elimination of the homestead credit.  The MVHE applies to property 
classified as Class 1a or 1b and Class 2a, and causes a decrease in the City’s aggregate Taxable Market 
Value, even if the Assessor’s Estimated Market Value on the same properties did not decline. 
 
 
Property Tax Payments and Delinquencies 
   (Chapters 275, 276, 277, 279-282 and 549, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
Ad valorem property taxes levied by local governments in Minnesota are extended and collected by the 
various counties within the State.  Each taxing jurisdiction is required to certify the annual tax levy to the 
county auditor within five (5) working days after December 20 of the year preceding the collection year.  
A listing of property taxes due is prepared by the county auditor and turned over to the county treasurer on 
or before the first business day in March. 

  



 

III-2 

The county treasurer is responsible for collecting all property taxes within the county.  Real estate and 
personal property tax statements are mailed out by March 31.  One-half (1/2) of the taxes on real property 
is due on or before May 15.  The remainder is due on or before October 15.  Real property taxes not paid 
by their due date are assessed a penalty on homestead property of 2% until May 31 and increased to 4% on 
June 1.  The penalty on nonhomestead property is assessed at a rate of 4% until May 31 and increased to 
8% on June 1.  Thereafter, an additional 1% penalty shall accrue each month through October 1 of the 
collection year for unpaid real property taxes.  In the case of the second installment of real property taxes 
due October 15, a penalty of 2% on homestead property and 4% on nonhomestead property is assessed.  
The penalty for homestead property increases to 6% on November 1 and again to 8% on December 1.  The 
penalty for nonhomestead property increases to 8% on November 1 and again to 12% on December 1.  
Personal property taxes remaining unpaid on May 16 are deemed to be delinquent and a penalty of 8% 
attaches to the unpaid tax.  However, personal property that is owned by a tax-exempt entity, but is treated 
as taxable by virtue of a lease agreement, is subject to the same delinquent property tax penalties as real 
property.   
 
On the first business day of January of the year following collection all delinquencies are subject to an 
additional 2% penalty, and those delinquencies outstanding as of February 15 are filed for a tax lien 
judgment with the district court.  By March 20 the county auditor files a publication of legal action and a 
mailing of notice of action to delinquent parties.  Those property interests not responding to this notice have 
judgment entered for the amount of the delinquency and associated penalties.  The amount of the judgment 
is subject to a variable interest determined annually by the Department of Revenue, and equal to the adjusted 
prime rate charged by banks but in no event is the rate less than 10% or more than 14%. 
 
Property owners subject to a tax lien judgment generally have three years (3) to redeem the property.  After 
expiration of the redemption period, unredeemed properties are declared tax forfeit with title held in trust 
by the State of Minnesota for the respective taxing districts.  The county auditor, or equivalent thereof, then 
sells those properties not claimed for a public purpose at auction.  The net proceeds of the sale are first 
dedicated to the satisfaction of outstanding special assessments on the parcel, with any remaining balance 
in most cases being divided on the following basis:  county - 40%; town or city - 20%; and school district 
- 40%.  
 
 
Property Tax Credits (Chapter 273, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
In addition to adjusting the taxable value for various property types, primary elements of Minnesota's 
property tax relief system are:  property tax levy reduction aids; the homestead credit refund and the renter’s 
property tax refund, which relate property taxes to income and provide relief on a sliding income scale; and 
targeted tax relief, which is aimed primarily at easing the effect of significant tax increases.  The homestead 
credit refund, the renter’s property tax refund, and targeted credits are reimbursed to the taxpayer upon 
application by the taxpayer.  Property tax levy reduction aid includes educational aids, local governmental 
aid, equalization aid, county program aid and disparity reduction aid. 
 
 
Debt Limitations 
 
All Minnesota municipalities (counties, cities, towns and school districts) are subject to statutory “net debt” 
limitations under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.53.  Net debt is defined as the amount 
remaining after deducting from gross debt the amount of current revenues that are applicable within the 
current fiscal year to the payment of any debt and the aggregate of the principal of the following: 

 
1. Bonds issued for improvements which are payable wholly or partly from the proceeds of special 

assessments levied upon property specially benefited thereby, including those which are general 
obligations of the municipality issuing them, if the municipality is entitled to reimbursement in 
whole or in part from the proceeds of the special assessments. 
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2. Warrants or orders having no definite or fixed maturity. 

 
3. Bonds payable wholly from the income from revenue producing conveniences. 

 
4. Bonds issued to create or maintain a permanent improvement revolving fund. 

 
5. Bonds issued for the acquisition, and betterment of public waterworks systems, and public lighting, 

heating or power systems, and of any combination thereof or for any other public convenience from 
which a revenue is or may be derived. 

 
6. Debt service loans and capital loans made to a school district under the provisions of Minnesota 

Statutes, Sections 126C.68 and 126C.69. 

 
7. Amount of all money and the face value of all securities held as a debt service fund for the 

extinguishment of obligations other than those deductible under this subdivision. 

 
8. Bonds to repay loans made under Minnesota Statutes, Section 216C.37. 

 
9. Bonds to repay loans made from money received from litigation or settlement of alleged violations 

of federal petroleum pricing regulations. 

 
10. Bonds issued to pay pension fund or other postemployment benefit liabilities under Minnesota 

Statutes, Section 475.52, subdivision 6, or any charter authority. 

 
11. Bonds issued to pay judgments against the municipality under Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.52, 

subdivision 6, or any charter authority. 

 
12. All other obligations which under the provisions of law authorizing their issuance are not to be 

included in computing the net debt of the municipality. 

 
 
Levies for General Bond Debt 
(Sections 475.61 and 475.74, Minnesota Statutes) 
 
Any municipality that issues general obligation debt must, at the time of issuance, certify levies to the 
county auditor of the county(ies) within which the municipality is situated.  Such levies shall be in an 
amount that if collected in full will, together with estimates of other revenues pledged for payment of the 
obligations, produce at least five percent in excess of the amount needed to pay principal and interest when 
due.  Notwithstanding any other limitations upon the ability of a taxing unit to levy taxes, its ability to levy 
taxes for a deficiency in prior levies for payment of general obligation indebtedness is without limitation 
as to rate or amount. 
 
 
Metropolitan Revenue Distribution (Chapter 473F, Minnesota Statutes) 
“Fiscal Disparities Law” 
 
The Charles R. Weaver Metropolitan Revenue Distribution Act, more commonly known as “Fiscal 
Disparities,” was first implemented for taxes payable in 1975.  Forty percent of the increase in commercial-
industrial (including public utility and railroad) net tax capacity valuation since 1971 in each assessment 
district in the Minneapolis/Saint Paul seven-county metropolitan area (Anoka, Carver, Dakota, excluding 
the City of Northfield, Hennepin, Ramsey, Scott, excluding the City of New Prague, and Washington 
Counties) is contributed to an area-wide tax base.  A distribution index, based on the factors of population 
and real property market value per capita, is employed in determining what proportion of the net tax 
capacity value in the area-wide tax base shall be distributed back to each assessment district. 
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STATUTORY FORMULAE:  CONVERSION OF TAXABLE MARKET VALUE (TMV) TO  

NET TAX CAPACITY FOR MAJOR PROPERTY CLASSIFICATIONS 
 
 

 Local Tax 
Payable 

Property Type 2015-2019 

Residential Homestead (1a) 
 

 Up to $500,000  1.00% 
 Over $500,000  1.25% 

Residential Non-homestead 
 

   Single Unit (4bb)  

 Up to $500,000  1.00% 
 Over $500,000  1.25% 
   1-3 unit and undeveloped land (4b1)  1.25% 

Market Rate Apartments 
 

  Regular (4a)  1.25% 

  Low-Income (4d)  

 Up to $139,000(c)  0.75% 
 Over $139,000(c)  0.25% 

Commercial/Industrial/Public Utility (3a) 
 

 Up to $150,000  1.50%(a) 
 Over $150,000  2.00%(a) 
 Electric Generation Machinery  2.00% 

Commercial Seasonal Residential 
 

   Homestead Resorts (1c)  

 Up to $600,000  0.50% 
 $600,000 - $2,300,000  1.00% 
 Over $2,300,000  1.25%(a) 

   Seasonal Resorts (4c)  

 Up to $500,000  1.00%(a) 
 Over $500,000  1.25%(a) 

Non-Commercial (4c12) 
 

 Up to $500,000  1.00%(a)(b) 
 Over $500,000  1.25%(a)(b) 

Disabled Homestead (1b)  
 Up to $50,000  0.45% 

Agricultural Land & Buildings 
 

   Homestead (2a)  

 Up to $500,000   1.00% 
 Over $500,000  1.25% 
   Remainder of Farm  
 Up to $1,900,000(d) 0.50%(b) 
 Over $1,900,000(d)  1.00%(b) 
   Non-homestead (2b)  1.00%(b) 

 
(a) State tax is applicable to these classifications. 
(b) Exempt from referendum market value based taxes.   
(c) Legislative increases, payable 2019.  Historical valuations are:  Payable 2018 - $121,000; Payable 2017 - $115,000; Payable 

2016 - $106,000; and Payable 2015 - $100,000. 
(d) Legislative increases, payable 2019.  Historical valuations are:  Payable 2018 - $1,940,000; Payable 2017 - $2,050,000; 

Payable 2016 - $2,140,000; and Payable 2015 - $1,900,000. 
 
NOTE: For purposes of the State general property tax only, the net tax capacity of non-commercial class 4c(1) seasonal 

residential recreational property has the following class rate structure:  First $76,000 – 0.40%; $76,000 to $500,000 – 
1.00%; and over $500,000 – 1.25%.  In addition to the State tax base exemptions referenced by property classification, 
airport property exempt from city and school district property taxes under M.S. 473.625 is exempt from the State general 
property tax (MSP International Airport and Holman Field in Saint Paul are exempt under this provision). 
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EXCERPT OF 2018 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
Data on the following pages was extracted from the City’s Audited Financial Statements for fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2018.  (The City’s Audited Financial Statements for fiscal year ended December 31, 
2019 are not yet available.)  The reader should be aware that the complete financial statements may contain 
additional information which may interpret, explain or modify the data presented here. 
 
 

 



Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City C01mcil 

City ofElko New Market 
Elko New Marl<et, Minnesota 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City ofElko New 
Market, Minnesota, as of and for the yesr ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of 
Contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the pmpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the goverornental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City ofElko New Market, 
Minnesota, as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and where 
applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund aod the Fire 
Department Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, which follows this report letter, and Required Supplementary Information as 
listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Goverornental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Elko New Market's basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. Such information bas been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Gtwenl1flellt Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 17, 2019 
on our consideration of the City of Elko New Market's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City ofElko New 
Market's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
June 17, 2019 

IV-2



C
ity

 o
f 

E
lk

o 
N

ew
 M

ar
ke

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
an

d 
A

na
ly

si
s 

A
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f
 E

lk
o N

ew
 M

ar
ke

t (
th

e 
"C

ity
")

, w
e 

off
er

 r
ea

de
rs

 o
f

 th
e 

C
ity

 f
m

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 th

is
 n

arr
at

iv
e 

ov
er

vi
ew

 a
nd

 an
al

ys
is

 o
f

 th
e 

finan
ci

al
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 o
f

 th
e 

C
ity

 fo
r 

th
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ear
 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8.

 

A
ll 

am
oun

ts
, u

nl
es

s 
oth

er
w

is
e 

in
di

ca
te

d,
 a

re
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 d

ol
lar

s.
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 I

DG
H

L
IG

H
T

S 

• 
W

ith
 th

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

iti
es

 o
f

 E
lk

o 
an

d N
ew

 M
ar

ke
t e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

Jan
uar

y 
I,

 2
00

7,
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

tw
el

fth
 y

ear
 o

f
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 f

or
 th

e 
C

ity
. P

ri
or

 to
 2

00
7,

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

er
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f

 E
lk

o,
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f
 N

ew
 M

ar
ke

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
E

lk
o N

ew
 M

ar
ke

t J
oi

nt
 S

ew
er

 B
oar

d.
 

• 
T

he
 C

ity
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
fi

sc
al

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 2
00

9 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r g

ui
di

ng
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
us

e
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 r

es
our

ce
s 

an
d 

co
ntr

ib
ut

e 
th

e 
C

ity
's 

ov
er

al
l finan

ci
al

 h
ea

lth
. T

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
re

ve
nu

es
, c

as
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t an

d 
in

ve
stm

en
ts

, r
es

er
ve

s,
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

bu
dg

et
, c

ap
ita

l b
ud

ge
t, 

de
bt

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

an
d 

fi
nan

ci
al

 r
ep

ort
in

g 
an

d 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

. T
he

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
w

er
e 

updated
 an

nu
al

ly
 

20
11

 th
ro

ug
h 

20
18

.

• 
T

he
 to

ta
l a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
de

fe
rr

ed
 o

ut
fl

ow
s 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ity
 e

xc
ee

de
d 

its
 li

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

de
fe

rr
ed

 
in

fl
ow

s 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
at

 th
e 

cl
os

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t fi

sc
al

 y
ear

 b
y 

$2
6,

87
8,

13
5 

(n
et

 p
os

iti
on

). 
O

f
 th

is
 

am
ou

nt
 $

2,
75

6,
18

5 
(u

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

ne
t p

os
iti

on
) 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 g

ov
ernm

en
t's

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 t
o 

ci
tizens

 an
d 

cr
ed

ito
rs

. 

• 
T

he
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

go
vernm

en
ta

l fun
ds

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 $
12

5,
39

5.
 T

he
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 

go
vernm

en
ta

l 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 b
y 

$1
76

,1
92

. T
he

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 w

as
 primari

ly
 d

ue
 to

 a
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 ex
ce

ss
 r

ev
en

ue
 an

d 
ex

pe
nd

itur
es

 u
nd

er
 b

ud
ge

t i
n 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d.
 T

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

ne
t p

os
it

io
n 

w
as

 p
ri

m
ar

il
y 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
no

n-
re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f

 pr
in

ci
pa

l b
on

d 
pa

ym
en

ts
, o

ffs
et

 w
ith

 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
ex

pe
ns

e 
an

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 de

fe
rr

ed
 a

nd
 d

el
in

qu
en

t s
pe

ci
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 in
 2

01
8.

 

• 
A

s 
of

 th
e 

cl
os

e 
of

 th
e 

curren
t fi

sc
al

 y
ear

, th
e 

un
as

si
gn

ed
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 fo

r t
he

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
w

as
 

$1
,4

65
,8

11
, 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 t

o 
74

.5
%

 o
f

 th
e 

20
18

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

bu
dg

et
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f
$2

02
,5

54
 fr

om
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

20
17

 fi
sc

al
 y

ear
. T

he
 d

iff
er

en
ce

 i
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

bu
ild

in
g 

pe
rm

it
s 

an
d 

in
te

rg
ov

ernm
en

ta
l re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
lo

w
er

 e
xp

en
di

tur
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 
G

ov
ernm

en
t 

fu
nc

tio
n 

ov
er

al
l.

• 
T

he
 C

ity
's 

to
ta

l d
eb

t d
ec

re
as

ed
 b

y 
$1

,1
77

,7
33

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

curr
en

t fi
sc

al
 y

ear
. T

he
 C

ity
 is

su
ed

$1
0,

35
7,

03
8 

fo
r 

aP
FA

N
ot

e 
Se

ri
es

 2
01

3 
G

en
er

al
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Drinki

ng
 W

at
er

 R
ev

en
ue

 N
ot

e 
in

 o
rd

er
to

 fu
nd

 a
 w

at
er

 tr
ea

tm
en

t fa
ci

lity
, r

eh
ab

ili
ta

te
 a

 w
at

er
 s

to
ra

ge
 to

w
er

, an
d 

ad
d 

an
 a

dd
it

io
na

l w
el

l.
C

ity
's 

de
bt

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 th

is
 d

eb
t i

ss
uan

ce
 in

 2
01

4 
de

cr
ea

se
d 

fr
om

 $
9,

10
2,

19
4 

to
 $

8,
60

8,
00

0 
in

 2
01

8 
as

 
th

is
 is

 a
 P

F
A

 r
ei

m
bur

sa
bl

e 
no

te
 th

at
 w

as
 fi

na
liz

ed
 in

 2
01

7.
 N

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 w

as
 a

dd
ed

 a
s 

a
lia

bi
lit

y 
in

 2
01

5 
w

ith
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
G

A
SB

 6
8,

 w
hi

ch
 decreased

 b
y 

$9
9,

57
3 

duri
ng

 2
01

8.
 

N
et

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 is
 r

el
at

ed
 to

 p
ub

lic
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 retirem
en

t an
d 

is
 n

ot
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 im

pa
ct

 fu
tu

re
ex

pe
nd

itur
es

.

• 
T

he
 W

at
er

 F
un

d 
ha

d 
an

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
in

co
m

e 
of

$3
31

,9
05

. T
hi

s 
is

 p
ri

m
ar

ily
 d

ue
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
w

at
er

 
us

ag
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
18

 fi
sc

al
 y

ear
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ity
 w

hi
ch

 b
ri

ng
s 

in
 p

er
m

it 
an

d 
ho

ok
up

 f
ee

s 
to

 th
e 

fun
d.

C
ity

 o
f E

lk
o 

N
ew

 M
ar

ke
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
an

d 
A

na
ly

si
s 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 ID

G
H

L
IG

H
T

S 
(C

O
NTINUE

D
) 

• 
T

he
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
re

co
gnized

 an
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

lo
ss

 o
f

$2
69

,7
14

. T
hi

s 
is

 p
rimari

ly
 d

ue
 to

 $
24

7,
30

0 
in

 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
ex

pe
ns

e.
 T

he
 F

un
d 

ha
d 

a 
decreas

e 
of

 ne
t p

os
iti

on
 in

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
$2

90
,1

36
 d

ue
 to

sp
ec

ia
l a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 ar
e 

no
t c

on
si

de
re

d 
an

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
re

ve
nu

e.
 

• 
T

he
 S

to
rm

 S
ew

er
 F

un
d 

ha
d 

an
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

in
co

m
e 

of
 $7

4,
23

2.
 T

hi
s 

is
 p

ri
m

ar
ily

 d
ue

 to
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

xp
en

se
s.

 T
he

 F
un

d 
al

so
 h

ad
 an

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
f

ne
t p

os
iti

on
 i

n 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f

$6
8,

49
5.

 

• 
T

he
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f
 th

e 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
Fu

nd
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

curr
en

t fi
sc

al
 y

ear
 b

y 
$2

72
,7

45
 fo

r 
an

 
en

di
ng

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f

 $8
12

,1
64

. T
he

 F
un

d 
w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
urp

os
e 

of
 planning

, d
es

ign
,

co
nstructi

on
, e

xp
an

si
on

, r
em

od
el

s,
 an

d 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 o
f 

lan
d 

fo
r 

future
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

• 
T

he
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f
 th

e 
20

15
B

 G
.O

. R
efu

nd
in

g 
B

on
ds

 F
un

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

duri
ng

 th
e 

curr
en

t fi
sc

al
 y

ear
 

by
 $

14
1,

 11
1 

fo
r 

an
 e

nd
in

g 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 $3
2,

40
9.

 T
he

 F
un

d 
w

as
 u

se
d 

to
 h

ol
d 

bo
nd

 p
ro

ce
ed

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 
fi

sc
al

 y
ear

 2
01

5 
un

til
 th

e 
re

fun
di

ng
 b

on
d 

co
ul

d 
pa

y 
off

 th
e 

20
08

 r
efun

de
d 

bo
nd

 in
 th

e 
20

17
 fi

sc
al

 
ye

ar
. T

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 i
s 

du
e 

to
 a

 tr
an

sf
er

 o
f

 fun
ds

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

Fi
re

 
fu

nd
s.

• 
T

he
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f
 th

e 
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
un

d 
de

cr
ea

se
d 

du
ri

ng
. th

e 
curren

t fi
sc

al
 y

ear
 b

y 
$2

0,
93

9
fo

r 
an

 e
nd

in
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

of
 $1

26
,1

19
. T

he
 F

un
d 

w
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

purp
os

e 
of

 sup
po

rt
in

g
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

.

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

T
hi

s 
di

sc
us

si
on

 an
d 

an
al

ys
is

 a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 s

er
ve

 a
s 

an
 in

tr
od

uct
io

n 
to

 th
e 

C
ity

 b
as

ic
 finan

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

. T
he

 C
ity

 b
as

ic
 finan

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
om

pr
is

e 
th

re
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s:

 1
) 

go
vernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
finan

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, 2
) 

fu
nd

 finan
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 an

d 
3)

 N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Fi
nan

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 
al

so
 c

on
ta

in
s 

oth
er

 s
up

pl
em

en
tar

y 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
ba

si
c 

finan
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 th

em
se

lv
es

. 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t-

W
id

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
T

he
 g

ov
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
finan

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 ar
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

ea
de

rs
 w

ith
 a

 b
ro

ad
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f

 th
e 

C
ity

 finan
ce

s,
 i

n 
a 

m
an

ne
r 

si
m

ilar
 t

o 
a 

pr
iv

at
e-

se
ct

or
 b

us
in

es
s.

 

T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f
N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 presen

ts
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
C

ity
 a

ss
et

s,
 d

ef
erre

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s 
of

 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 li
ab

ili
tie

s,
 an

d 
de

fe
rr

ed
 in

fl
ow

s 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 w

ith
 th

e 
di

ff
er

en
ce

 reporte
d 

as
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
. 

O
ve

r 
tim

e,
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

or
 d

ecreas
es

 in
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 m

ay
 s

er
ve

 a
s 

a 
us

efu
l i

nd
ic

at
or

 o
f

 wh
eth

er
 th

e 
fi

nan
ci

al
 

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ity
 is

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
or

 d
et

er
io

ra
tin

g,
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 

T
he

 S
ta

tem
en

t o
f

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 p

re
se

nt
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ow

in
g 

ho
w

 th
e 

go
vernm

en
t's

 n
et

 p
os

iti
on

 c
han

ge
d 

duri
ng

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t fi

sc
al

 y
ear

. A
ll 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
so

on
 a

s 
th

e 
un

de
rl

yi
ng

 
ev

en
t g

iv
in

g 
ri

se
 to

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

cc
ur

s,
 r

eg
ar

dl
es

s 
of

 th
e 

timing
 o

f
 re

lat
ed

 c
as

h 
fl

ow
s.

 T
hu

s,
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

is
 s

ta
te

m
en

t fo
r 

so
m

e 
ite

m
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
re

su
lt 

in
 c

as
h 

fl
ow

s 
in

 fu
tu

re
 fi

sc
al

 
pe

ri
od

s 
( e

.g
., 

un
co

lle
ct

ed
 t

ax
es

 an
d 

earn
ed

 b
ut

 u
nu

se
d 

va
ca

tio
n 

le
av

e)
. 

IV-3



C
ity

 o
f 

E
lk

o
 N

ew
 M

a
rk

et
 

M
a
n

a
g
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 IIl

G
H

L
IG

H
T

S
 (

C
O

N
T

INU
E

D
) 

G
o
v
er

n
m

en
t-

W
id

e 
F

in
a
n

ci
a
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 (
C

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 
B

o
th

 o
f 

th
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
finan

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 d
is

ti
n
g
u
is

h
 fu

n
ct

io
n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y
 th

at
 a

re
 p

ri
n
ci

p
al

ly
 

su
p
p
o
rt

ed
 b

y
 t
ax

es
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rg
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
es

 (
g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s)

 fr
o
m

 o
th

er
 fun

ct
io

n
s 

th
at

 
ar

e 
in

te
n
d
ed

 t
o
 r

ec
o
v
er

 a
ll

 o
r 

a 
si

g
n
ifi

can
t 
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

co
st

s 
th

ro
u
g
h
 u

se
r 

fe
es

 a
n
d
 c

h
ar

g
es

 (
b
u
si

n
es

s­
ty

p
e 

ac
ti

v
it

ie
s)

. 
T

h
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

g
en

er
al

 g
o
v
ernm

en
t,
 p

u
b
li

c 
sa

fety
, 

p
u
b
li

c 
w

o
rk

s 
an

d
 p

ar
k
s 

an
d
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
. 
T

h
e 

b
u
si

n
es

s-
typ

e 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

w
at

er
, 
san

itar
y
 

se
w

er
, 
an

d
 s

to
rm

 s
ew

er
. 

T
h
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

o
n
ly

 th
e 

C
it

y
 i
ts

el
f 

(kn
o
w

n
 a

s 
th

e 
p
rimary

 
g
o
v
ernm

en
t)

. 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 r

ep
o
rt

s 
th

e 
E

lk
o
 N

ew
 Mar

k
et

 E
co

n
o
m

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

E
D

A
) 

as
 a

 
b
le

n
d
ed

 c
o
m

p
o
n
en

t 
u
n
it

. 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 h

as
 n

o
 o

th
er

 c
o
m

p
o
n
en

t 
u
n
it

s.
 

F
u

n
d

 F
in

a
n

ci
a
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
A

 fu
n
d
 i
s 

a 
g
ro

u
p
in

g
 o

f 
re

la
te

d
 a

cc
o
un

ts
 t
h
at

 i
s 

u
se

d
 t
o
 m

ai
n
ta

in
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
er

 r
es

o
u
rc

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 

se
gr

eg
at

ed
 fo

r 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

o
r 

o
b
je

ct
iv

es
. 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
, 
li

k
e 

o
th

er
 s

ta
te

 a
n
d
 l
o
ca

l 
g
o
v
ernm

en
ts

, 
u
se

s 
fu

n
d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ti

n
g
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 a

n
d
 d

em
o
n
strat

e 
co

m
p
li
an

ce
 w

it
h
 finan

ce
-r

el
at

ed
 l

eg
al

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
. 
A

ll
 o

f 
th

e 
fu

n
d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y
 c

an
 b

e 
d
iv

id
ed

 i
n
to

 th
re

e 
ca

te
g
o
ri

es
: 

g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fu

n
d
s,

 p
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y
 fu

n
d
s 

an
d
 

fi
d
u
ci

ar
y
 fun

d
s.

 

G
o
v
er

n
m

en
ta

l 
F

u
n

d
s 

G
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fu

n
d
s 

ar
e 

u
se

d
 t

o
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
es

se
n
ti

al
ly

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
fu

n
ct

io
n
s 

re
p
o
rt

ed
 a

s 
g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

in
 t

h
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

H
o
w

ev
er

, 
u
n
li

k
e 

th
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
finan

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, 
g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fun

d
 fina

n
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

fo
cu

s 
o
n
 n

ear
-t

er
m

 i
n
fl

o
w

s 
an

_d
 o

u
tfl

o
w

s 
o
f 

sp
en

d
ab

le
 r

es
o
u
rc

es
, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 o
n
 b

al
an

ce
s 

o
f 

sp
en

d
ab

le
 

re
so

u
rc

es
 a

v
ai

la
b
le

 a
t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ear

. 
S

u
ch

 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 m

ay
 b

e 
u
se

fu
l 
in

 e
v
al

u
at

in
g
 a

 
g
o
v
ernm

en
t's

 n
ear

-t
er

m
 fi

n
an

ci
n
g
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
. 

B
ec

au
se

 t
h
e 

fo
cu

s 
o
f 

g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fun

d
s 

is
 n

arr
o
w

er
 than

 th
at

 o
f 

th
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

, 
it

 i
s 

u
se

fu
l 
to

 c
o
m

p
are

 t
h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 fo

r 
g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fu

n
d
s 

w
ith

 s
im

il
ar

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 fo

r 
g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 statem
en

ts
. 
B

y
 

d
o
in

g
 s

o
, 

re
ad

er
s 

m
ay

 b
et

te
r 

u
n
d
erstan

d
 t
h
e 

lo
n
g
-t

er
m

 i
m

p
ac

t 
o
f 

th
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t's

 n
ear

-t
erm

 fi
n
an

ci
n
g
 

d
ec

is
io

n
s.

 B
o
th

 th
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fu

n
d
 b

al
an

ce
 s

h
ee

t 
an

d
 th

e 
g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fu

n
d
 s

tat
em

en
t 

o
f 

re
v
en

u
es

, 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s,
 an

d
 c

h
an

g
es

 i
n
 fu

n
d
 b

al
an

ce
s 

p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

re
co

n
ci

li
at

io
n
 t
o
 fa

ci
li

ta
te

 th
is

 c
o
m

p
ar

is
o
n
 

b
et

w
ee

n
 g

o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fun

d
s 

an
d
 g

o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s.

 T
h
e 

C
it

y
 a

d
o
p
ts

 a
n
 a

n
n
u
al

 a
ppropri

at
ed

 
b
u
d
g
et

 f
o
r 

it
s 

G
en

er
al

 F
u
n
d
 an

d
 a

ll
 s

p
ec

ia
l 
re

v
en

u
e 

fu
n
d
s.

 

P
ro

p
ri

et
a
ry

 F
u

n
d

s 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 m

ai
n
ta

in
s 

o
n
e 

ty
p
e 

o
f 

p
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y
 fun

d
s.

 E
n
terpri

se
 fu

n
d
s 

ar
e 

u
se

d
 t
o
 r

ep
o
rt

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
fun

ct
io

n
s 

p
re

se
n
te

d
 a

s 
b
u
si

n
es

s-
typ

e 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

in
 t
h
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 u

se
s 

en
te

rp
ri

se
 fu

n
d
s 

to
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
it

s 
w

at
er

, 
sa

n
itar

y
 s

ew
er

, 
an

d
 s

to
rm

 s
ew

er
. 

P
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y
 fu

n
d
s 

p
ro

v
id

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ty
p
e 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 a

s 
th

e 
g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
finan

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, 
o
n
ly

 i
n
 m

o
re

 deta
il

. 
T

h
e 

p
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y
 fun

d
s 

fi
n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e 
se

p
ar

at
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

w
at

er
, 
sa

n
it

ar
y
 s

ew
er

, 
an

d
 s

to
rm

 drainag
e,

 a
ll

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
n
si

d
er

ed
 t
o
 b

e 
m

aj
o
r 

fu
n
d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y
. 

C
it

y
 o

f 
E

lk
o
 N

ew
 M

a
rk

et
 

M
a
n

a
g
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 IIl

G
H

L
IG

H
T

S
 (

C
O

N
T

INU
E

D
) 

F
id

u
ci

a
ry

 F
u

n
d

s 
F

id
u
ci

ar
y
 fu

n
d
s 

ar
e 

u
se

d
 t
o
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
re

so
u
rc

es
 h

el
d
 fo

r 
th

e 
b
en

efi
t 
o
f 

p
art

ie
s 

o
u
ts

id
e 

th
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t 

F
id

u
ci

ar
y
 fu

n
d
s 

ar
e 

n
o
t 
re

fl
ec

te
d
 i

n
 th

e 
g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 b
ec

au
se

 t
h
e 

re
so

u
rc

es
 o

f 
th

o
se

 fun
d
s 

ar
e 

n
o
t 

av
ai

la
b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e 

C
ity

's
 o

w
n
 p

ro
gr

am
s.

 

N
o
te

s 
to

 F
in

a
n

ci
a
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
T

h
e 

n
o
te

s 
p
ro

v
id

e 
ad

d
it

io
n
al

 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 that

 i
s 

es
se

n
ti

al
 t
o
 a

 fu
ll

 u
n
d
er

st
an

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e 
d
at

a 
p
ro

v
id

ed
 i
n
 

th
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
an

d
 fu

n
d
 finan

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

G
o
v
er

n
m

en
t-

W
id

e 
F

in
a
n

ci
a
l 

A
n

a
ly

si
s 

A
s 

n
o
te

d
 e

ar
li

er
, 
n
et

 p
o
si

ti
o
n
 m

ay
 s

er
v
e 

o
v
er

 t
im

e 
as

 a
 u

se
fu

l 
in

d
ic

at
o
r 

o
f 

a 
g
o
v
ernm

en
t's

 fi
n
an

ci
al

 
p
o
si

ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e 

C
ity

's
 n

et
 p

o
si

ti
o
n
 th

at
 i
s 

u
n
re

str
ic

te
d
 i

s 
10

.3
%

 o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l.
 B

y
 far

, th
e 

larg
es

t 
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y
's

 
n
et

 p
o
si

ti
o
n
 (

8
4
. 7

%
) 

re
fl

ec
ts

 i
ts

 i
n
v
es

tm
en

t 
in

 c
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

( e
.g

. 
la

n
d
, 
b
u
il

d
in

g
s,

 m
ac

h
in

er
y
, 
an

d
 

eq
u
ip

m
en

t)
; 

le
ss

 an
y
 r

el
at

ed
 d

eb
t 
u
se

d
 t
o
 a

cq
ui

re
 th

o
se

 a
ss

et
s 

th
at

 i
s 

st
il

l 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 u

se
s 

th
es

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
as

se
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 t
o
 c

it
iz

en
s;

 conseq
u
en

tl
y
, 
th

es
e 

as
se

ts
 ar

e 
n
o
t 
av

ai
lab

le
 fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 
sp

en
d
in

g
. 

A
lt

h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
's

 i
n
v
es

tm
en

t 
in

 i
ts

 c
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

is
 r

ep
o
rt

ed
 n

et
 o

f 
re

la
te

d
 d

eb
t,
 i
t 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

n
o
te

d
 t

h
at

 th
e 

re
so

u
rc

es
 n

ee
d
ed

 t
o
 r

ep
ay

 th
is

 d
eb

t 
m

u
st

 b
e 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 fr

o
m

 o
th

er
 s

o
u
rc

es
, 

si
n
ce

 th
e 

ca
p
it
al

 
as

se
ts

 th
em

se
lv

es
 c

an
n
o
t 

b
e 

u
se

d
 t
o
 l

iq
u
id

at
e 

th
es

e 
li

ab
il

it
ie

s.
 

A
t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
curren

t 
fi

sc
al

 y
ear

, 
th

e 
C

it
y
 w

as
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

ep
o
rt

 a
 p

o
si

ti
v
e 

b
al

an
ce

 i
n
 i
ts

 n
et

 p
o
si

ti
o
n
 fo

r 
th

e 
g
o
v
ernm

en
t 
as

 a
 w

h
o
le

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 i
ts

 s
ep

arat
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
an

d
 b

u
si

n
es

s-
ty

p
e 

ac
ti

v
it

ie
s.

 

T
h

e 
C

it
y
's

 N
et

 P
o
si

ti
o
n

 

Oovmuneol:
A

ct
ivities

 
Business

A
ct

iv
itie

s 
TOla

l 
20

18
 

20
17

 
20

18
 

20
17

 
20

18
 

20
17

 
-

CUrrent
 and

 other
 asscts

 
s 

5,3
34

,81
4 

s 
s.4

03
,09

3 
s 

49
5.4

96
 

s 
60

6,6
56

 
s 

S,8
30

,31
0 

s 
6.0

09
,74

9 
Ne

t pension
 su

et
 

52
9,6

49
 

88
4,

02
1 

52
9,6

49
 

88
4,0

21
 

Cap
i la

l ......
 

1 2z
43

�
6 90

 
1 2z

74
4 1

7 3
2 

26
,6

94
,9

22
 

27
1
4zt1!

60
 

37
13

1 16
12

 
3!!z

22
3�

 
T

Ola
lauets

 
1�

01
.1

53
 

17
103

1�
 

27
,1

90
14

18
 

28
108

5J
16

 
43

.49
1.5

71
 

�
06

2 

Deferred
 Oatflows

o
f
llNOlmel

 

Defem:d
 outflows

 of
 resoun:es

 re
lated

 to
 fire

 re
lie

f 
Oefemd

 autfl
ow

s 
of

resoun:es
 re

lat
ed

 to
 c

ity
 

74
5 7

36
 

73
7J.

76
 

63
 6

14
 

73
15

4 
80

9J.
50

 
81

05
30

 
T

ot
al 

defelred
outflows

of
resources

 
74

5,7
36

 
73

7,3
76

 
63

,61
4 

73
,15

4 
80

9.3
50

 
81

0,5
30

 

T
ot

al auets
 and

 dcfem,d
 outflows

 of
 

s 
17

.�
88

9 
s 

11
116

9s
 

s 
27

,J.
54

103
2 

s 
28

11
5�

70
 

S 
44

J00,92
1 

�
59

2 

Llabllllleo
 

Current
 and

 other
 li

ab
ilities

 
s 

69
6,6

75
 

$ 
900

,65
5 

s 
1,0

04
,16

1 
$ 

1,3
23

,68
8 

s 
1,

700
,83

6 
$ 

2.22
4

.3
4

3
 

Nc
tpe

ns
ion

liabilily
 

64
5,4

46
 

73
1,99

9 
25

6,7
65

 
26

9,7
85

 
90

2,2
11

 
1,0

01
,78

4 
Loog

-
lialn

litios
 

3�
3,3

01
 

3.g
9�

18
 

10
�

1 
11

�
,0S

l 
14

,03
0 1

13
2 

15
,08

5 1
56

9 
T

ota
ll

iab
ilit

ies
 

47
05

42
2 

5�
17

2 
11

92
77

57
 

1�
84

9�
24

 
16

163
3 1

17
9 

18
,3

11
,6

96
 

_
_
 .,
_

 

De
fened

 inflows
 of

 resources
 re

lated
 to

 c
ity

 
72

8z1
68

 
86

99
43

 
61

,43
9 

44
,5(16

 
78

96
07

 
91

4
44

9 

N
,.

_
 

Ne
t 

invcstmcPt
 in

 capital
 assets

 
6,6

39
,56

0 
6,2

97
,91

9 
16

,13
0.6

13
 

16
,10

3,04
4 

22
,77

0,1
73

 
22

,40
0,9

63
 

-
1,3

51
,77

7 
1,

39
5,6

98
 

1,3
51

,77
7 

1.3
95

,69
8 

u
 ..........

 
3 1

62
1 1

96
2 

3 174
3 1

49
0 

,8
65

1
7z:!l

 
,8

38
170

4}
 

2 175
6 1

18
5 

�
78

6 
T

ota
ln

et
positi

<m
 

11
,61

3,2
99

 
11

,43
7,1

07
 

15
,26

4,8
36

 
15

,26
4,3

40
 

26
,87

8,1
35

 
26

.70
1,

44
7 

T
ota

l l
iab

ilities.,
 deferred

 inflows
 of

 
and

 ne
t po

sit
ion

 
s 

17
,�

88
9 

s 
17

176
9�

 
$ 

27
=!

410
32

 
s 

2!&
15

813
70

 
$ 

�
30

019
21

 
s 

45
.92

7 �
92

 

IV-4



C
ity

 o
f 

E
lk

o
 N

ew
 M

a
rk

et
 

M
a
n

a
g
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 ffi

G
HL

IG
H

T
S 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

) 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l 

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

G
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
's

 n
et

 p
o
si

ti
o
n
 b

y
 $

17
6
,1

9
2
. 

I E
xpe

n
se

s 
a

n
d

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 R

ev
en

u
es

 -
Go

v
ernm

en
ta

l 
A

ct
iv

itie
s 
I 

$ 1
,2

00
,0

00
 

+-
-

-
-

-
-

-

$ 1
,0

0 0
,0

0
0
 

+-
-

-
-

-
-

-

$8
00

,0
00

 

$6
00

,0
00

 

$4
00

,0
00

 

$2
00

,0
00

 

$
-

G
en

era
l 

G
ov

ernm
en

t 
P
ub

li
c 

Sa
fety

 

■
E

xp
ms

e
s 

P
ub

li
c 

W
orlc

s 
C

ul
ture

 a
n

d
 

Interes
t 

on
 L

on
g
-

R
ec

rea
ti

on
 

T
erm

 De
b

t 

■
 Program

 Rev
en

ue
 

C
it

y 
of

 E
lk

o 
N

ew
 M

ar
k

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

n
al

ys
is

 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 ffi

G
HL

IG
H

T
S 

(C
O

NTINUE
D

) 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
(C

on
ti

n
u

ed
) 

I R
ev

en
ue

s b
y 

So
ur

ce
 -

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
 I 

In
te

rg
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
6
%

 

U
n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 
In

v
es

tm
en

t 
E

arn
in

gs
 a

n
d
 

M
is

ce
ll

an
eo

u
s 

7
%

 

C
ap

it
al

 G
ran

ts
 

an
d
 C

o
n
tr

ib
ut

io
n
s 

6
%

 

IV-5



C
it

y
 o

f 
E

lk
o
 N

ew
 M

a
rk

et
 

M
a
n

a
g
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 ID

G
H

L
IG

H
T

S
 (

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

) 

B
u

si
n

es
s-

T
y
p

e 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

B
u
si

n
es

s-
ty

p
e 

ac
ti

v
it

ie
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d
 th

e 
C

ity
's

 n
et

 p
o
si

ti
o
n
 b

y
 $

4
96

. 

$
1
,6

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
1
,4

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
1
,2

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
8
0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
6
0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
4
0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
-

W
at

er
 

E
x
p

en
se

s 
a
n

d
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 R

ev
en

u
es

 -
B

u
si

n
es

s-
Ty

p
e 

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

S
ew

er
 

■
Expense

s 
■

Pro
gram

 Revenue
 

S
tonn

 S
ew

er
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
E

lk
o
 N

ew
 M

a
rk

et
 

M
a
n

a
g
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 ID

G
H

L
IG

H
T

S
 (

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

) 

B
n

si
n

es
s-

T
y
p

e 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
(C

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 

I R
ev

en
ue

s b
y 

So
ur

ce
 -

Bu
sin

es
s-Typ

e A
ct

iv
iti

es
 ! 

C
ap

ital
 Gran

ts
 

an
d
 C

o
n
tri

b
u
ti

o
n
s 

0
%

 

U
nr

e
stri

ct
e
d
 

IV-6



C
it

y 
of

 E
lk

o 
N

ew
 M

ar
k
et

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 a

n
d

 A
n

al
ys

is
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 ID

G
H

L
IG

H
T

S
 (

C
O

NTINUE
D

) 

T
h

e 
C

it
y'

s 
C

h
an

ge
 i

n
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

 

Government
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 
Bu

sin
es

s A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

To
tal

 
20

18
 

20
17

 
20

18
 

_
_

 20
17

 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Revea

■
es

 

Program
 re

ve
nu

es
 

Charge
s for

 se
rv

ice
s 

s
 

55
1,

81
5 

s
 

49
9,

36
4 

s
 

2,
63

9,
52

2 
$ 

2,
42

5,
84

7 
s
 

3,
19

1,
33

7 
s
 

2,
92

5,
21

1 
Operating

 grants
 and

 
22

8,
16

4 
16

9,
06

1 
22

8,
16

4 
16

9,
06

1 
Cap

ita
l grants

 an
d 

co
ntr

ib
ut

io
ns

 
22

2,
75

9 
15

1,
08

5 
(1

,1
69

) 
34

,6
31

 
22

1,
59

0 
18

5,
71

6 
General

 re
ve

nu
es

 
Pr

operly
 ta

xe
s 

2,
16

9,
04

8 
2,

06
6,

94
6 

2,
16

9,
04

8 
2,

06
6,

94
6 

In
tergov

ernmental
 

22
6,

28
3 

21
6,

57
1 

22
6,

28
3 

21
6,

57
1 

Other
 general

 re
ve

nu
e 

10
4,

90
3 

74
,9

93
 

5,
53

8 
87

,!1
70

 
11

0,
44

1 
16

2,
96

3 
Gai

n 
on

 sa
le

 o
f c

ap
ita

l assets
 

40
,4

67
 

40
,4

67
 

In
ve

stment
 earni

ng
s 

14
72

2 
11

43
0 

86
2 

10
83

0 
15

 5
84

 
22

�
 

Total
 re

ve
nu

es
 

3,
51

7,
69

4 
3,2

29
,!1

17
 

2,
64

4,
75

3 
2,

55
9,

27
8 

6,
16

2,
44

7 
5,

78
9,

19
5 

E
x
pe

■
HI

 

General
 government

 
93

6,
21

6 
83

5,
36

7 
93

6,
21

6 
83

5,
36

7 
Pu

bl
ic 

..rety
 

1,
25

6,
74

6 
1,

10
6,

93
8 

1,
25

6,
74

6 
1,

10
6,

93
8 

Pu
bl

icworl<s
 

78
1,

40
9 

60
9,

81
7 

78
1,

40
9 

60
9,

81
7 

CU
itu

re
 an

d recreati
on

 
25

8,
75

9 
18

6,
05

9 
25

8,
75

9 
18

6,
05

9 
Interest

 on
 Io

ns
-te

rm
 d

eb
t 

10
8,

37
2 

14
2,

02
5 

10
8,

37
2 

14
2,

02
5 

w
-

1,
04

1,
28

2 
71

3,
73

5 
1,

04
1,

28
2 

71
3,

73
5 

Se
we

r 
1,

40
1,

19
8 

1,
28

7,
72

7 
1,

40
1,

19
8 

1,
28

7,
72

7 
St

orm
 se

we
r 

20
1 

77
7 

22
9,

95
2 

20
1 

77
7 

22
9,

95
2 

To
tal

 ex
pe

ns
es

 
3,

34
1,

50
2 

2 1
8B

0d
06

 
2�

7 
2d

31
,4

14
 

5,
98

5,
75

9 
5 01

11
,6

20
 

Chang
e 

in
 n

et 
po

sit
io

n 
17

6,
19

2 
34

9,
71

1 
49

6 
32

7,
86

4 
17

6,
68

8 
67

7,
57

5 

January
 I 

11
,4

37
,1

07
 

ll
,0

87
J

96
 

15
d

64
,3

40
 

14
,9

36
,4

76
 

26
,7

01
,4

47
 

26
,0

23
,8

72
 

Pr
io

r period
 ad

ju
stm

en
t•

 
January

 1
, restated

 
11

,4
37

,1
07

 
ll

,0
87

J
96

 
15

�
,3

40
 

14
,9

36
,4

76
 

26
,7

01
,4

47
 

26
,0

23
,8

72
 

llecember
31

 
$ 

11
161

3 �
99

 
S 

11
,4

37
,10

7 
S 

15
�

,8
36

 
S 

15
�

64
�

40
 

$ 
26

.8
78

11
35

 
$ 

26
,1

01
,4

47
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 O
F

 G
O

V
E

RN
M

E
N

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
S

 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l F

u
n

d
s 

T
h
e 

fo
cu

s 
o
f

 th
e 

C
it

y
 g

o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fu

n
d
s 

is
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 n

ear
-t

er
m

 i
n
fl

o
w

s,
 o

u
tfl

o
w

s,
 an

d 
b
al

an
ce

s 
o
f

 sp
en

da
b
le

 r
es

o
u
rc

es
. 
S
u
ch

 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 i
s 

us
efu

l 
in

 a
ss

es
si

n
g
 th

e 
C

ity
 finan

ci
n
g
 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
. 
In

 p
ar

ti
cu

lar
, 
fu

n
d
 b

al
an

ce
 m

ay
 s

er
v
e 

as
 a

 u
se

fu
l 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f
 a
 g

o
v
ernm

en
t's

 n
et

 r
es

o
u
rc

es
 

av
ai

la
b
le

 fo
r 

sp
en

d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f
 th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.
 

A
s 

o
f

 th
e 

en
d
 o

f
 th

e 
cur

re
n
t 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r,
 th

e 
C

ity
 g

o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
fu

n
d
s 

re
p
o
rt

ed
 c

o
m

b
in

ed
 e

n
d
in

g
 fu

n
d
 

b
al

an
ce

s 
o
f

$
4
,1

3
1
,0

8
9
, 
an

 i
n
cr

ea
se

 o
f

$
1
2
5
,3

9
5
 fr

o
m

 th
e 

p
ri

o
r 

y
ear

 fu
n
d
 b

al
an

ce
. 
T

h
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 w
as

 
p
rimari

ly
 d

u
e 

to
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

at
io

n
 o

f
 ex

ce
ss

 r
ev

en
u
es

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
u
n
d
er

 b
u
d
g
et

 i
n
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n
d
. 

T
h
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
u
n
d
 i
s 

th
e 

ch
ie

f
 o

p
er

at
in

g
 fu

n
d
 o

f
 th

e 
C

it
y
. A

t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f
 th

e 
2
0
1
8
 fi

sc
al

 y
ear

, th
e 

u
n
as

si
gn

ed
 fu

n
d
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n
d
 w

as
 $

1
,4

6
5
,8

1
1
. 
A

s 
a 

m
ea

su
re

 o
f

 th
e 

G
en

era
l 

F
un

d'
s 

li
q
u
id

it
y
, 
it

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
efu

l 
to

 c
om

p
ar

e 
u
n
as

si
gn

ed
 fu

n
d
 b

al
an

ce
 t

o
 fu

n
d
 e

x
p
en

d
it

u
re

s.
 T

h
e 

u
n
as

si
gn

ed
 

fu
n
d
 b

al
an

ce
 r

ep
re

se
n
ts

 7
4
.5

%
 o

f
 to

ta
l 
2
0
1
8
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d
 b

u
d
g
et

ed
 e

x
p
en

d
it

ure
s.

 

C
ity

 o
f 

E
lk

o 
N

ew
 M

ar
k
et

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 a

n
d

 A
n

al
ys

is
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 O
F

 G
O

V
E

RNME
N

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l F

u
n

d
s 

(C
on

ti
n

u
ed

) 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
's

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
 b

al
an

ce
 i
n
cr

ea
se

d
 b

y
 $

2
0
2
,5

5
4
 i

n
 2

0
1
8
. T

h
e 

d
iff

er
en

ce
 i
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 i
n
 

L
ic

en
se

s 
an

d
 P

erm
it

s 
an

d
 I

n
te

rg
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
es

 an
d
 l
o
w

er
 e

x
p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
w

it
h
 t
h
e 

G
en

er
al

 
G

o
v
ernm

en
t,
 P

u
b
li

c 
W

o
rk

s,
 an

d 
P

ark
s 

an
d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 fun

ct
io

n
s 

o
v
er

al
l. 

S
ign

ifi
can

t 
re

v
en

u
e 

v
ar

ia
n
ce

s 
fr

o
m

 fi
n
al

 b
u
d
g
et

 t
o
 actual

 wh
er

e 
ac

tu
al

 w
as

 o
v
er

 b
u
d
g
et

 i
n
cl

u
d
e:

 

•
 

L
ic

en
se

s 
an

d
 p

er
m

it
s 

in
 t
h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f

$
5
7
,7

7
7
 d

u
e 

to
 h

ig
h
er

 than
 e

xpecte
d
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 a

ct
iv

it
y
. 

•
 

In
te

rg
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
in

 t
h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f

$
5
0
,4

2
0
 d

u
e 

to
 a

d
d
it

io
n
al

 g
ran

t 
m

o
n
ey

 r
ec

ei
v
ed

 du
ri

n
g
 2

0
1
8
 

m
o
st

ly
 r

el
at

ed
 t
o
 th

e 
sm

al
l 
ci

ti
es

 a
ss

is
tan

ce
 gran

t 
fo

r 
$
3
3
,6

6
2
. 

S
ig

n
ifi

ca
n
t 

ex
p
en

d
it

u
re

 v
ar

ia
n
ce

s 
fr

o
m

 fi
n
al

 b
u
d
g
et

 t
o
 a

ct
u
al

 w
h
er

e 
ac

tu
al

 w
as

 un
d
er

 b
u
d
g
et

 i
n
cl

u
d
e:

 

• 
G

en
er

al
 G

o
v
ernm

en
t 
in

 th
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f

$
5
8
,0

0
I 

d
u
e 

to
 l
o
w

er
 t
h
an

 an
ti

ci
p
at

ed
 c

o
n
su

lt
in

g
 

ex
p
en

se
s.

 
• 

P
u
b
li

c 
W

o
rk

s 
in

 th
e 

am
o
un

t 
o
f

$
4
5
,9

6
9
 d

u
e 

to
 s

n
o
w

 p
lo

w
in

g
 r

em
o
v
al

 a
n
d
 d

ei
ci

n
g
 m

at
er

ia
ls

. 
• 

P
ark

s 
an

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 i
n 

th
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f
 1

8
,1

4
6
 d

u
e 

to
 l
o
w

er
 p

er
so

n
n
el

 c
o
st

s.

S
ign

ifi
can

t 
v
ar

ian
ce

s 
fr

o
m

 final
 b

u
d
g
et

 t
o
 a

ct
u
al

 w
h
er

e 
ac

tu
al

 w
as

 o
v
er

 b
u
d
g
et

 i
n
cl

u
d
e:

 

• 
P

u
b
li

c 
S
af

et
y
 i

n
 t
h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f

 $
2
2
, 1

6
9
 d

u
e 

to
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 i
n
sp

ec
ti

o
n
 c

o
st

s 
fr

o
m

 i
n
cr

ea
se

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s.

O
v
er

al
l,
 G

en
er

al
 F

u
n
d
 actual

 e
x
p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
w

er
e 

un
d
er

 t
h
e 

fi
n
al

 a
p
p
ro

v
ed

 b
u
d
g
et

 b
y
 $

8
3
,6

5
1
 a

n
d
 th

e 
ex

ce
ss

 o
f
 re

v
en

ue
s 

o
v
er

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
am

oun
ts

 w
as

 $
1
1
7
,3

1
2
. 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 O
F

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

 F
U

N
D

S
 

P
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y 
F

u
n

d
s 

T
h
e 

C
ity

 p
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y
 fu

n
d
s 

p
ro

v
id

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ty
p
e 

o
f
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 fo

un
d
 i
n
 t
h
e 

g
o
v
ernm

en
t-

w
id

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

T
o
ta

l 
o
p
er

at
in

g
 r

ev
en

u
es

 e
x
ce

ed
ed

 o
p
er

at
in

g
 e

x
p
en

se
s 

by
 $

3
3
1
,9

0
5
 i
n
 th

e 
W

at
er

 F
u
n
d
. A

t 
y
ear

 e
n
d
, th

e 
u
n
re

str
ic

te
d
 n

et
 p

os
it
io

n 
o
f

 th
e 

W
at

er
 F

u
n
d
 a

m
ou

nt
ed

 t
o
 $

1
5
9
,8

8
4
. 

T
h
e 

S
ew

er
 F

u
n
d
 h

ad
 a

 n
et

 o
p
era

ti
n
g
 l
o
ss

 o
f

$
2
6
9
,7

1
4
. T

h
is

 i
s 

p
ri

m
ar

il
y
 d

u
e 

to
 $

2
4
7
,3

0
0
 i
n
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n
 

ex
p
en

se
. T

h
e 

u
n
re

str
ic

te
d
 n

et
 p

o
si

ti
o
n
 o

f
 th

e 
se

w
er

 fu
n
d
 a

m
o
un

te
d
 t
o
 (

$
1
,1

5
6
,1

4
9
).

 

T
h
e 

S
to

rm
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d
 h

ad
 a

 n
et

 o
p
er

at
in

g
 i
n
co

m
e 

o
f
 $

7
4
,2

3
2
. T

h
is

 i
s 

p
ri

m
ar

il
y
 d

u
e 

to
 e

x
p
en

se
s 

b
ei

n
g
 

lo
w

er
 t

h
an

 b
u
d
g
et

ed
. 
T

h
e 

unre
str

ic
te

d
 n

et
 p

o
si

ti
o
n
 o

f
 th

e 
S
to

rm
 S

ew
er

 F
u
n
d
 a

m
o
un

te
d
 t
o
 $

1
3
0
,4

8
8
. 

T
o
ta

l 
u
n
re

str
ic

te
d
 n

et
 p

o
si

ti
o
n
 o

f
 th

e 
p
ro

p
ri

et
ar

y
 fu

n
d
s 

w
er

e 
($

8
6
5
,7

7
7
) 

at
 th

e 
en

d
 o

f
 2

0
1
8
. 

IV-7



C
ity

 o
f 

E
lk

o
 N

ew
 M

a
rk

et
 

M
a
n

a
g
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 B

U
D

G
E

T
A

R
Y

 fil
G

HL
IG

H
T

S
 

T
h
er

e 
ar

e 
n
o
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
b
et

w
ee

n
 th

e 
o
ri

g
in

al
 b

u
d
g
et

 a
n
d
 th

e 
fi

n
al

 a
m

en
d
ed

 b
u
d
g
et

 d
u
ri

n
g
 2

0
18

. 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

s 
fr

o
m

 G
en

er
al

 F
u
n
d
 b

u
d
g
et

 ar
e 

summarized
 a

s 
fo

ll
ow

s:
 

•
L

ic
en

se
s 

an
d
 p

er
m

it
s 

in
 t

h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 

of
$

57
,7

7
7
 d

u
e 

to
 h

ig
h
er

 t
h
an

 e
x
p
ec

te
d
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 a

ct
iv

it
y
. 

•
In

te
rg

ov
ernm

en
ta

l 
in

 t
h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f
$

5
0
,4

2
0
 d

u
e 

to
 a

d
d
it

io
n
al

 g
ran

t 
m

o
n
ey

 r
ec

ei
v
ed

 d
ur

in
g
 2

0
1
8
 

m
o
st

ly
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o
 th

e 
sm

al
l 
ci

ti
es

 a
ss

is
tan

ce
 g

ran
t 

fo
r 
$

3
3
,6

62
. 

• 
G

en
er

al
 G

o
v
ernm

en
t 
in

 t
h
e 

am
o
un

t 
o
f
 $

5
 8
,0

0
 l 

d
u
e 

to
 l
o
w

er
 th

an
 a

n
ti

ci
p
at

ed
 c

on
su

lt
in

g
 

ex
p
en

se
s.

• 
P

u
b
li

c 
W

o
rk

s 
in

 th
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f
$

4
5
,9

6
9
 d

u
e 

to
 s

n
o
w

 p
lo

w
in

g
 r

em
o
v
al

 an
d
 d

ei
ci

n
g
 m

at
er

ia
ls

.
• 

P
u
b
li

c 
S
af

ety
 i
n
 t
h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 
o
f
 $

2
2
,1

6
9
 d

u
e 

to
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 i
n
specti

o
n
 c

o
st

s 
fr

o
m

 i
n
cr

ea
se

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s.
 

• 
P

ark
s 

an
d
 Recrea

ti
o
n
 i
n
 th

e 
am

o
un

t 
o
f
 1

8
, 1

4
6 

d
u
e 

to
 l
o
w

er
 p

er
so

n
n
el

 c
o
st

s.
 

A
s 

o
f

 th
e 

cl
o
se

 o
f
 th

e 
curr

en
t 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r,
 t
h
e 

un
as

si
g
n
ed

 fu
n
d
 b

al
an

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n
d
 w

as
 

$
1
,4

6
5
,8

1
1
, e

q
u
iv

al
en

t 
to

 7
4
.5

%
 o

f
 th

e 
2
0
1
8
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

op
er

at
in

g 
bu

dg
et

. 
T

h
is

 i
s 

an
 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f
$

2
0
2
,5

5
4
 fr

o
m

 th
e 

en
d
 o

f
 th

e 
2
0
1
7
 fi

sc
al

 y
ear

. 
T

h
e 

d
ifferen

ce
 i

s 
du

e 
to

 t
h
e 

in
crease

 i
n
 

L
ic

en
se

s 
an

d
 P

er
m

it
s 

an
d
 I

nt
er

g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
es

 an
d 

lo
w

er
 e

x
p
en

d
it

ur
es

 w
ith

 t
h
e 

G
en

er
al

 
G

o
v
ernm

en
t,
 P

u
b
li

c 
W

o
rk

s,
 an

d
 P

ar
k
s 

an
d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 fu

n
ct

io
n
s 

o
v
er

al
l.
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 A
S

S
E

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

B
T

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 

T
h
e 

C
it

y
 i

n
v
es

tm
en

t 
in

 c
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s 

fo
r 

it
s 

g
o
v
ernm

en
ta

l 
an

d
 b

u
si

n
es

s-
ty

p
e 

ac
ti

v
it

ie
s 

as
 o

f
 

D
ec

em
b
er

 3
1
, 
2
0
1
8
, 
am

o
u
n
te

d
 t
o
 $

3
7
,1

3
1
,6

1
2
 (

n
et

 o
f
 a
cc

u
m

u
la

te
d
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n
).

 T
h
is

 i
n
v
es

tm
en

t 
in

 
ca

p
it

al
 a

ss
et

s 
in

cl
u
d
es

 l
an

d
, 
b
u
il

d
in

g
s,

 i
m

p
ro

v
em

en
ts

 o
th

er
 t
h
an

 b
u
il

d
in

g
s,

 m
ac

h
in

er
y
 a

n
d
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
an

d
 i
n
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e.
 

M
aj

o
r 

ca
p
it

al
 a

ss
et

 e
v
en

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

in
cl

u
d
ed

 th
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
: 

• 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 s
ev

er
al

 n
ew

 an
d
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 
p
ie

ce
s 

o
f
 e
q
u
ip

m
en

t,
 i

n
cl

u
d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 
eq

u
ip

m
en

t,
 a

 s
k
id

 l
o
ad

er
, 
tw

o
 p

ic
k
-u

p
 tru

ck
s 

an
d
 a

 F
o
rd

 E
x
p
lo

re
r.

 

T
h

e 
C

ity
's

 C
a
p

it
a
l 

A
ss

et
s G

ov
ernm

en
t A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
Bu

sines.,
A

cti
vi

tie
s 

T
otal

 

.fill!._
 

20
17

 
20

18
 

20
17

 
20

18
 

20
17

 

La
nd

 
s
 

1,0
07

,77
7 

s
 

1,0
07

,77
7 

$ 
s
 

s
 

1,0
07

,77
7 

s
 

1,0
07

,77
7 

C
o
n
structi

o
n
 in

 progress
 

59
9,2

83
 

18
7,3

80
 

18
7,3

80
 

18
7,3

80
 

78
6,6

63
 

Buil
din

g 
1,4

10
,14

3 
1,4

37
,56

7 
1,4

10
,14

3 
1,4

37
,56

7 
Mac

hi
ne

ry
 an

d
 e

q
ui

p
m

en
t 

1,5
72

,92
4 

1,4
99

,8
21

 
43

,0
36

 
68

,00
7 

1,6
15

,96
0 

1,5
67

,82
8 

Im
p
ro

vements
 

1,0
39

,70
2 

52
6,2

81
 

1,0
39

,70
2 

52
6,2

81
 

In
fras

tructure
 

5,4
06

,14
4 

5,6
74

,00
3 

5,4
06

,14
4 

5,6
74

,00
3 

W
ater

 ma
in

 an
d 

sv
ste

m
 

15
,85

4,4
75

 
16

,28
4,8

32
 

15
,85

4,4
75

 
16

,28
4,8

32
 

San
itarv

 se
wer

 main
 an

d 
7,1

02
,07

4 
7,3

33
,84

3 
7,1

02
,07

4 
7,3

33
,84

3 
St

orm
 se

wer
 system

 
3,5

07
.95

7 
3.6

04
.49

8 
3 5

07
 95

7 
3 .6

04
,49

8 

N
et 

cap
ital

 as
se

ts 
s
 

10
,43

6,6
90

 
$ 

10
17

44
17

32
 

$ 
26

,69
4 ,9

22
 

S 
27

,47
8 �

60
 

s
 

3
7
11

3
1
16

1
2
 

s
 

38
�

=9
2 

C
ity

 o
f 

E
lk

o
 N

ew
 M

ar
k

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n
 a

n
d

 A
n

a
ly

si
s 

C
A

P
IT

AL
 A

S
S

E
T

 A
N

D
 D

E
B

T
 A

D
MI

N
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

 (
C

O
NTINUE

D
) 

L
o
n

g
-T

er
m

 D
eb

t 
A

t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f
 th

e 
curr

en
t 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r,
 th

e 
C

it
y
 h

ad
 t
o
ta

l 
b
o
n
d
s 

an
d
 n

o
te

s 
o
u
ts

tan
d
in

g
 o

f
$

1
4
,3

6
1
,4

3
9 

an
d 

lo
an

s 
pa

ya
bl

e 
o
f
$

8
5
2,

2
8

l.
 T

h
e 

to
ta

l 
bo

nd
s,

 n
ot

es
, 
an

d
 l
o
an

s 
d
ecreas

ed
 b

y
 $

1
,1

7
7
,7

3
3
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
20

18
 

fi
sc

al
 y

ear
. 

C
it
y'

s 
d
eb

t 
re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

d
eb

t 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f
 P

F
A

 N
o
te

 S
er

ie
s 

2
0
1
3
 G

en
er

al
 O

b
li

g
at

io
n
 

Drinkin
g 

W
at

er
 R

ev
en

u
e 

N
o
te

 d
ecreased

 fr
o
m

 $
9
,1

0
2
,1

9
4
 t
o
 $

8
,6

0
8
,0

0
0
 i
n
 2

0
1
8
. 

In
 A

p
ri

l 
o
f
 2
0
 l 
0
, t

h
e 

C
ity

's
 c

re
d
it

 ra
ti

n
g
 b

y
 M

o
o
d
y
's

 I
n
v
es

tm
en

t 
S
er

v
ic

e 
w

as
 u

p
gr

ad
ed

 t
o
 "

A
 I
" 

fr
om

 
"A

3
".

 T
h
is

 r
at

in
g 

w
as

 reaffi
rm

ed
 fo

r 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f
 d

eb
t 
in

 2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 a

g
ai

n
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
. I

n
 N

o
v
em

b
er

 o
f
 2

0
1
3
, 

th
e 

C
it

y
 w

as
 a

ss
ign

ed
 a

 c
re

d
it

 r
at

in
g
 o

f
 "A

A
+

" 
by

 S
tan

d
ar

d
 &

 P
o
o
r'
s 

R
at

in
g
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

T
h

e 
C

ity
's

 O
u

ts
ta

n
d
in

g 
D

eb
t 

G
.O

. bon
d
s 

an
d 

no
tes

 
G.

O.
 rev

en
ue

 bo
nd

s 
Loa

ns
 

T
otal

 

Governm
ent

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

.fill!._
 

�
 

S 
3,7

97
,13

0 
S 

4,3
80

,71
7 

3 ,7
97

,1
30

 
S 

4,3
80

,71
7 

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

S
 B

U
D

G
E

T
S

 A
N

D
 R

A
T

E
S

 

B
u
si

n
es

s 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
20

18
 

20
17

 

s
 

9,7
84

,30
9 

$ 
10

,43
9,3

00
 

78
0,0

00
 

89
5,0

00
 

85
2.2

81
 

67
64

36
 

11
,41

6,5
90

 
$ 

12
,01

0 ,1
36

 

T
otal

 
20

18
 

_1!!!1
 

s
 

13
,58

1,4
39

 
s
 

14
,82

0,0
17

 
78

0,00
0 

89
5,0

00
 

85
2�

81
 

67
6 4

36
 

s
 

1s
a1

3 172
0 

�
45

3 

T
h
e 

C
it

y
 c

o
n
si

d
er

ed
 t
h
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 f

actors
 i
n
 p

re
p
ar

in
g
 th

e 
C

ity
's

 b
u
d
g
et

 fo
r 

th
e 

2
0
1
9
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.
 

•
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 i
s 

ex
pectin

g
 a

 s
im

il
ar

 l
ev

el
 o

f
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 
ac

ti
v
it

y
 t
o 

2
0
1
8
 i
n
 2

0
1
9
. H

o
w

ev
er

, th
e 

2
0
1
9

b
u
d
g
et

 i
s 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 c

o
n
se

rv
at

iv
e 

as
su

m
p
ti

o
n
s 

re
g
ar

d
in

g
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 
ac

ti
v
it

y
, 
a 

m
o
d
es

t 
in

cr
ea

se
fr

o
m

 t
h
e 

2
0
1
8
 b

u
d
g
et

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n
s.

 T
h
is

 i
s 

re
fl

ec
te

d
 i
n
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 r
ev

en
u
e 

an
d
 e

x
p
en

d
it

ur
es

. 

•
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 C

o
un

ci
l 
as

su
m

es
 th

e 
re

ce
ip

t 
o
f
 L

o
ca

l 
G

o
v
ernm

en
t 
A

id
 an

d
 a

 7
5
%

 tran
sf

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n
d
 t
o
 th

e 
C

ap
it
al

 I
m

p
ro

v
em

en
t 
F
u
n
d
s.

 

•
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
an

n
u
al

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
s 

a 
fe

e 
an

al
y
si

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
propri

et
ar

y
 fun

d
s 

an
d 

in
te

n
d
s 

to
 

co
n
ti

n
u
e 

to
 am

en
d
 th

e 
fe

e 
structure

, a
s 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 an

y 
p
ro

je
ct

ed
 d

is
p
ar

it
ie

s 
be

tw
ee

n
 

re
v
en

u
es

 an
d
 e

x
pe

n
se

s.
 

• 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 C

o
un

ci
l 
an

n
u
al

ly
 u

p
d
at

es
 i
ts

 C
ap

it
al

 I
m

p
ro

v
em

en
t 

P
lan

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
cl

u
d
es

 m
aj

o
r 

ca
p
it

al
 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d
 p

u
rc

h
as

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
n
ex

t 
fi

v
e 

y
ea

rs
. T

h
e 

P
lan

 a
ss

is
ts

 th
e 

C
it

y
 i
n
 i
ts

 l
o
n
g
-t

er
m

 finan
ci

al
p
lan

n
in

g
. 
T

h
e 

P
lan

 i
d
en

ti
fi

es
 c

o
st

s,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 d
eb

t 
se

rv
ic

e,
 a

n
d
 fun

d
in

g
 s

o
u
rc

es
.

R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
S

 F
O

R
 I

N
F

O
RM

A
T

IO
N

 

Th
is

 finan
ci

al
 r

ep
o
rt

 i
s 

d
es

ig
n
ed

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
a 

g
en

er
al

 o
v
er

v
ie

w
 o

f
 th

e 
C

it
y
's

 fi
n
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

al
l 
th

o
se

 w
ith

 
an

 i
nt

er
es

t 
in

 t
h
e 

go
vernm

en
t's

 fi
n
an

ce
s.

 Q
u
es

ti
on

s 
co

n
cerning

 an
y
 o

f
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 p

ro
v
id

ed
 i
n
 th

is
 

re
p
o
rt

 o
r 

re
q
u
es

ts
 fo

r 
ad

d
it

io
n
al

 fi
n
an

ci
al

 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e 

ad
d
re

ss
ed

 t
o
 th

e 
C

it
y
 o

f
 E

lk
o
 N

ew
 

M
ark

et
, 6

0
1
 M

ai
n
 S

tr
ee

t,
 P

.O
. B

o
x
 9

9
, 
E

lk
o
 N

ew
 M

ark
et

, M
in

n
es

o
ta

 5
5
0
2
0
. 

IV-8



City of Elko New Market 

Statement of Net Position 

December 31, 2018 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 3,681,265 $ 235,681 $ 3,916,946 
Receivables 

Property tax receivable 25,512 25,512 
Accounts receivable 58,713 130,229 188,942 

Due from other governments 118,524 266,364 384,888 

Due from other funds (internal balances) 309,234 (309,234) 
Interfund loan receivable (internal balances) 78,508 (78,508) 
Special assessments receivable 

Current 608 2,443 3,051 
Delinquent 1,357 15,839 17,196 
Deferred 1,026,501 217,121 1,243,622 

Land held for resale 13,689 13,689 
Prepaid items 20,903 15,561 36,464 
Net pension asset - Fire Relief Association 529,649 529,649 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land 1,007,777 1,007,777 
Construction in progress 187,380 187,380 

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 
Buildings 1,410,143 1,410,143 
Machinery and equipment 1,572,927 43,036 1,615,963 
Improvements 1,039,702 1,039,702 
Infrastructure 5,406,141 5,406,141 
Sewer and water improvements 26,464,506 26,464,506 

Total assets 16,301,153 27,190,418 43,491,571 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 745,736 63,614 809,350 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 17,046,889 $ 27,254,032 $ 44,300,921 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 121,671 $ 34,198 $ 155,869 
Due to other governments 120,983 120,983 
Salaries and benefits payable 42,761 11,658 54,419 
Interest payable 42,938 60,717 103,655 
Net pension liability 645,446 256,765 902,211 
Bond principal payable 

Due within one year 433,829 252,172 686,001 
Due in more than one year 3,363,301 1,704,137 5,067,438 

Loan payable 
Payable within one year 10,534 10,534 
Due in more than one year 841,747 841,747 

PFA notes payable 
Payable within one year 499,000 499,000 
Payable after one year 8,109,000 8,109,000 

Compensated absences payable 
Payable within one year 55,476 14,899 70,375 
Payable after one yem 11,947 11,947 

Total liabilities 4,705,422 11,927,757 16,633,179 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 728,168 61,439 789,607 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 6,639,560 16,130,613 22,770,173 
Restricted for 

Debt service 1,258,247 1,258,247 
Other 93,530 93,530 

Unrestricted 3,621,962 {865,777� 2,756,185 
Total net position 11,613,299 15,264,836 26,878,135 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 17,046,889 $ 27,254,032 $ 44,300,921 

See notes to financial statements. 
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City of Elko New Market 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to 

the Statement of Net Position -Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2018 

Total fund balances - governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds. 

Cost of capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in 
the current period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds. 
long-term liabilities at year-end consist of: 

Bond principal payable 
Unamortized bond premium 
Compensated absences payable 

Delinquent receivables will be collected in subsequent years, but are 
not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures 
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 

Property taxes 
Special assessments 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Deferred special assessments 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are 
created as a result of various differences related to pensions that are 
not recognized in the governmental funds. 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 

Net pension liability 

Fire relief association net pension asset created through contributions 
to a defined benefit pension plan which is not recognized in the 
governmental funds. 

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until 
due and payable. 

Total net position - governmental activities 

See notes to financial statements. 

$ 4,131,089 

15,779,591 
(5,342,901) 

(3,738,238) 
(58,892) 
(55,476) 

11,435 
1,357 

1,026,501 

(728,168) 
745,736 

(645,446) 

529,649 

(42,938) 

$ 11,613,299 
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City of Elko New Market 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to 

the Statement of Activities - Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 

are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 

in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 

their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

this is the amount of capital outlays in the current period. 

Capital outlays 

Depreciation expense 

Net capital asset disposal 

Compensated absences are recognized as paid in the governmental funds 

but recognized as the expense is incurred in the Statement of Activities. 

Principal payments on long-term debt are recognized as expenditures in the 

governmental funds but have no effect on net position in the Statement of Activities. 

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the 

amount reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized 

as an expenditure in the funds when it is due and thus requires use of current 

financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, interest expense 

is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. 

Governmental funds recognized pension contributions as expenditures at the time 

of payment whereas the Statement of Activities factors in items related to 

pensions on a full accrual perspective. 

Pension expense 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 

resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Property taxes delinquent 

Special assessments deferred and delinquent 

Change in net position - governmental activities 

See notes to financial statements. 

$ 125,395 

319,971 

(601,543) 

(26,470) 

24,940 

649,683 

7,614 

(117,684) 

(5,638) 

(200,076) 

$ 176,192 
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City of Elko New Market 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - General Fund 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Budgeted Variance 

Amounts with Final 
Original Actual Budget-Over 
and Final Amounts (Under) 

Revenues 

Property taxes $ 1,654,293 $1,660,044 $ 5,751 
Special assessments 6,966 6,966 
Licenses and permits 83,531 141,308 57,777 
Intergovernmental 249,909 300,329 50,420 
Charges for services 129,475 125,487 (3,988) 
Fines and forfeitures 15,000 16,914 1,914 
Investment income 1,500 1,469 (31) 
Contributions and donations 1,000 2,503 1,503 
Other 3,000 (3,000) 

Total revenues 2,137,708 2,255,020 117,312 

Expenditures 

Current 
General government 807,877 749,876 (58,001) 
Public safety 643,062 665,231 22,169 
Public works 334,712 288,743 (45,969) 
Parks and recreation 171,234 153,088 (18,146) 

Capital outlay 
General government 8,300 25,480 17,180 
Public safety 1,500 616 (884) 

Total expenditures 1,966,685 1,883,034 (83,651) 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 171,023 371,986 200,963 

Other Financing Uses 

Transfers out (169,432) (169,432) 

Net change in fund balance $ 1,591 202,554 $ 200,963 

Fund Balance 

Beginning of year 1,278,409 

End of year $ 1,480,963 

See notes to financial statements. 
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City of Elko New Market 

Scott County, Minnesota 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - Fire Department Fund 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Budgeted 
Amounts 
Original Actual 
and Final Amounts 

Revenues 

Property taxes $ 184,151 $ 122,143 
Intergovernmental 45,000 57,247 

Charges for services 213,826 231,182 

Miscellaneous revenues 
Investment income 913 
Contributions and donations 25,000 
Other 6,402 

Total revenues 467,977 417,887 

Expenditures 

Current 
Public safety 323,507 329,182 

Debt service 
Principal 103,995 30,000 
Interest and other charges 12,855 316 

Total expenditures 440,357 359,498 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 27,620 58,389 

Other Financing Uses 

Transfers out (27,620) (241,112) 

Net change in fund balance $ (182,723) 

Fund Balance 

Beginning of year 295,185 

End of year $ 112,462 

See notes to financial statements. 

Variance 
with Final 

Bud�et-Over 

$ (62,008) 
12,247 

17,356 

913 
(25,000) 

6,402 
(50,090) 

5,675 

(73,995) 
(12,539) 
(80,859) 

30,769 

(213,492) 

$ (182,723) 
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City of Elko New Market 
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 

December 31, 2018 

Storm Sewer 
Water (601) Sewer (602) (620) Total

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 78,976 $ $ 156,705 $ 235,681 
Special assessments receivable 

Current 1,268 815 360 2,443 
Delinquent 8,115 6,593 1,131 15,839 
Deferred 89,024 95,018 33,079 217,121 

Accounts receivable 54,545 58,631 17,053 130,229 
Short-term due from other governments 37,740 39,792 11,256 88,788 
Prepaid Expenses 7,532 6,470 1,559 15,561 

Total current assets 277,200 207,319 221,143 705,662 

Noncurrent assets 
Long-term due from other governments 75,480 79,583 22,513 177,576 
Capital assets 

Water main and system 18,787,261 18,787,261 
Sanitary sewer main and system 13,344,964 13,344,964 
Storm sewer system 4,827,079 4,827,079 
Machinery and equipment 54,222 99,479 18,267 171,968 
Construction in progress 87,936 99,444 187,380 

Total capital assets 18,929,419 13,543,887 4,845,346 37,318,652 
Less accumulated depreciation (2,975,666) (6,317,619) (1,330,445) (10,623,730) 

Net capital assets 15,953,753 7,226,268 3,514,901 26,694,922 
Total noncurrent assets 16,029,233 7,305,851 3,537,414 26,872,498 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 30,942 27,233 5,439 63,614 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 16,337,375 $ 7,540,403 $ 3,763,996 $ 27,641,774 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 6,285 $ 22,522 $ 5,391 $ 34,198 
Salaries and benefits payable 5,778 4,733 1,147 11,658 
Interest payable 44,288 13,118 3,311 60,717 
Due to other funds 309,234 309,234 
Interfund loan payable 78,508 78,508 
Due to other governments 120,983 120,983 
Compensated absences - current 7,337 6,451 1,111 14,899 
Bonds payable due within one yeat 114,556 103,586 34,030 252,172 
Loan payable due within one year 10,534 10,534 
PFA notes payable due within one year 499,000 499,000 

Total current liabilities 677,244 591,161 123,498 1,391,903 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Compensated absences 5,275 4,739 1,933 11,947 
Bonds payable 737,911 770,957 195,269 1,704,137 
Loan payable 841,747 841,747 
PF A notes payable 8,109,000 8,109,000 
Net pension liability 124,891 109,921 21,953 256,765 

Total noncurrent liabilities 8,977,077 1,727,364 219,155 10,923,596 
Total liabilities 9,654,321 2,318,525 342,653 12,315,499 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 29,884 26,302 5,253 61,439 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 6,493,286 6,351,725 3,285,602 16,130,613 
Unrestricted 159,884 (1,156,149} 130,488 (865,777) 

Total net position 6,653,170 5,195,576 3,416,090 15,264,836 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position $ 16,337,375 $ 7,540,403 $ 3,763,996 $ 27,641,774 

See notes to financial statements. 
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City of Elko New Market 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 

in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Storm Sewer 
Water(601) Sewer (602) (620) Total

Operating Revenues 

Charges for services $ 1,101,530 $ 827,069 $ 192,106 $ 2,120,705 
Permits, hookup fees, and penalties 156,216 283,957 59,513 499,686 
Miscellaneous operating revenues 6,340 36 18,659 25,035 

Total operating revenues 1,264,086 1,111,062 270,278 2,645,426 

Operating Expenses 

Wages and salaries 171,349 149,705 31,440 352,494 
Employee benefits 60,769 52,787 11,147 124,703 
Materials and supplies 30,517 12,109 8,144 50,770 
Repairs and maintenance 52,657 36,253 6,645 95,555 
Professional services 57,890 50,409 26,726 135,025 
Insurance 8,528 7,418 1,343 17,289 
Utilities 74,914 13,605 420 88,939 
Depreciation 436,333 247,300 100,005 783,638 
Bad debt expense 5,943 5,943 11,886 
Small tools 9,007 3,916 649 13,572 
Miscellaneous 24,274 801,331 9,527 835,132 

Total operating expenses 932,181 1,380,776 196,046 2,509,003 

Operating income (loss) 331,905 (269,714) 74,232 136,423 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Investment income 502 360 862 
Special assessments (1,169) (366) (1,535)
Interest expense (109,101) (20,422) (5,731) (135,254)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (109,768) (20,422) (5,737) (135,927)

Change in net position 222,137 (290,136) 68,495 496 

Net Position 

Beginning of year 6,431,033 5,485,712 3,347,595 15,264,340 

End of year $ 6,653,170 $ 5,195,576 $ 3,416,090 $ 15,264,836 

See notes to financial statements. 
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City of Elko New Market 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Storm Sewer 
Water(601) Sewer (602) (620) Total

Cash Flows - Operating Activities 

Receipts from customers and users $ 1,432,469 $ 1,101,346 $ 276,596 $ 2,810,411 
Payments to suppliers (279,942) (1,172,977) (60,636) (1,513,555) 
Payments to employees {229,838} {202,947} {42,651} {475,436} 

Net cash flows - operating activities 922,689 {274,578} 173,309 821,420 

Cash Flows - Noncapital Financing 

Activities 

Payments to/from other funds for interfund borrowing {99,114} 222,334 04,839} 108,381 

Cash Flows - Capital and Related 

Financing Activities 

Principal paid on debt (630,535) 73,245 (73,080) (630,370) 
Interest paid on debt {114,566} {21,001} {8,188} 043,755} 

Net cash flows - capital and related 
Financing activities {745,101} 52,244 {81,268} {774,125} 

Cash Flows - Investing Activities 

Interest and dividends received 502 360 862 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 78,976 77,562 156,538 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

January 1 79,143 79,143 

December31 $ 78,976 $ $ 156,705 $ 235,681 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss 

to Net Cash Flows - Operating Activities 

Operating loss $ 331,905 $ (269,714) $ 74,232 $ 136,423 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 
To net cash flows - operating activities 

Miscellaneous revenue (1,169) (366) (1,535)
Depreciation expense 436,333 247,300 100,005 783,638
Pension related activity 7,917 5,278 258 13,453
Special assessments receivable (5,037) (3,228) 4,494 (3,771) 
Accounts receivable 11,533 (6,488) 2,190 7,235 
Due from other governments 163,056 163,056 
Prepaid items (3,290) (2,788) (1,125) (7,203) 
Accounts payable (11,059) (4,253) (5,611) (20,923) 
Due to other governmental units (1,863) (234,952) (446) (237,261)
Salaries payable (1,753) (2,004) (201) (3,958)
Compensated absences payable {3,884} {3,729} {121} {7,734}

Total adjustments 590,784 {4,864} 99,077 684,997

Net cash flows - operating activities $ 922,689 $ (274,578) $ 173,309 $ 821,420

See notes to financial statements. 
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Assets 

Cash and investments 
Other receivables 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

City of Elko New Market 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

December 31, 2018 

See notes to financial statements. 

Agency Fund 
Developer 

Escrow 

(400) 

$ 124,278 
5,473 

$ 129,751 

$ 129,751 
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City of Elko New Market 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

POLICE AND FIRE FUND (CONTINUED) 

2017 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

• Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience study.
The net effect is proposed rates that average 0.34% lower than the previous rates.

• Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements.
• The CSA load was 30% for vested and non-vested deferred members. The CSA has been

changed to 33% for vested members and 2% for non-vested members.
• The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational

table to the RP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year of 2006), with male rates adjusted
by a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-
2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 disabled
mortality table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees.

• Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3% for the first three years of service. Rates
beyond the select period of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations
overall.

• Assumed percentage of married female members was decreased from 65% to 60%.
• Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members (wives

assumed to be 3 years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be 4 years older) to
the assumption that males are 2 years older than females.

• The assumed percentage of female members electing Joint and Survivor annuities was increased.
• The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1 % for all years to 1 % per

year through 2064 and 2.5% thereafter.

2016 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

• The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2037
and 2.5% thereafter to 1.0% per year for all future years.

• The assumed investment return was changed from 7 .9% to 7 .5%. The single discount rate
changed from 7.9% to 5.6%.

• The assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25% to
3.25% for payroll growth and 2.50% for inflation.

2015 Changes 
Changes in Plan Provisions 

• The post-retirement benefit increase to be paid after attainment of the 90% funding threshold
was changed, from inflation up to 2.5%, to a fixed rate of 2.5%.

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
• The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2030

and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year through 2037 and 2.5% per year thereafter.
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PROPOSAL SALE DATE: May 14, 2020 

________________________________ Phone:  651-223-3000 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. Fax:  651-223-3046 

Email:  bond_services@bakertilly.com 

 
City of Elko New Market, Minnesota 

$4,965,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 
 
For the Bonds of this Issue which shall mature and bear interest at the respective annual rates, as follow, we offer a price of 
$_________________ (which may not be less than $4,890,525) plus accrued interest, if any, to the date of delivery. 
 

 
Year 

Interest 
Rate (%) 

 
Yield (%) 

Dollar 
Price 

  
Year 

Interest 
Rate (%) 

 
Yield (%) 

Dollar 
Price 

2021  %  %  %  2031  %  %  % 

2022  %  %  %  2032  %  %  % 

2023  %  %  %  2033  %  %  % 

2024  %  %  %  2034  %  %  % 

2025  %  %  %  2035  %  %  % 

2026  %  %  %  2036  %  %  % 

2027  %  %  %  2037  %  %  % 

2028  %  %  %  2038  %  %  % 

2029  %  %  %  2039  %  %  % 

2030  %  %  %  2040  %  %  % 

 
Designation of Term Maturities 

 
 Years of Term Maturities     
      
    
In making this offer on the sale date of May 14, 2020 we accept all of the terms and conditions of the Terms of Proposal published in the 

Preliminary Official Statement dated May 1, 2020 including the City’s right to modify the principal amount of the Bonds.  (See “Terms of 

Proposal” herein.)  In the event of failure to deliver these Bonds in accordance with said Terms of Proposal, we reserve the right to withdraw 

our offer, whereupon the deposit accompanying it will be immediately returned.  All blank spaces of this offer are intentional and are not 

to be construed as an omission. 
 
By submitting this proposal, we confirm that we have an established industry reputation for underwriting municipal bonds such as the 

Bonds.   
 
Not as a part of our offer, the above quoted prices being controlling, but only as an aid for the verification of the offer, we have made the 

following computations: 
 
NET INTEREST COST: $____________________________ 
 
TRUE INTEREST RATE: ______________ % 
 
The Bidder  will not   will purchase municipal bond insurance from                                    . 
 
Account Members 

______________________________ 

Account Manager 
 

By:  ___________________________ 
 

Phone:  ________________________ 
 ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................  

The foregoing proposal has been accepted by the City. 

 
Attest:  _______________________________    Date:  ________________________________ 

 
 ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................  

mailto:bond_services@bakertilly.com
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Summary:

Elko New Market, Minnesota; General Obligation

Credit Profile

US$4.965 mil GO bnds ser 2020A due 08/01/2040

Long Term Rating AA+/Stable New

Elko New Market GO bnds ser 2015A due 02/01/2026

Long Term Rating AA+/Stable Affirmed

Elko New Market GO rfdg bnds ser 2015B due 02/01/2024

Long Term Rating AA+/Stable Affirmed

Elko New Market GO

Long Term Rating AA+/Stable Affirmed

Rating Action

S&P Global Ratings assigned its 'AA+' long-term rating to Elko New Market, Minn.'s general obligation (GO) bonds,

series 2020A. At the same time, we affirmed our 'AA+' long-term rating on the city's GO debt outstanding. The outlook

is stable.

Proceeds of the bonds will be used to finance various capital improvements, street reconstruction and improvements,

sewer improvements, and the purchase of equipment. Securing the bonds is the city's full faith, credit, and unlimited

taxing power. In addition, the city pledges special assessments and utility revenues for portions of the bonds. However,

we rate to the GO pledge.

Credit overview

The 'AA+' rating reflects the city's very strong economy and reserves. The city of Elko New Market is located near the

Minneapolis-St. Paul metropolitan statistical area (MSA), providing residents with additional employment

opportunities and contributing to the city's strong residential development in recent years. Additionally, the city's

financial performance over the last few years has contributed to consistently better-than-budgeted results and

sustained very strong reserves. While the COVID-19 pandemic and the recession have not yet resulted in a significant

impact on the city's performance, we believe pressures may materialize if the effects of the recession are prolonged.

However, because of the city's very strong reserves, as well as its reliance on property tax-based revenues, we believe

it is well-situated to maintain flexibility in costs and absorb potential revenue losses from the pandemic and the

recession.

The rating further reflects our view of Elko New Market's:

• Strong economy, with access to a broad and diverse MSA;

• Strong management, with good financial policies and practices under our Financial Management Assessment (FMA)

methodology;
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• Strong budgetary performance, with operating surpluses in the general fund and at the total governmental fund level

in fiscal 2018;

• Very strong budgetary flexibility, with a high available fund balance in fiscal 2018 of 170% of operating

expenditures;

• Very strong liquidity, with total government available cash at 108.5% of total governmental fund expenditures and

5.1x governmental debt service, and access to external liquidity we consider strong;

• Weak debt and contingent liability profile, with debt service carrying charges at 21.2% of expenditures and net

direct debt that is 299.2% of total governmental fund revenue, but rapid amortization, with 67.5% of debt scheduled

to be retired in 10 years; and

• Strong institutional framework score.

Stable Outlook

Downside scenario

If the city's financial performance were to worsen, such that reserves were no longer comparable with those of

similarly rated peers, we could lower the rating.

Upside scenario

If the city's economic indicators were to improve, demonstrated by significantly higher income and market value

indicators, we could raise the rating.

Credit Opinion

Strong economy

We consider Elko New Market's economy strong. The city, with an estimated population of 4,935, is located in Scott

County in the Minneapolis-St. Paul-Bloomington, MN-WI MSA, which we consider to be broad and diverse. The city

has a projected per capita effective buying income of 118% of the national level and per capita market value of

$96,239. Overall, the city's market value grew by 5.5% over the past year, to $474.9 million in 2019. The county

unemployment rate was 2.5% in 2018.

Elko New Market is located approximately 30 miles south of the Minneapolis-St. Paul metropolitan area, in Scott

County. Serving primarily as a bedroom community for the larger metropolitan area, 92.6% of the tax base is

residential. Strong housing demand in the Twin Cities area has sustained residential development in the city of Elko

New Market. Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, officials have indicated that additional developments are currently

seeking city approval.

Due to the composition of the tax base, we believe the city is somewhat mitigated from immediate risks related to

COVID-19 and the recession. However, because of the nature of the situation, we understand that potential pressures

may materialize in the medium term.
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Strong management

We view the city's management as strong, with good financial policies and practices under our FMA methodology,

indicating financial practices exist in most areas, but that governance officials might not formalize or monitor all of

them on a regular basis.

Management incorporates five years of historical data and available outside sources when preparing budgetary

forecasts. Budget-to-actual reports are shared with the council on a quarterly basis. The city projects future operational

revenues and expenditures, incorporated in its budget. The city's current capital improvement plan, adopted in 2019,

looks out five years but is not updated annually. The city also maintains formal investment management and debt

management policies. Investment holdings and earnings are reported quarterly. Finally, the city also maintains a

formal reserve policy of 50% of current-year operating expenditures.

Strong budgetary performance

Elko New Market's budgetary performance is strong, in our opinion. The city had operating surpluses of 9.9% of

expenditures in the general fund and of 3.1% across all governmental funds in fiscal 2018.

We adjusted the city's general fund expenditures to account for routine transfers out to its debt service and capital

projects funds.

General fund revenues for fiscal years 2017 and 2018 came in consistently better than budgeted as a result of

greater-than-anticipated revenues, largely related to building permits tied to residential development. General fund

expenditures were notably less in fiscal 2017, attributable to savings in building and consulting costs. In fiscal 2018,

expenditures were under budget as a result of conservative results across departments.

According to the city's latest fiscal 2019 estimates, general fund results were better than budgeted, owing in part to a

number of unfilled staff positions and reduced expenditures on consultant services.

The city is budgeting for a break-even result in fiscal 2020, which includes recurring transfers. While no adjustments

have been made at this time in relation to COVID-19 and the recession, officials indicate that they are closely

monitoring the situation. The city budgets for unforeseen situations and maintains flexibility in cutting costs by

deferring maintenance expenses, should revenues fall.

The COVID-19 pandemic and ensuing recession have, as of yet, had minimal impact on the city, primarily because of

its residential nature. Despite potential talks on property tax deferrals at the county level, management projects that

escrowed payments will be collected on time and that the city maintains sufficient liquidity to offset immediate

pressures.

The city's general fund revenues primarily come from property taxes (73.6%), followed by intergovernmental revenues

(13.3%) and licenses and permits (6.3%).

Despite conservative budgeting and the current minimal impact from COVID-19 and the recession, we believe that

performance volatility because of uncertainty regarding intergovernmental and other revenues, could materialize in the

medium term, which could affect the city's budget.
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Very strong budgetary flexibility

Elko New Market's budgetary flexibility is very strong, in our view, with a high available fund balance in fiscal 2018 of

170% of operating expenditures, or $3.5 million. We expect the available fund balance to remain above 75% of

expenditures for the current and next fiscal years, which we view as a positive credit factor. The available fund balance

includes $1.5 million (71.4% of expenditures) in the general fund and $2.0 million (98% of expenditures) that is outside

the general fund but legally available for operations.

The city has additional, legally available reserves in a number of funds, including capital projects, general capital

projects, and capital outlay. Officials indicate they do not plan on drawing down general fund reserves in the next few

years, though they do expect to fund some capital projects with the additional available reserves. Given the city's

budgeted break-even result for fiscal 2020, we expect minor changes in its fund balance. Should the city experience

unforeseen pressure in the form of reduced revenues or increased costs from the recession, we believe reserves

provide the city with additional flexibility to absorb costs or revenue losses.

Very strong liquidity

In our opinion, Elko New Market's liquidity is very strong, with total government available cash at 108.5% of total

governmental fund expenditures and 5.1x governmental debt service in 2018. In our view, the city has strong access to

external liquidity, if necessary.

The city exhibits strong access to external sources of liquidity if needed, demonstrated by its debt issuance over the

past years. Because of the city's liquidity position, we believe it is well-situated to manage short-term funding

pressures, should the city's finances be affected by potential prolonged effects from the recession. A portion of the

city's cash is held in money market funds, which do not represent an aggressive use of investments.

Weak debt and contingent liability profile

In our view, Elko New Market's debt and contingent liability profile is weak. Total governmental fund debt service is

21.2% of total governmental fund expenditures and net direct debt is 299.2% of total governmental fund revenue.

Approximately 67.5% of the direct debt is scheduled to be repaid within 10 years, which is in our view a positive credit

factor.

We note that a portion of the city's direct debt burden is supported by non-tax sources, such as special assessments

and utility revenues. The city does not use alternative financing sources, and officials indicate that they do not have

additional debt plans in the next two years.

Elko New Market's pension contributions totaled 3.1% of total governmental fund expenditures in 2018. The city made

206% of its annual required pension contribution in 2018.

Elko New Market's combined required pension and actual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) contributions totaled

3.1% of total governmental fund expenditures in 2018. That amount represented required contributions to pension

obligations. The city made its full annual required pension contribution in 2018.

• We do not believe that pension and OPEB liabilities represent a medium-term credit pressure, as contributions are

only a modest share of the budget and we believe the city has the capacity to absorb higher costs without pressuring

operations.
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• The city's two largest multiple-employer, defined-benefit pension plans have seen improvements in funded status in

recent years, though plan statutory contributions have regularly fallen short of actuarial recommendations. Along

with certain plan-specific actuarial assumptions and methods, this introduces some long-term risk of funding

volatility and cost acceleration.

• The city charges actual age-rated premium costs to current employees and retired employees, resulting in no

implicit rate subsidy obligation. No other benefits offered by the city qualify as OPEB.

The city participates in the following defined-benefit plans:

• Minnesota General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF): 80.2% funded (as of June 30, 2019), with a city

proportionate share of the plan's net pension liability that we estimate at $571,000;

• Minnesota Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF): 89.3% funded (June 30, 2019), with a proportionate share of $334,000;

and

• A single-employer Volunteer Fire Fighter's Relief Association plan, with a net asset of approximately $530,000 (as of

Dec. 31, 2018).

The city's combined pension and OPEB contributions were 3.1% of governmental fund expenditures in fiscal 2018.

Total contributions to GERF and PEPFF were 89.02% and 93.72%, respectively, of our minimum funding progress

metric in 2019 and were just above static funding in both cases. Annual contributions are based on a statutory formula

that has typically produced contributions less than the actuarially determined contribution for each plan, which we

think increases risk of underfunding over time if future funding shortfalls are not met with offsetting adjustments by the

state legislature. Other key risks include a 7.5% investment rate of return assumption (for both plans) that indicates

some exposure to cost acceleration due to market volatility, and an amortization method that significantly defers

contributions into the future through a lengthy, closed amortization period based on a level 3.25% payroll growth

assumption. Regardless, costs remain only a modest share of total spending and, in our view, are unlikely to pressure

the city's medium-term operational health.

Strong institutional framework

The institutional framework score for Minnesota cities with a population greater than 2,500 is strong.

Related Research

• S&P Public Finance Local GO Criteria: How We Adjust Data For Analytic Consistency, Sept. 12, 2013

• Criteria Guidance: Assessing U.S. Public Finance Pension And Other Postemployment Obligations For GO Debt,

Local Government GO Ratings, And State Ratings, Oct. 7, 2019

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed

to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for

further information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating

action can be found on S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in the left column.
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 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Public Works Report – April 2020 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Corey Schweich, Public Works Superintendent 
REQUESTED ACTION: Information Only 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND: 
Staff is presenting a written report for Public Works activities in April. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

• Staff had 1 Snow & Ice Control events in April. Drifting occurred in some areas and salt 
was applied to the slippery spots. 

• Staff assisted Scott County with a plugged culvert outside of town. 
• Staff has finished citywide hydrant flushing. It should be noted that the Public Works 

Department flushes every hydrant in the spring and in the fall. Hydrant flushing is 
performed for multiple reasons, but primarily to ensure that the hydrants are operating 
properly. Staff will document any issues, and repairs will be completed at a later date. 
Before the water treatment facility was constructed, Staff would flush hydrants almost 
every month to remove the iron and manganese buildup in the water mains. 

• Staff has repaired all sod damage caused by snowplowing activities this winter. As a 
result of the warmer temperatures and the ground not being frozen during the first few 
snowfalls there is more damage this year than previous years. Staff hydro seeded and 
mulched the damaged areas. 

• The Department has started to switch over all of the winter equipment to summer 
operations. Staff will start mowing and trimming in May. 

• Staff has continued to check and clean storm structures. Many times pond inlets and 
outlets can get plugged up with garbage, leaves, sticks, logs, plastic bags and other 
debris. 

• All City parks and property have been fertilized. Staff will spray herbicide early next in 
May. 

• Staff replaced the dynamic speed signs located on CSAH 2. The old signs had a 
number of lights that were no longer working. 

• The water has been turned on in the shelter at Wagner Park. 
• Staff removed the spring road restriction signs on all of the city streets entering the 

community.  
• The Public Works Department started to grade the trail connection between Windrose 

and Woodcrest. At this point the trail is gravel and usable. The trail will be paved at a 
later date in conjunction with another trail project to save on costs. 

• Staff borrowed a grader from the County and graded all of the gravel roads. They will 
have to be graded again before dust control can be applied. 

• Due to COVID-19, the Department has taken special precautions while working. Staff 
has been advised to follow all of the social distancing guidelines while working. All 
meter checks have been cancelled for the foreseeable future as we are able to read 
meters from a vehicle. Staff will have limited contact with residents unless it is an 
emergency.  

• Superintendent Schweich will continue to train newer Staff how to run and operate the 
Water Treatment Facility. 

• Staff used a sod cutter to remove the lip on the edge of the ball fields at Wagner Park. 
• Due to COVID-19 there was no training with the regional safety group made up of Elko 

New Market, Lakeville, and Farmington. Staff will continue to attend monthly safety 
trainings through this group when restrictions are lifted. 

• Superintendent Schweich attended project team meetings with the architects that have 
been contracted to perform the design work associated with the Police Department 
renovation. There will be more meetings to attend in the coming months. 



• The Department has been extremely busy dealing with various minor breakdowns within 
the Department’s fleet. Joe, the Mechanic, continues to do an excellent job juggling 
projects, depending on equipment needs. 



PHOTO 
ALBUM 
COREY SCHWEICH 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT 

















 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Police Activity- April, 2020 
MEETING DATE: May 14, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Brady Juell, Chief of Police 
REQUESTED ACTION: Information Only 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND: 
Staff is presenting a written report to the City Council reporting on Police Department activities 
for the past month. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
ATV/GOLF CART INFORMATION 
As of the writing of this memo, over 101permits have been issued for ATV/Golf Carts/UTV. 
The breakdown to this point is 40 ATV, 45 Golf Cart, & 16 UTV.  Permits applications continue 
to roll in and by the reading of this, over 110 will be issued.   
 
The Police Department either through proactive patrol or call in complaints has had 9 
ATV/GC/UTV related incidents.  Three of them were juvenile’s on Golf Carts and they were 
followed home and their parents advised.  Officers have witnessed or have received 2 
complaints of reckless ATV use in the city but were unable to locate the offenders.   
 
Council will notice in the stats for this month that traffic stops are down 60%.  This is due to the 
Covid-19 Pandemic.  Officers at the start of the Pandemic state wide were encouraged to limit 
exposure to only necessary emergent contacts.  Officers were encouraged to still be highly 
visible, but only stop the most serious offenses.  After about two weeks and the extent of our 
local contagion was learned, we started to ramp back up traffic enforcement.  Statistics state 
wide has indicated a huge spike in traffic related accidents and death believed to be brought 
on by the advertisement in the media of the reduction in enforcement.  Officers have been 
advised to increase visibility in our area and use precautions when performing traffic stops.   
 
Officer Brentan Carkhuff has passed his first of three phases of training.  He is now on Phase 
Two with Ofc Gareis.  Ofc Carkhuff continues to impress and is right on his training schedule, 
which may end in July.  Ofc Carkhuff will assume the night shift slot of the patrol schedule 
once field training is complete.   
 
Chief Juell has completed his goal of securing all essential and non-essential staff 
reusable/cleanable PPE.  The Police Department and Fire Department all have re-
useable/cleanable Face Shields, Face masks, Gloves, and Gowns.   This was sourced through 
many different avenues and partnerships and donations from companies such as RZ Mask out 
of Burnsville.  We all feel very fortunate to be in this position when so many others are not.   
 
The Police Department continues on its current Covid protocols for responding to medicals and 
calls.  A decision will be made at a later and appropriate time to resume the “New Normal” 
operations and guidelines.   
 
The Police Department has not taken any new calls from citizens with concerns since the 
opening up of the Public Play Grounds in the parks.  General Covid related calls have gone 
almost completely away in the last two weeks.   
 
Due to the Covid situation, Chief Juell has done several private home visits with children and 
their families to celebrate their birthdays.  With parties all but being eliminated, this is providing 
a little excitement from the children to make the day a little brighter.  The squad car is 
disinfected before and after the visits and the parents couldn’t be happier to have that 
interaction take place when so much has been eliminated.   
 



 
 

 



STATISTICAL INFORMATION – April, 2020 
0 Burglary 
2 Fire Calls 
25 Ordinance reports 
0 Property Damage 
2 Motor vehicle crash/Accident 
2 Noise/nuisance complaints 
3 Public Assists 
2 Motorist Assist 
6 Community Engagement   
0 Hazards 
1 DWI 
23 Administration (Rec. Fire Permits, Records checks, etc.) 
11 Suspicious persons/vehicles/activities 
0 Crimes against family 
2 Juvenile Complaints 
0 Theft 
1 Threats 
11 Medicals 
3 Alarms 
3 Lock outs 
15 Assists to other agencies (Agency Assists) 
285 Extra Patrols 
1 Traffic complaints 
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40 Traffic Stops were conducted in March, 2020. 24 verbal and written warnings issued and 15 
citations issued for speed, expired registration, no proof of citations insurance/no insurance, careless 
driving, and driving after revocation. 0 Winter Parking Citations.1 DWI. (Traffic stops, warnings 
and citations will not equal out due to some violations a party is warned for one violation and 
cited for another.) 
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April 28, 2020 
Elko New Market Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

MINUTES 
CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
April 28, 2020 

7:00 PM 
 

At the start of the meeting, Community Development Specialist Christianson read the 
following statement into the record: The City has determined it is not practical or prudent to 
conduct an in-person Planning Commission meeting due to the local state of emergency and social 
distancing guidelines implemented by Governor Walz. Accordingly, this meeting will be an 
electronic meeting and conducted under Minnesota Statutes section 13D.021. To the extent practical, 
members of the public may attend the meeting by utilizing the published link and call in information.   
 
Christianson also stated that due to the electronic meeting format, the meeting would be largely led 
by City staff, as opposed to being led by the Chair, which is typical.  She read allowed the meeting 
protocol as follows: 
 
 The host will keep all participants muted until the public hearings are opened. 
 The Planning Commission will not be muted. 
 Staff will specifically solicit question or comments from the Commission and public at various 

points during each item. Please hold questions and comments until requested. 
 If you wish to speak, please “Raise Your Hand” virtually. 
 Staff will individually recognize those wishing to speak, and will invite you to speak and unmute 

your microphone. If you are not being recognized, provide an obvious visual indicator such as 
raising your hand or waving at the camera. Or, send an email to the Community Development 
Specialist at rchristianson@ci.enm.mn.us 

 Your microphone will be re-muted after you have spoken. 
 All votes will be by roll, called by Staff. 
 
She explained for audience members participating in the meeting how to “raise their hand” to 
participate in the meeting on a PC, on a phone or tablet, or if one dialed in by phone.  Introductions 
of the City’s Planning Commission, and City staff were made. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Commissioner Smith called the meeting of the Elko New Market Planning Commission to 
order at 7:08 p.m. 

 
Commission members present: Smith, Humphrey, Kruckman, Hanson, Schuenke, and   

Ex-officio member Anderson 
 

Members absent and excused: None  
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Tom Terry, Community 

Development Specialist Renee Christianson, Planner 
Haley Sevening, City Engineer Rich Revering 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
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Chairman Smith led the Planning Commission in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
A motion was made by Kruckman and seconded by Humphrey to approve the agenda as 
submitted.  Motion carried: (5-0). 

 
4. APPOINTMENT OF CHIAR AND VICE-CHAIR 

 
Christianson noted that the City Code requires that a Chair and Vice-Chair be appointed 
annually at the regular April meeting of the Planning Commission.  Commissioners 
Humphrey and Kruckman both expressed an interest in being Chair of the Planning 
Commission for the upcoming year.  It was moved by Hanson and seconded by Schuenke to 
appoint Kruckman as Chair for the upcoming year.   
 
By Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Hanson - Aye 
Commissioner Humphrey – Nay 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith - Nay 

Motion carried: (3-2)     
 
It was moved by Kruckman and seconded by Smith to appoint Humphrey as Vice-Chair for 
the upcoming year. 
 
By Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Hanson - Aye 
Commissioner Humphrey – Aye 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith - Aye 

Motion carried: (5-0) 
   

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 

 
6. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  

A. Christianson introduced newly appointed Commissioner Bryce Schuenke who has been 
appointed by the City Council to a three-year term on the Commission.  Schuenke also 
introduced himself and noted that he worked as a part-time police officer for the City of 
Elko New Market from 2011 to 2014.  He spent five years in law enforcement, three 
years in management at Target, and is now a real estate agent with ReMax Advantage 
Plus.  He was welcomed to the Commission. 
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7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. It was moved by Kruckman and seconded by Hanson to approve the minutes of the 
January 22, 2020 meeting as submitted. 
 
By Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Hanson - Aye 
Commissioner Humphrey – Aye 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith - Aye 

Motion carried: (5-0) 
  

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Consider Request for Rezoning and Preliminary Plat Approval of Ridgeview 
Estates – Timbercrest, LLC, applicant 
 

Christianson presented the agenda item, which was a request for rezoning and preliminary 
plat approval of Ridgeview Estates, containing 29 lots on 9.75 gross acres. Christianson 
provided a history of the property, including previous concept plans reviewed by the City, 
and explained that the property was annexed into the City in 2018 when a previous 
developer was planning to develop the site.  Christianson reviewed the 2030 Comprehensive 
Plan and explained that the property is guided to a Residential Mixed Use land use 
designation.  She explained the purpose of the Residential Mixed Use land use category, to 
provide for lifecycle and affordable housing located near activity centers and transportation 
corridors, with 75% of the land area to be single-family detached homes, and 25% of the 
land area to be attached and multi-family housing.  She reviewed the proposed development 
density of 3.23 units per net acre which is lower than the recommended density, but because 
other areas have developed at higher densities, the density has balanced throughout the 
Residential Mixed Use land use category.  She stated that single-family development being 
proposed on the site meets the intent of the guided land use for the area. 
 
She explained that Block 1 is being proposed as R2 zoning and Blocks 2 & 3 are being 
proposed as R3 zoning.  Christianson stated that all proposed lots meet the minimum size 
and width requirements for the respective zoning districts, and the applicant has 
demonstrated that the building pads on the proposed lots can meet the minimum front, side, 
rear and wetland setback requirements.  She explained that the applicant was asked to 
provide additional information regarding the building pad on proposed Lot 4 Block 3 to 
ensure a home can be constructed within setbacks.  This information has been provided to 
the satisfaction of City staff. 
 
Christianson stated that the developer has indicated that the homes within the development 
will range from approximately 1,300 to 2,500 square feet and he is aiming for a mid-
$300,000 price range.  It was noted that there will be multiple builders within the 
development.  Sixteen of the lots have been designed for walk-out homes, six for look-out 
homes, and six for full-basement homes.  Christianson also reviewed the market values of 
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the homes in the adjacent Whispering Creek development, stating that based on the assessed 
value, the average market value is $242,367 and the median market value is $239,500. 
 
Reviewed in detail were the landscaping requirements for the development and tree 
preservation requirements.  Christianson explained that the proposed development meets the 
tree preservation requirements, but that the landscape plan must be amended to meet the 
requirement that two or more rows of landscape screening be required for the lots adjacent 
to CSAH 2. 
 
Easement are being proposed as required by City Code.  It was noted that a conservation 
easement is required for the wetland buffer area in Block 3, and a trail easement is being 
requested by the Parks Commission between Lots 2 & 3 Block 1. 
 
Christianson gave an overview of the proposed water, sanitary sewer, and stormsewer 
infrastructure within the development, and reviewed the drainage areas pre and post 
development.  She noted that the City is aware of concerns regarding drainage from the 
subject property inundating back yards in the Whispering Creek development, and that the 
grading plan proposes to divert all of this drainage into a swale which will lead to a 
stormwater pond.  The wetland on the south side of the property was reviewed, noting that 
the wetland and required 40’ buffer area will be protected by combination of an outlot and 
conservation easement which will be dedicated to the City. 
 
Christianson reviewed transportation and access issues, stating that the existing residential 
driveway in to the site must be removed, and that Scott County will not allow access to the 
development from CSAH 2 due to their adopted access spacing requirements.  Access will 
be provided by the extension of the existing Park Street.  All streets in the development will 
be 28’ in width with B618 curbing and a temporary cul-de-sac is required at the west end of 
proposed Street A.  
 
The final item reviewed was the location of proposed parks and trails within and 
surrounding the development.  Christianson reviewed the Comprehensive Park and Trail 
Plan adopted by the City, and stated that because of the close proximity of Wagner Park, the 
Parks Commission is recommending that the City accept cash-in-lieu of land dedication.  
The location of proposed sidewalks and future trails were also reviewed. 
 
Christianson stated that following a detailed review of the proposed plans and adopted City 
ordinances, staff is supporting the request for rezoning and preliminary plat approval of the 
property.  Also reviewed were 14 conditions being recommended by staff.  She explained 
that a public hearing would be opened and explained the process for public comment and 
participation based on the virtual meeting format.  Christianson then opened the public 
hearing at 8:01 p.m.  She stated that the City had received formal comments via email prior 
to the meeting.  All comments received by 4:30 p.m. on April 28, 2020 were read into the 
record as follows: 
 

Jason Grimm, 346 Wagner Way, submitted the following email comments: In 
regards to the public hearing tomorrow evening surrounding the rezoning of #R1-
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2020 and Request for Preliminary Plat approval, I would like a few questions 
answered or addressed during this meeting.  Some Questions I currently have are: 
 Are there currently lot size requirements for new builds?  Have there been 

changes in the past to this?  These lot sizes are considerably smaller to most in 
Elko New Market and certainly smaller than the neighboring development and 
every other development in the past 20 years.  Why is this different now?  
Appears they are really trying to cram more homes into this area than perhaps 
will allow to stay uniform with the rest of the city. 

 What type of homes are proposed for these lots?  Due to the small size of the lots 
how close are these home going to be together?  How Close Easements to front 
and rear of property as well?  How tall are the proposed structures for these 
properties?  Any plans and/or examples available? 

 Are there any proposed Drainage plans for the proposed plan.  What is the plan 
with addressing water run off? 

 Access to neighborhood,  Appears there is only currently One access point into 
this area?  Assuming Access from Cty rd. 2 is not permitted by county, what is 
the plan for traffic?  What is the plan for existing roads for access as they are 
already in need of repair?  Plans for repair after developed?  For EMS safety 
(Fire) is there requirements for turnaround or exit? 

 
Jason & Pat Lamont, 245 Park Street, submitted the following email comments:  
 
 We can’t make out exactly where the outlet or outlets are going to be in the 

proposed development plan that was sent to us.  We believe it is Park St.  If that 
is the case, we have concerns about the additional traffic coming through a 
development that is home to many young children so this creates a safety issue 
for Wagner Park.  

 Describe what Residential (R2) and Medium Density Residential (R3) means? 
 Also, how will this affect our taxes?  Will there be additional police needed?  

Will sidewalks be needed as a safety for the kids?   Where is the construction 
road going to be?  We sure do not want it on Park St so that has to be replaced on 
our expense.  We also do not want to pay for sidewalks that we have done fine 
without.  The people making money off of this development should be 
responsible for putting money into an escrow account to cover things as 
mentioned. 

 Why the rush?  Something this important to your current residents should be 
dealt with on a face to face meeting not virtually. 

 In preparing for this virtual meeting, how many residents of the Wagner First 
Addition were copied the documents pertaining to the Notice of the Public 
Hearing for Ridgeview Estates?  There seems to be confusion about this matter. 

 
Doyle & Katie Hanson, 361 Park Street, submitted the following email comments:   
 
 While we learn more about the proposed new development, will citizens be able 

to ask questions by computer or phone during the meeting?  
 Why the closure of the access to Hwy 2 when there is already an access point 

there? I saw on a Facebook message reply from the city that the county only 
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allows one local street access per quarter mile, but heading east into town on Hwy 
2 from Dakota Ave., Todd St. is less than a quarter mile. 

 How many additional vehicles per day does the city expect will be traveling on 
Park St. and Dakota Ave. during construction and when the development is 
complete and new residents have moved in? 

 How are you going to accommodate the extra traffic on Park St. and Dakota Ave, 
especially if you close down the Hwy 2 access? I think of how fast cars speed up 
on Knights Rd. when we are attempting to cross the street when we are going for a 
walk. So many families use Park St. to get to Wagner Park. 

 I feel leaving the access to Hwy 2 will better sell the homes that are the end of the 
development, instead of the cars having to turn down 3 roads they just have to 
turn into their own development. 

 In the reply Facebook message the city claimed that no access to Hwy 2 is a short-
term problem, but the property next to the proposed site is owned privately as is 
the following one and that may continue for many years. 

 Why were so few of those affected by the new construction notified with a letter? 
Only a handful of houses on Park St were notified, no one down Dakota Ave. 

 Would the Hwy 2 access be closed during construction? All of the construction 
vehicles going down Dakota Ave. and Park St. would damage the road, who 
would pay for that to be fixed? 

 Has a consideration been made about keeping the access to Hwy 2 open, from the 
new development, moving the speed limit signs a quarter mile to the west, and 
adding a crosswalk. 

 That way the new residents to this development can cross Hwy 2 safely to access 
the local businesses across the road? 

 
Christianson noted that a number of the questions submitted and read into the record were 
addressed as part of City’s staff’s presentation.  She then called upon City Engineer Rich 
Revering to address engineering related items.  Revering provided explanations regarding 
the following items: 
 

 The City regularly assesses the condition of streets, and based on the most recent 
assessments, both Dakota Avenue and Park Street have been identified as in need of 
a mill and overlay within the next few year, regardless of the proposed development 
and associated traffic.  Both streets are approximately 20 years old.  The mill and 
overlay will extend the pavement life and will delay the need for a full road 
reconstruction.  

 The building and regular traffic associated with twenty-nine homes will not have a 
significant impact on the surrounding streets. 

 The increase in traffic associated with Ridgeview Estates is anticipated to be 300 
cars per day or less, which is considered fairly low traffic. 

  
Christianson responded to additional questions as follows:  
 

 There will be additional City services needed to serve the development; the costs of 
which will be offset by the increased property tax revenue received by the City as a 
result of the development.   
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 The City Council does have a goal of providing 24/7 police coverage which is not 
currently occurring.  The Scott County Sheriff’s Department provides service when 
City officers are not available. The City Council is committed to adding additional 
police officers when the call volume demands it.  The proposed twenty-nine lots are 
not expected to create the call volume that would create the need for an additional 
police officer at this time. 

 Regarding the question of why is the application being rushed through, state law 
requires Cities to process land use applications within sixty days.  The project 
hearing has already been delayed once due to the Governer’s stay-at-home orders.  
The application cannot be delayed indefinitely as it is unknown when the stay-at-
home orders may be lifted. 

 
Planner Sevening then called up on Adam Wolf to address the Commission.  Adam Wolf, 
138 Dakota Avenue, asked how long the construction of the development was anticipated to 
take and when the construction would occur.  Developer representative Tom Wolter stated 
that the development construction would take approximately three months to complete and 
the home construction would take approximately two years to complete.  Wolf also asked 
about the proposed zoning districts and if multi-family housing was proposed.  Wolter stated 
that all the development is proposed for only single-family detached homes, and that his 
company likes to develop lots that are 65’ wide, which allows for a 50’ wide building pad, 
and this is common throughout the Twin Cities.  Wolf also asked for confirmation regarding 
the mill and overlay of existing area streets within the next few years regardless of the 
development. City Engineer Revering responded, that it is the City’s intention to complete 
the improvement in approximately 2023 regardless of the Ridgeview Estates development.  
Revering explained the projected traffic from the proposed development, stating that 300 
cars per day or less is expected, which is a national average.  From a road design standpoint, 
the additional traffic is not expected to have a significant impact on the adjoining streets.  
 
Sevening then called upon Matt and Aerial Bromelkamp to address the Commission.  Matt 
Bromelkamp, 352 Wagner Way, stated that an additional 300 vehicles per day seems like a 
lot to a resident living in the adjacent development.  Matt also asked if a variance could be 
requested from Scott County to allow access to the development from CSAH 2.  He also 
asked for clarification on the location of Oulot B, and asked for clarification on timing of 
construction.  Christianson displayed a drawing of the current proposal showing the location 
of Outlot B located on the southeast side of the site.  Christianson explained that pending 
City Council approval, the developer could start grading in early to mid-summer, and that 
the developer needs to receive final plat approval from the City Council before infrastructure 
(sewer, water, stormsewer) can be installed.  Developer Tom Wolter stated that there are 
currently supply chain issues that could affect timing of the development construction.  He 
stated that he does not know a proposed start date yet; it could be as early as mid-summer or 
as late as spring of 2021.  Finally, Christianson stated that it is not possible to obtain a 
permanent access to CSAH 2.  Matt Bromelkamp asked if there was a forum for residents to 
contact Scott County regarding the access issues; Christianson stated County contact 
information could be provided to interested parties. 
 
Sevening then called upon Jason and Pat Lamont to address the Commission.  Jason 
Lamont, 245 Park Street, asked who was individually notified of the hearing.  He stated that 
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people living along Dakota Avenue would be affected by the additional 300 vehicles per day 
but not all received a mailing from the City.  Pat Lamont asked about future access points 
onto CSAH 2.  Jason Lamont suggested that the development be delayed until additional 
access to CSAH 2 could be provided.  Christianson explained the process for notification of 
public hearings and stated the City mails individual notices to only those property owners 
required under state law, and that public participation is solicited through additional methods 
such as newspaper ads and social media. Christianson stated that in regards to delaying the 
development until there is additional access to CSAH 2, the City cannot deny a development 
application that meets the criteria of adopted City ordinances and long range plans.  Pat 
Lamont asked if the proposed development would help pay for the improvement of Park 
Street and Dakota Avenue since they will be using the existing streets to access the 
development.  City Engineer Revering explained the City’s method for funding roadway 
improvements, stating that approximately 60% of the cost is paid by the overall community 
so the lots in the proposed development, through property taxes, will be participating in the 
improvement cost.  Jason Lamont asked when the item would be scheduled before the City 
Council for final approval.  City Administrator Terry stated that the item would be 
scheduled for consideration by the City Council on May 28th, and noted that the official 
public hearing is being held before the Planning Commission.  He stated that the City 
Council may choose to take additional comment at the City Council meeting, but asked that 
anybody wishing to address the City Council regarding the plat inform staff ahead of time so 
that the mayor is aware of individuals that may want to address the Council. 
 
Sevening then called upon Brian to address the Commission.  Brian and Carol Witte, 357 
Park Street, asked about the timing of sidewalk construction along Park Street leading to 
Wagner Park.  He also asked if the development would provide a positive impact to the 
current water and sewer rates of the City.  City Engineer Revering responded and stated that 
additional users on the system will be helpful in sharing the overall costs.  He also stated 
that a sidewalk along Park Street is a future project that the City hopes to complete as 
opportunities arise, but the sidewalk is not part of the proposed development project.  
Revering explained that proposed sidewalk would be best located on the north side of Park 
Street because there are fewer driveways to cross.  Brian Witte suggested that the City might 
want to consider constructing the sidewalk at this time due to the large number of children 
within the development. 
 
Sevening then called upon Laura Ellingson to address the Commission.  Laura Ellingson, 
129 Dakota Avenue, stated that she was disappointed she did not a mailed notice regarding 
the proposed development and she did not see anything about the hearing on social media.  
She suggested that the speed limit on CSAH 2 be changed to 35 mph beginning at Idaho 
Avenue.  City Engineer Revering explained the process for establishing speed limits on 
streets, stating that speed limits are established by the Commissioner of Transportation 
based on the results of speed studies determining actual speeds being driven on a roadway.  
Revering explained that the speed limits on CSAH 2 were established by a speed study that 
determined the actual speeds being driven and that the City cannot change the speed limits.  
Ellingson stated for the record that she was notified by a neighbor of the hearing.  She stated 
that she is not opposed to the development but she is concerned that people affected by the 
development were not individually notified. 
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Sevening invited Adam Wolf to address the Commission.  Adam Wolf, 138 Dakota Avenue, 
asked if the City would consider speed bumps on area roadways.  City Engineer Revering 
stated that the City would no longer endorse the use of speed bumps because of the 
maintenance problems and that they have been determined to be ineffective for reducing 
speeds.  The City now endorses alternatives such as narrowing street widths, landscaping, 
and lighting, to influence speeds.   
 
Sevening made a final call for public comments, and with no further public comments, 
Christianson closed the public hearing at 9:01 p.m. 
 
The Planning Commission and City staff then offered the following discussion: 
 

 Commissioner Smith stated the he liked that the developer could use the CSAH 2 
access to construct the development. He also liked proposed trail connection to the 
future CSAH 2 trail system and the trail along Park Street, but questioned whether 
the trail along Park Street should be on the south side or the north side. Revering 
stated that the trail along Park Street is being proposed as a sidewalk and that he 
suggested crossing Park Street at a proposed intersection. Smith suggested keeping 
the sidewalk on the north side of Park Street through the proposed development.   

 Commissioner Schuenke asked the zoning and lot sizes in the existing adjacent 
development and proposed development.  Christianson explained the zoning in the 
existing adjacent development is R1 with minimum 85’ lot widths and 12,000 square 
foot lot sizes.  Lots in the proposed development range from 65’ to 70’ wide, with 
minimum lot sizes ranging from 7,200 to 8,400 square feet.  She explained that the 
Planning Commission reviewing minimum lot size requirements in 2017 and 
amended the City Code to allow smaller single-family lots in some areas.  Schuenke 
stated that he liked the transition of lots sizes from the existing development to the 
new development.  Schuenke also stated that he likes the proposed drainage 
improvements which will benefit the lots in Whispering Creek.     

 Chairperson Kruckman asked about the minimum lot sizes and stated that she 
recalled, when reviewing the plan with a previous developer, that R2 zoning had 
been discussed. She asked why R3 zoning is now being considered.  Christianson 
stated that the developer submitted the application as proposed, and when staff 
reviewed the application against the adopted Comprehensive Plan, and reviewed 
with the City Attorney, it was determined that the property is eligible to be rezoned 
to R3.  The guided land use designation of Residential Mixed Use allows for multi-
family development, which would allow for a R3 or R4 zoning.  The City Attorney’s 
opinion after reviewing the specific language stated in the Comprehensive Plan is 
that the property is eligible to be rezoned to R3 zoning.  Kruckman stated concern 
about the possible visual impact between the homes in the two zoning districts, and 
she also asked about possible future development to the west.  Christianson 
explained that the side setback requirement is the same in the R2 & R3 zoning 
districts so there will be at least 14’ between the homes in both proposed districts.  In 
the R3 district, homes can be 5’ closer to the street than in the R2 district, which 
could have a traffic calming effect. She also explained that along the wetland the 
developer needs to construct the homes at the 25’ front setback to meet the wetland 
setbacks.  In regards to future development to the west, Christianson stated that the 
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draft 2040 Land Use Plan has the property to the west reguided to Low Density 
Residential which would not allow for R3 (medium density residential) zoning but 
would allow for R1 or R2 zoning.  

 Commissioner Humphrey stated based on the current Comprehensive Plan, there 
could be more housing units developed on the subject property.  He stated that the 
development as proposed will help the City meet its housing density requirements. 

 Chairperson Kruckman asked about the height of the houses on proposed Block 1, 
and whether they might tower over the existing homes in the Whispering Creek 
development.  Design Engineer, Eric Fagerberg with James R. Hill, stated the home 
elevations in Block 1 will be based off the elevation of the proposed street, and that 
he tried to set the homes as low as possible.  Christianson reviewed the proposed 
grading plan, and pointed out the proposed walkout elevations of the homes and the 
elevations along the common property lines.   

 Kruckman asked if the existing property owners could tie into the proposed drainage 
swale located along the east side of proposed Block 1. Fagerberg explained that 
because the swale is higher than the existing homes, they would not be able to utilize 
the drainage swale but it is intended to capture and divert drainage from the proposed 
development. 

 Chairperson Kruckman asked if the homes in proposed Block 1 would be ramblers or 
two-story homes.  Christianson stated both ramblers and two-story homes would be 
permitted.  Kruckman also asked about the existing home in the development, and 
whether keeping the home would impact the value of the other homes in the 
development.  Developer Tom Wolter stated that the existing home will be 
refurbished to look like a new home so it will fit in with the other homes in the new 
development.  He also stated that the proposed home styles will be up to the builders 
in the development.              

 
Following discussion by the Planning Commission, it was moved by Smith and seconded by 
Schuenke to recommend approval of the request for rezoning of proposed Block 1 to R2, 
and proposed Blocks 2 and 3 to R3 as shown in the preliminary plat drawing of Ridgeview 
Estates, to allow development of single-family lots for the following reasons: 
 
1. The proposed use of the property for residential single residential family homes meets 

the intent of the guided land use for the area which is Residential Mixed Use.   
2. Based on the Comprehensive Plan’s land use guidance to Residential Mixed Use, the 

property is eligible to be rezoned to R2 and R3 zoning. 
3. Development of the property as single family residential is compatible with the existing 

adjacent land uses. 
 
Also included in the motion by Smith and seconded by Schuenke was a recommendation for 
preliminary plat approval of Ridgeview Estates, containing 29 single-family residential lots 
for the following reasons: 

 
1. The proposed plat meets the requirements of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and Subdivision Ordinance.   
2. The proposed lots meet the minimum lot size and width requirements for the respective 

R2 & R3 zoning districts. 
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3. The applicant has demonstrated that building pads on the proposed lots can meet the 
minimum front, side, and rear setback requirements.  

 
And with the following conditions: 

 
1. The applicant must enter into a Developer’s Agreement with the City of Elko New 

Market as a condition of plat approval.  
2. Approval is granted in accordance with Ridgeview Estates plan set dated April 16, 2020 

containing 12 sheets, and subject to City staff comments as noted on the plan set and 
dated April 20, 2020; in accordance with the landscaping plan submitted April 22, 2020 
containing 3 sheets, and subject to City staff comments noted on the plan set and dated 
April 23, 2020; and subject to City Engineer comments and conditions as stated in 
review memorandum dated March 13, 2020, version 3. 

3. Lots in proposed Block 4 must meet the required structure-to-wetland setback of 40’ for 
the R3 zoning district. 

4. A conservation easement, covering the wetland buffer area in proposed Block 3, shall be 
granted to the City.  The conservation easement may coincide with the drainage and 
utility easement on the southerly boundary of proposed Block 3. 

5. The plans shall be revised to include a Signage and Lighting Plan, meeting the 
recommendation of the City Engineer.  The sign plan must contain the following: a) 
Type III barricades and Future Street Extension signs at the west ends of Park Street and 
Street A; b) Wetland buffer sign markers along all lot lines at wetland buffer locations; 
c) a sign identifying a future trail will be located between proposed Lots 2 and 3 Block 
1. 

6. A temporary cul-de-sac is required at the west end of Street A.  Temporary roadway 
easements may be required if the temporary cul-de-sac encroached into adjacent lots.  
The plans shall be revised to depict the required temporary cul-de-sac. 

7. A permit will be needed from the MnDNR for any new stormwater outfalls.  
Pretreatment of stormwater is needed before stormwater is routed to the DNR Protected 
Wetland. 

8. The existing residential driveway on the property shall be removed as a condition of the 
plat.  Any temporary construction access at the existing residential driveway location 
requires the approval of Scott County.  No construction access shall be permitted 
without an approved access permit through Scott County. 

9. The existing well and septic system on the property shall be properly abandoned in 
accordance with State and County regulations. 

10. A park dedication fee is recommended in lieu of land dedication.  
11. A future trail location has been identified for the area between proposed Lots 2 & 3, 

Block 1, which will connect the sidewalk system within the plat to the future trail on the 
south side of CSAH 2.  A public trail easement along this common lot line shall be 
dedicated to the City. 

12. The developer shall contribute financially to the construction of a future trail along the 
south side of CSAH 2. 

13. Curbing within the development must be B618 as required by City Code.  The plans 
shall be amended to depict the B618 curbing. 

14. The landscaping plan must be amended to meet the requirement for two or more rows of 
screening trees, to meet the requirements of Section 11-5-4(B)(1) of the City Code.   
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And noting that: 

 
1. The applicant has depicted dedication of additional CSAH 2 right-of-way as requested 

by Scott County. 
2. Drainage and utility easements have been provided throughout the plat as required by 

City Code. 
 

 By Roll Call Vote: 
Commissioner Hanson – Unavailable during vote 
Commissioner Humphrey – Aye 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith - Aye 

Motion carried: (4-0) 
 
B. Consider Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Administration and 

Enforcement 
 
Planner Sevening presented the agenda item, which was proposed amendments to the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance regarding the process for abatement procedures for public nuisances and 
enforcement of the zoning ordinance. 
 
Sevening explained that based on the most citywide survey along with the number of 
complaints being received by City staff, there seems to be changing expectations in the 
community regarding the condition and maintenance of residential properties.  Based on 
this, staff is planning to complete a citywide inspection and inventory of properties in the 
community in early May to determine compliance with City codes.  Prior to completing the 
citywide inspection, staff has reviewed the City’s ordinances regarding the processes for 
enforcement.  Sevening explained the changes that are being recommended to Section 11-3 
of the City code which will shorten and simplify the enforcement procedures and she 
reviewed the proposed changes. 
 
Sevening explained that a public hearing is required to amend the zoning ordinance.  
Sevening opened the public hearing for consideration of the zoning ordinance amendments 
at 9:30 p.m.  With no comments from the public, the hearing was closed at 9:31 p.m. 
 
The Commission offered the following comments: 
 

 Humphrey stated that he was very appreciative of simplification of City ordinances, 
and is supportive of the proposed amendment. 

 
It was then moved by Hanson and seconded by Humphrey to recommend approval of the 
following: 
 

 Delete Section 11-3-1 (I) of the existing City Code in its entirety 
 Add Section 11-3-10 of the City Code containing the following language:   
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A. Enforcing officer:  This title shall be administered and enforced by the Zoning 
Administrator in accordance with its terms, who shall not permit any 
construction, use, or change of use that does not conform to this Title. The City 
Administrator shall designate the Zoning Administrator.  The Zoning 
Administrator may designate such additional persons as may be necessary or 
convenient to assist in administering and enforcing this chapter. 

B. Duties of the Zoning Administrator: The Zoning Administrator’s duties shall 
include the following: 

1. Determine that all building permits comply with the terms of this title; 

2. Conduct inspections of buildings and uses of land to determine compliance 
with the terms of this title; 

3. Maintain records of all zoning maps, amendments, conditional uses permits, 
variances, appeals, and other matters regulated by this title; 

4. Administer all applications under this title; 

5. Institute appropriate enforcement proceedings and actions against violators; 

6. Serve as staff advisor to the Planning Commission; 

7. Prepare reports and information for the Planning Commission and City 
Council, and may attend their meetings and participate in their hearings and 
discussions, but shall not vote on any item before the Planning Commission 
and City Council; and 

8.  Perform such other functions as may be necessary to enforce and administer 
this title. 

C. In case any building, structure or land is, or is proposed to be, erected, 
constructed, reconstructed, altered, converted, maintained or used in violation of 
this title, the zoning administrator, in addition to other remedies, may institute in 
the name of the city, any appropriate action or proceeding to prevent, restrain, 
correct or abate such building structure or land, or to prevent, in or about such 
premises, any act, conduct, business or use constituting a violation.   

 
By Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Hanson - Aye 
Commissioner Humphrey – Aye 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith - Aye 

Motion carried: (5-0) 
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9. GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider Grading Permit – R & F Properties 
 
Christianson presented the agenda item, which is a request for grading permit for R & F 
properties, noting that the exact same permit had been applied for and issued approximately 
one year ago but the work was never completed.  The owner is now reapplying for the exact 
same permit.  She stated the property is currently home to the Elko Speedway and Ryan 
Contracting and zoned PUD which is a special zoning district that allows for a variety of 
specific uses.  The owner is proposing to bring in fill to level off an area on the property.  
The area proposed for fill is currently designated as an overflow parking area in the 
approved PUD, and guided by the City’s Comprehensive Plan to future residential uses.  A 
site drawing was displayed showing the location of the proposed fill. 
 
It was moved by Kruckman and seconded by Hanson to recommend approval of grading 
permit #G1-2020 to the City Council with the following conditions: 
 
1. Approval is based on the grading plan containing 1 sheet, prepared by Probe 

Engineering, dated 4/10/19 and revised 4/16/19. 
2. Approval is based on the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan containing 10 sheets, 

prepared by Probe Engineering, and dated 4/16/19. 
3. The applicant shall comply with all recommendations of the City Engineer, and 

conditions contained in his review memorandum dated April 22, 2019. 
4. The applicant shall enter into a Grading Authorization Permit with the City. 
5. Fill shall be stockpiled until it can be equally spread over the entire overflow area, so the 

required overflow parking area is maintained. 
6. All access to the site for purposes of filling and grading shall be via France Avenue 

through the R & F Properties property.  No access to the site shall occur on Whispering 
Hills Lane. 

7. Fill shall be leveled and the site shall be fully stabilized by the end of the construction 
season, 2020. 

8. The permit shall be granted for a period not to exceed one-year in length.   
 

And noting the following: 
 

1. The City’s Comprehensive Plan depicts a future extension of Whispering Hills Lane, 
easterly, into the area proposed to be filled to eventually connect with France Avenue / 
Main Street.  Future extension of the roadway will likely require removal or moving of 
some of the proposed fill at applicant / developer’s expense. 

 
Commissioner Schuenke asked what the property has been used for in the past and what the 
future plans are for the property.  Christianson explained that the uses on the site have 
evolved over time; at one time the area was utilized as a motocross track, and it is currently 
used for parking of construction equipment for Ryan Contracting and overflow parking for 
Elko Speedway.  Schuenke expressed concern over the use of the area, as at times the area is 
heavily lit up which causes concern for the residents.  Christianson and Terry explained that 
the overflow parking and construction parking is already permitted by the land use approvals 
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and that bringing in fill on the site will not change that.  Also noted was that the City 
Engineer has recommended approval of the grading plan.    
 
After discussion there was a roll call vote on the motion: 

Commissioner Hanson - Aye 
Commissioner Humphrey – Aye 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith - Aye 

Motion carried: (5-0) 
 

10. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A. Tip of the Month – Meeting Conduct on Video 
 
Christianson stated that Planning Commission meetings going forward will be videotaped 
and posted to the City’s website, so miscellaneous tips regarding meeting conduct on video 
had been provided to the Planning Commission in a memorandum. 

 
B. Roundabout Update 

 
Scott County has awarded the construction contract for the CSAH 2 & 91 roundabout to 
local contractor Ryan Contracting.  The original construction schedule is being moved up 
because of the decrease in overall traffic and elimination of school bus traffic through the 
intersection as a result of the Governor’s stay-at-home orders.  The intersection could close 
as early as May 18th and reopen in late July, all dependent upon weather conditions.  

 
C. Police Department / City Campus Update 
 
The City Council has authorized an addition onto city hall for police department office and 
garage space.  The construction contract has been awarded to Greystone Construction from 
Shakopee.  Information was also provided regarding the City master campus plan, which 
was adopted by the City in 2008 and used as a guiding document of the City.  The plan 
identifies the area around the current city hall / fire station as the ultimate campus for police, 
fire, city offices, and possible community center locations.    

 
D. Community Development Updates & Reports 
 
A memorandum containing updates was included in the Planning Commission packet.   

 
E. Planning Commission Questions and Comments 
 
Commissioner Smith asked for additional information regarding the City cost for the 
roundabout.  Additional detailed cost information will be included in the next Planning 
Commission packet. 
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Commissioner Smith asked about the delay in construction in Christmas Pines.  
Administrator Terry stated that the builder indicated there are some supply chain issues 
occurring, which is causing a delay. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
It was moved by Humphrey and seconded by Anderson to adjourn the meeting at 9:56 p.m. 

 
By Roll Call Vote: 

Commissioner Hanson - Aye 
Commissioner Humphrey – Aye 
Commissioner Kruckman – Aye 
Commissioner Schuenke – Aye 
Commissioner Smith – Aye  

Motion carried: (5-0) 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
Renee Christianson 
Community Development Specialist 
 
 



ENM Parks Commission Update 
April 30, 2020 
 
1. As you know, the City received a $10,000 grant from the Twins to assist in 

the relocation of Rowena Pond Park T-Ball Diamond. City Council accepted 
the grant at their April 9th Meeting and I sent in the signed grant agreement 
the following day.  The relocation of the ballfield will get underway on May 
1st with grading and placement of drain tile.  The 3 affected property 
owners have been notified. 

2. Speaking of the Twins, I’ve been posting Parks Commission updates on 
programs and projects on Facebook for the past couple of weeks.  Here’s 
one on the Twins Clinic and a link for baseball related activities for kids: “It's 
baseball season!  Even though there are no games yet, the City is pleased to 
announce that for 7th time in 8 years, the Elko Express and Parks 
Commission have been selected by the Minnesota Twins as a host for a 
2020 Play Ball Minnesota Youth Baseball Clinic! The date this year will be 
Saturday, July 18th at Fredrickson Field – 6 to 9 years old start at 9 AM and 
10 – 13 years old start at 10:30 AM.  Mark it on your calendars!  We are 
hopeful that we will be able to hold the event!  Meanwhile, here's a link to 
the Twins website for baseball-oriented kid's activities to get you ready -
 https://www.mlb.com/twins/fans/kids”   

3. Continuing with the baseball theme, the Registration Form for the 2020 
Kids’ Baseball/Softball season was due on 4/1/20.  At this time, the 2020 
season is on “hold” right now, so routine maintenance to the fields is all 
that is needed.  The NM Baseball Association is hopeful that some part of 
the season can be played this year.  On the plus side, the relocation of the 
ballfield at Rowena Pond Park is getting started 3 months early. 

4. The City stopped accepting Wagner Park Shelter Rental Apps on Monday, 
March 23rd for 2020…Staff will be cancelling reserved dates with a month 
advance notice. Currently, all reservations have been cancelled thru May.  
The only use of the Wagner Parks Shelter is the Food Shelf Program, which 
has expanded to the 1st and 3rd Wednesdays of each month thru September 
due to increasing demand. 

5. The Windrose 8th/Woodcrest Trail is back on track!  I sent out letters to 
adjacent property owners notifying them that the work will get started on 
April 10th with brush clearance and leveling the trail for future paving.  
Public Works is now at work on the project. 

https://mail.ci.enm.mn.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=ZaK76IIetM4UbypwyKOq3lAV87JqlXSZG4saAH5s1LcuV9ZZluvXCA..&URL=https%3a%2f%2fwww.mlb.com%2ftwins%2ffans%2fkids


6. I submitted the application for a free $31,000 BCI Burke Playground Set, as 
part of their “Great Playground Giveaway”.  We will know by next week 
whether we were selected for the playground set. 

7. Applications for the Recreational Specialist position closed on Friday, March 
27th.  There were 5 applications, so City Council was asked to revise the 
Minimum Requirements at their April 23rd Meeting in hopes of increasing 
the candidate “pool”.  They approved extending the deadline to Friday, 
May 8th at 4:30 PM. 

8. As you know, the Parks Commission made a final decision at the November 
Meeting to accept the proposal from Webber Recreational Design, which 
included an Accelerator Swing and Ten Spin to replace an old swing set and 
balance beam at Old City Hall Park. The final cost for the 2 pieces was 
$8,452.48. The city purchased the equipment prior to the end of 2019 to 
take advantage of the almost 30% discount on the equipment.  The PW 
Department removed the old equipment recently, so the playground is now 
ready for the installation tentatively scheduled for the week of May 4th. 

9. American Ramp Company, which built and installed the SkatePark 
equipment, and I had a Conference Call on Monday, April 13th to discuss 
options for additional pieces of equipment for the SkatePark.  The noise 
issue has been satisfactorily resolved with new equipment, so plans to 
complete the upgrade can now be considered.  I will have those options for 
you at our May 12th meeting. 

10. On the Agenda for the April Parks Commission Meeting was the annual 
purchase of 100 Cubic Yards of Engineered Wood Fiber.  I secured 4 written 
bids – Finnegan Playground Adventures ($2,293.00); Safety First Playground 
Maintenance ($2,095.00); Flagship Recreation ($2,091.01); and 
Minnesota/Wisconsin Playground ($1,799.00).  The low bid was from 
Minnesota/Wisconsin Playground for $1,799.00, which was approved by 
the Parks Commission.  The wood fiber was delivered to the Public Works 
Maintenance Facility on Friday, April 17th.  When a date is determined to 
reopen the playgrounds, it will be distributed to each playground. 
As you know, we work with area Boy Scouts and Girl Scouts on their 
projects.  Right now, I am working with Ryan Huberty on his Eagle Scout 
project of upgrading the Wagner Park Flag Garden over the 4th of July 
Holiday; Sheridan Liggett on her Gold Award on building 3 “Little Libraries” 
in the City; and Addison Hermann and Amelia Deuth on their Silver Award 
on planting a Bee Garden this Summer. All 3 projects will add value to the 



City parks.  Here’s the recent Facebook Post I wrote on the Bee Project:  “As 
you continue to cope with the pandemic and at home schooling, the Parks 
Commission will offer you weekly links to the City’s programs that allow to 
go more in depth with the organizations that we work with to bring you 
better parks.  Last week, it was the Twins Community Foundation, this 
week we’re buzzing about bees.  After City Staff took a seminar at the 
University of Minnesota’s Bee Lab last Summer, we learned about ways for 
the Parks Commission could promote the conservation, health, and 
diversity of bee pollinators in City parks.  We are starting with planting a 
bee lawn this Fall at Pete’s Hill Open Space to help increase the bee 
population. So…why is this important?  Go to 
https://www.beelab.umn.edu/bee-squad/bee-squad-programs and learn 
how you can help support bees in your own backyard! Let us know what 
you do!” 

11. The parks and trails remain open, while the playgrounds were closed on 
Friday, March 27th to residents. Staff will be evaluating reopening them on 
a regular basis. 

12. The City Council extended the deadline for applying for the 2 vacant Parks 
Commission positions for a couple of more weeks in hopes of increasing the 
applicant “pool”. Interviews were held on Friday, April 24th and 
recommendations will be made to the City Council at their meeting of May 
14th. 

13. On the May Parks Commission Agenda will be a proposal for doing 
playground assessments for 3 of our playgrounds – Woodcrest Park, 
Wagner Park, and Windrose Park – to make sure that they are incompliance 
with CPC and ASTM standards.  The cost would be about $1,500 for all 3. 

14. I am tentatively scheduled to present the 2020 - 2025 Parks CIP to the City 
Council at their Thursday, May 14th meeting. 

15. Then next Parks Commission Meeting will be on Tuesday, May 14th @ 4 PM.  
At this time, it is likely to be another Zoom Meeting, but depending on the 
outcome of the Governor’s May 4th announcement on continuance of the 
“Stay at Home” order, it may be able to be held at City Hall. I’ll send an 
email when I know for sure. 

https://www.beelab.umn.edu/bee-squad/bee-squad-programs
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